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1. This has been a long and difficult matter. It arises in the context of Safe Sport and
involves alleged harassment of a duly appointed independent complaints and appeals
official, the Claimant. The sport involved is wrestling.

2. I was appointed as Arbitrator from the rotating list of Arbitrators maintained by the
Sport Dispute Resolution Centre of Canada (SDRCC).

The Parties 

3. The Claimant, Dr. Frank Fowlie, was appointed by Wrestling Canada Lutte (WCL) as
Complaints and Appeals Officer (CAO) under the WCL Code of Conduct (WCL Code)
to deal with a variety of issues, including internal and other appeals, as well as
disciplinary and compliance matters in which conduct of Participants (as defined in
the WCL Code) has been the subject of complaints.

4. The Respondent is WCL, the national federation governing the sport of wrestling in
Canada.

Note: This decision and arbitration award was set aside by Justice C. Hackland of the 
Ontario Superior Court of Justice in court file number CV-24-98074, reported at 2025 

ONSC 2632, and is therefore of no force or effect.
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5. The complaint giving rise to these proceedings involved the possible existence of an
undisclosed relationship between a wrestling coach and a female wrestler.

6. There are three Affected Parties: a coach, David Spinney, (AP Spinney) who may or
may not have had an undisclosed relationship with a female athlete, another
coach/athlete, Ahmed Shamiya (AP Shamiya) and Mara Schiavulli (AP Schiavulli),
mother of the female athlete.

7. All three Affected Parties, as well as the Claimant, fall within the WCL Code definition
of Participant.

8. Relationships between counsel have been strained.

Challenges and Motions 

9. The proceedings have been replete with motions, challenges, incivility, and deliberate
delays. There are, apparently, several other actions pending (or threatened) in forums
other than the SDRCC that involve some or all the parties and Affected Parties. None
of these are before me.

Involvement of Counsel 

10. The Claimant has been represented throughout the proceedings by André Marin as
lead counsel.

11. WCL has been represented by Jordan Goldblatt and Morgan McKenna.

12. AP Spinney had been represented throughout these proceedings by Michael Smith
until 18 October 2024, when Mr. Smith resigned as counsel. As Arbitrator in this
matter, it is not my role to accept or reject that resignation, which is a matter between
a lawyer and his client, governed by the professional relationship pursuant to the rules
established by the Law Society of Ontario.

13. AP Shamiya, despite having given several undertakings to do so, has not engaged
counsel. A non-lawyer (Cory Coles) appeared as his representative on 7 December
2023 and professed to be prepared to cross examine the witnesses who had testified
on the first scheduled date for the hearings. He has since withdrawn from the
proceedings.

14. AP Schiavulli has had occasional representation in the person of Eamonn Dorgan
(removed on 18 May 2023, re-added 26 February 2024 and re-removed on 26 June
2024), Alexander Kelly (resigned on 7 June 2023) and latterly by counsel Karen
McArthur commencing on 26 June 2024, although it is not clear whether this is an
ongoing representation, since Ms. McArthur had indicated that she expected to be
paid for at least ongoing services. She had made submissions that these proceedings
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should be further delayed until AP Schiavulli received costs expected to be derived 
from another proceeding, submissions that I rejected.  

First Set of Arbitrator Challenges 

15. Conflicts of interest have also been asserted by the Affected Parties (principally AP
Shamiya, regarding my role as having contributed, some time ago, a few pages in a
small chapter edited by the Claimant as part of a larger work, and AP Schiavulli, on
the basis that I am a director of the Canadian Olympic Committee). Jurisdictional
arbitrators have rejected both claims.

16. In February 2023, a Jurisdictional Arbitrator (Harveen Thauli) was appointed to deal
with allegations by AP Spinney of a reasonable apprehension of bias on my part. AP
Shamiya also made additional submissions on the point in support of the
jurisdictional challenge. On 3 April 2023, the Jurisdictional Arbitrator determined that
no such reasonable apprehension of bias existed.

Procedural Timeline and Requests for Delay 

17. After further delays, new hearing dates were established. On 8 September 2023 (late
on the Friday afternoon prior to a scheduled Monday hearing date), AP Spinney
requested a further delay, relating to preparations for Senior World Wrestling
Championships, which I was not prepared to grant (since he had agreed to the
scheduled hearing dates and, as a coach, would undoubtedly have known the dates
of an event as important as the Senior World Wrestling Championships) but on the
Monday morning, 11 September 2023, the SDRCC received notification that AP
Shamiya had been hospitalized, which caused further delay.

18. New and definitive hearing dates were rescheduled, commencing 4 December 2023
through 8 December 2023.

19. Reminders were sent by the SDRCC to all parties and Affected Parties, with the related
links for the virtual hearing.

20. On 23 November 2023, AP Spinney’s counsel, Michael Smith, announced that he
would not be attending the first day of the scheduled hearing due to an event relating
to the death of a friend sometime earlier, which he said his client understood. I refused
a postponement on the basis, inter alia, that there was another counsel on the record,
but Mr. Smith said the other counsel was not sufficiently briefed and would be out of
town in any event. I advised Mr. Smith that the hearing would proceed as scheduled,
with or without him.

21. AP Spinney was present at the commencement of the virtual hearing on 4 December
2023, but was uncomfortable due to the absence of his counsel, notwithstanding the
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representation given by Mr. Smith, and left shortly the call thereafter. AP Schiavulli 
was not present. 

22. On Sunday evening 3 December 2023, someone self-identified as AP Shamiya’s
Partner advised that AP Shamiya would not be present at the hearing and requested
a postponement of the hearing due to medical reasons. I did not change the hearing
dates since I had no idea who or what was involved, and it might well have been
possible for AP Shamiya to have signed in and to participate in the virtual
proceedings.

23. It seemed clear that the Affected Parties operated under the misapprehension that they
were entitled to determine when the hearings would be held. They were not so
entitled. Such determinations are made by the Panel. If parties wish to amend
established hearing dates, they must obtain the Panel’s prior consent. A mere request
for amended dates is not decisive. Only the Panel can make such decisions.

24. In the result, only the Claimant and two witnesses called by him gave verbal evidence
on the first day (4 December 2023) of the scheduled hearing. The Claimant also
introduced and filed documentary evidence.

25. Arrangements had been made to have the proceedings recorded. This was to
accommodate the absence of Mr. Smith. The recordings were sent to all parties by the
SDRCC at approximately 5:39 p.m. Eastern time on 4 December 2023. The non-
attending parties were to be afforded the opportunity to cross-examine the witnesses
who testified, based on the recorded testimony.

Second Set of Arbitrator Challenges 

26. However, only minutes before the commencement of the proceedings on 5 December
2023, Mr. Smith, on behalf of AP Spinney, produced yet another petition to remove
me as Arbitrator, once again based on an alleged reasonable apprehension of bias. The
matter was discussed briefly, and the hearing was adjourned until 1:00 p.m. In the
interim, Mr. Smith was to listen to the recording of the previous day’s proceedings,
and I was to consider the petition.

27. It was clear to me that the principal, if not sole, objective of the petition was to delay
the hearing on the merits of the Claimant’s harassment allegations. The tactic was to
have a new jurisdictional arbitrator review the petition and make a ruling, which
would likely involve a delay of several months.

28. I delivered a brief judgment rejecting the petition as an abuse of process. Mr. Smith
conferred privately with AP Spinney, following which he stated that his client
maintained his position that a jurisdictional arbitrator must be appointed.
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29. In the meantime, Mr. Smith was not willing to cross-examine the Claimant or the other
witnesses.

30. No change of attitude was expected for the scheduled hearing on 6 December 2023,
and none occurred. The evidence was completed, the Claimant’s case was closed, and
brief oral submissions were made on behalf of the Claimant as to the merits,
suggesting consequences and costs. WCL also made brief submissions focussed
mainly on workplace harassment and argued that none of the Affected Parties were
employees of WCL.

31. Repeated recourse to jurisdictional arbitrators during SDRCC proceedings is
obviously not something that lends itself to the avoidance of delay, nor the
achievement of a just, speedy, and cost-effective resolution of sport-related disputes
as contemplated in Subsection 5.7(f) of the 2021 Canadian Sport Dispute Resolution
Code (the Code) applicable herein. I have not encountered any examples of such
dilatory conduct at the SDRCC (and predecessor organizations) cases, nor has my
attention been directed to any cases of this nature dealing with delays.

32. There was no misunderstanding regarding the dates of the hearing and Subsection
6.5(d) of the Code identifies the possible consequences if an Affected Party does not
participate.

33. The SDRCC nevertheless proceeded to appoint a jurisdictional arbitrator (Roger
Bilodeau), who rendered his decision on 18 April 2024 dismissing all the challenges
brought by the Affected Parties.

New Procedural Timeline 

34. New hearing dates were established for 2, 3 and 5 July 2024.

35. On 28 June 2024, AP Spinney advised that he had a last-minute trip to Spain “for
coaching purposes” and would be available only on 5 July 2024. No permission was
sought in respect of his non-availability.

36. On 1 July 2024, Cory Coles advised that AP Shamiya would be available only on 5 July
2024 due to surgery.

37. On 2 July 2024 Mr. Coles declared himself to be ready to cross-examine the witnesses
who had testified, despite the absence of AP Shamiya, who would not, therefore, be
present to hear the evidence elicited and to provide whatever information might have
been of assistance in the circumstances.

38. I was unwilling to agree to such a process without being able to satisfy myself that AP
Shamiya was fully aware of the possible consequences of his non-participation,
including gaps in the evidence, leading to possible requests for further cross-
examination in his presence. I was also concerned that there might even be disavowal
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of the conduct of his non-lawyer. Nor was I satisfied that AP Shamiya would be 
present on 5 July 2024. 

39. By way of a procedural order dated 4 July 2024, the proceedings scheduled for 3 and
5 July 2024 were cancelled. It would not have been possible, in my view, even if Mr.
Coles had been permitted to cross-examine in the absence of AP Shamiya, for the
balance of cross-examinations and the direct evidence of the Affected Parties, plus
cross-examination and re-examinations to be completed on 5 July 2024.

Third Set of Arbitrator Challenges  

40. On 6 July 2024, AP Schiavulli filed another request for appointment of a jurisdictional
arbitrator, again on the alleged existence of a reasonable apprehension of bias. AP
Shamiya joined her enthusiastically in that request shortly thereafter.

41. It was by then obvious that the Affected Parties, for reasons never disclosed, did not
want the proceedings to reach a normal conclusion.

42. On this occasion, however, despite the petition filed on behalf of AP Schiavulli and
AP Shamiya, the SDRCC chose not to appoint a jurisdictional arbitrator. The matter
was, therefore, left in my hands.

Final Procedural Timeline  

43. While it was a much less satisfactory process than I would have preferred in the
ordinary course, the demonstrated tactical conduct of the Affected Parties had been
such that I decided the remaining proceedings, including the tendering of evidence,
cross-examination thereon and all subsequent submissions were to be in writing, with
evidence to be supported by affidavits. A schedule was created to allow this to happen
within a reasonable time and was posted on the SDRCC Case Management Portal.
Written proceedings regarding evidence and pleadings are hardly unknown to the
law. Regular reminders of all “due dates” were communicated to the parties.

44. The Affected Parties were not happy with this turn of events and took the position
that they should have been consulted in advance. It was, however, their continued
and concerted course of conduct which had led to the decision to proceed in writing,
with the “on the clock” feature that provided certainty regarding the conclusion of
this much-delayed process. It is not unlikely that resistance to the amended process
may have been related to the evaporation of any further delaying tactics.

45. Not one of the Affected Parties, whether represented or not, chose to participate in the
evidentiary phase of the proceedings. This was entirely their decision, not one dictated
by the Panel. Each of the Affected Parties was on notice that evidence (by statement
or document) to be considered by me in reaching my decision in this matter was
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required to be introduced by a witness within the delays established in the published 
schedule. Absent that, there would be no evidence on the record on behalf of the 
Affected Parties.  

46. On 21 October 2024, after the expiry of the delays for the Affected Parties to produce
evidence (of which there had been none), I issued a notice through the SDRCC
Tribunal that I had no additional questions to pose.

47. The next phase of the matter was to receive any submissions from the parties on or
before the scheduled date.

48. The Claimant filed final submissions on 1 November 2024.

49. The Respondent filed a submission on 6 November 2024 in response to the
submissions of the Claimant. The essence of that submission was that the Claimant
was effectively seeking to re-litigate a matter that had been disposed of by the Ontario
courts in favour of WCL. That had been a claim for damages against WCL for not
acting to eliminate or reducing the harassment of the Claimant at the hands of the
Affected Parties. That, however, is not what the Claimant is seeking in these
proceedings. Indeed, Subsection 5.14(d) the Code expressly excludes any jurisdiction
for Panels to make such awards.

50. On 14 November 2024 both AP Spinney and AP Shamiya filed separate submissions
in which each sought to justify their conduct as entirely principled and not sufficiently
excessive to rise to the level of harassment. Unfortunately, given their refusal to
participate in the evidentiary phase of the proceedings, these submissions are
completely bereft of evidence in support of their claims. I can give the submissions no
status since they are not based on evidence properly before me in these proceedings.
Nothing has been received from AP Schiavulli.

51. It had been obvious, to me at least, that the internal appeal process selected by the
CAO who replaced the Claimant in that position was all but certain to be appealed,
especially given the new CAO’s decision to proceed on the basis of the milder
characterization of harassment. I had tried to suggest going directly to a full de novo
appeal to save time, money and duplication of proceedings. I was advised that the
parties could not agree on adopting such a process.

52. That, in turn, led to the exercise of the new CAO’s decision regarding the level of
harassment involved. Despite the complete disregard of the Vavilov stress on the
elements of reasonableness of the decision-maker’s choice (of which there were none),
I decided not to add an extra level of process by sending the matter back to the CAO
to provide his reasons for the characterization. I determined that this would only delay
matters further, so it proceeded to its expected outcome and the equally expected
present de novo appeal.
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Context of the Complaint  

53. The case before me arises in the context of the Claimant’s role as WCL’s Complaints
and Appeals Officer (CAO).

54. The genesis of the proceedings was concerns expressed within the wrestling
community that there might have been an undeclared relationship between AP
Spinney and a female athlete in the sport of wrestling.

55. The concerns had been communicated to the Claimant in his capacity as WCL’s CAO,
by what are often referred to as “whistle blowers” who reported, in this case, based
on hearsay, not as persons with personal knowledge of the circumstances.

56. Upon receipt of the concerns expressed, after reviewing whatever preliminary
material has been provided, the CAO determines whether those concerns rise to a
level that calls for action by (in this case) WCL.

57. The Claimant considered that the matter called for an investigation prior to deciding
whether a hearing was warranted and appointed an investigator for that purpose.

58. As a matter of process, when an investigation is to take place, potential witnesses are
advised by the CAO that they may be contacted for that purpose by the appointed
investigator. For purposes of these proceedings, both AP Spinney and AP Schiavulli
were so advised. Such notifications are recognized as best practices to alert the
recipients that they may be contacted by the investigator. So far as I am aware, AP
Shamiya was not directly involved in the issue of the relationship, although there is a
reasonable inference that he was aware of it but I do not understand that the
investigation involved him.

59. The Claimant considered that he had been harassed by the Affected Parties and had
requested action in relation thereto from WCL. When WCL neglected to act, he filed a
formal complaint to that effect with WCL, which, presumably referred it to the WCL
official then responsible for dealing with such matters.

60. By the time formal complaint was filed by the Claimant there were two levels of
harassment identified in the applicable WCL policy: one level was for cases considered
relatively mild and another was for more serious occurrences. I have separated the
substantive aspects of the matter from the process. As to the process, all parties appear
to have accepted the revised process rules and they proceeded accordingly. This, in
my view, does not involve the substantive rules and the parties are in accord that the
issue in these proceedings is limited to whether there had been a disclosure of the
relationship in question. That disclosure requirement reflects the applicable “law” in
the circumstances, which does not change to incorporate subsequent substantive
amendments that might have increased the burden of disclosure, as well as the
potential attendant consequences flowing from such amendments.
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61. When examining the materials supporting the claim, the then current WCL official
concluded that the harassment complained of fell within the milder spectrum and the
internal appeal process eventually ended with a conclusion that harassment had
occurred, leading to relatively minor sanctions.

62. The present proceedings, therefore, constitute an appeal from the decision flowing
from that internal process. The Claimant considers the outcome of the internal process
to have been unsatisfactory in the circumstances.

63. AP Spinney attempted to limit the current proceedings to an appeal restricted to the
minor spectrum internal appeal decision rather than a full de novo appeal based on all
the facts, not merely what the internal appeal process had considered and concluded.
It was only when faced with being limited as to what he could argue and what facts
he could use that his counsel resiled from that position.

64. The Claimant, for his part, had tried to attack the internal decision process that chose
the milder spectrum, but that was a decision falling within the scope of the internal
official’s discretion.

65. I ruled on that aspect early in the process and ordered that the internal process was
permitted to proceed on the milder spectrum basis.

The Safe Sport Context 

66. The context of Safe Sport is also very much in play in these proceedings, although it
has been largely buried in the invective nature of many of the communications.

67. Safe Sport has become a central issue in sport today, all over the world, long after it
should have attracted more rigorous attention on the part of sports officials and,
perhaps, the public authorities.

68. By way of overview, sports officials, including administrators, coaches, medical
personnel, and support personnel have regularly operated as de facto fiefdoms in
which authority is administered, at least until relatively recently, as the sports
organizations determined. Little, if any, regard was focussed on the health and safety
of the athletes involved, and it is they who are central to the practice of sport and its
role in society.

69. In high performance sport, what mattered, almost exclusively, was competitive
performance results, with distressingly limited concerns about how those results may
have been achieved and the impacts on the health, safety, and lives of the athletes.

70. The sport structures were effectively command structures and athletes were expected
to do what they were told, without complaint.
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71. Others involved in sport were under pressure to keep quiet about what they may have
known and/or may have seen. How many times have those involved in sport heard
statements like “If we fire Coach X, there go several medals in (whatever might be the
relevant competition)? “

72. Horrific stories have begun to emerge, including in Hockey Canada, cycling, the Larry
Nassar situation in U.S. gymnastics and many more. Closer to home and these
proceedings, is wrestling in Canada. It had and still has Safe Sport issues.

73. In the command structure mentality, so-called “whistle blowers” are anathema to
those in charge. They are treated by sports organizations far more harshly than are the
perpetrators. They become pariahs who are banned, shunned, harassed, dismissed,
disgraced, and often must leave their communities or even countries.

74. The concept and practice of Safe Sport must extend encouragement of and protection
for whistle blowers or truth tellers as well as to athletes and those officials who are
charged with ensuring that Safe Sport principles are properly applied.

The Strange Posture of WCL 

75. The position of WCL in these proceedings has been both troubling and frustrating.

76. It is as if Safe Sport issues in Canadian wrestling are not regarded as WCL’s problem,
but someone else’s.

77. The Claimant wrote seven times to Tamara Medwidsky at WCL to report that he was
being harassed in the workplace and got no response. WCL argued that the conduct
was not workplace harassment because the harassment did not come from WCL
employees, thus overlooking, or ignoring, the fact that the harassment was at the
hands of Participants who were subject to the WCL Code of Conduct.

78. What happened in this case is that the Safe Sport issues regarding harassment in
wrestling were hijacked by the Affected Parties and WCL did not act to protect its own
Safe Sport official. The Affected Parties were willing and able to override WCL rules
and processes without authority or consequences, notwithstanding the applicable
Code of Conduct that applied to them as Participants.

79. Despite WCL being put on notice that its lack of cooperation and resistance might well
lead to the drawing of inferences regarding its conduct and its commitment to Safe
Sport, WCL would not agree to provide a knowledgeable witness to testify in these
proceedings.

80. Its litigious position is that WCL has nothing to do with the relations between the
Claimant and the Affected Parties. While designated as the Respondent in these
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proceedings, WCL states that no conclusions have been sought with respect to WCL. 
It asserts that WCL is only a Respondent because the SDRCC has so identified it. 

81. With respect, this was a completely inadequate response to a known and obvious
harassment of WCL’s own CAO. Whatever the technical merits of WCL’s litigious
position in respect of a contracted appointment of the CAO, from the perspective of
Safe Sport in Canadian wrestling, it was a major policy failure that eviscerated WCL’s
professed commitment to Safe Sport.

The Evidence 

82. The only evidence properly before me consists of the testimony of the Claimant and
two other witnesses called by him, plus copies of emails and certain correspondence.

83. No issue was raised regarding the authenticity, nor the authorship of the documents
filed.

84. The documentary evidence is contained in Appendix “A” to this Decision. That
evidence, consisting of more than 150 pages, speaks for itself. I have read all of it
carefully and consider it to be admissible and relevant to the consideration of whether
and to what extent that the harassment complained of has occurred.1

85. As noted above, there has been no evidence whatsoever put forward by WCL as
Respondent. Indeed, as noted, there was a refusal to come forward with any evidence
whatsoever.

86. In addition, nothing whatsoever has been provided as evidence by the Affected
Parties, although Appendix “A” includes material emanating from each of the
Affected Parties. It has been properly submitted by the Claimant as either the recipient
or the author.

Claimant’s Evidence 

87. The Claimant is a former member of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police (RCMP).
Following that career, he received a degree of Doctor of Conflict Resolution from La

1  I am mindful of the SDRCC’s practice of publishing decisions in both official languages when decisions 
are released. In the circumstances of these proceedings, I suggest that, unless at some future time it 
becomes necessary for all or a portion of the documents in Appendix “A” to be introduced or referred 
to in some other proceeding, it would be acceptable for all practical purposes to use an artificial 
intelligence translation rather than to incur the costs of professional translation and the additional 
delays that would result. 
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Trobe University in Melbourne, Australia. He is currently the Deputy Chair of the 
Commonwealth Games Federation Ethics Commission. 

88. His principal regular job is with the Refugee Protection Division of the Immigration
Refugee Board. This involves significant contact and evaluation of the circumstances
of individuals who seek refugee status in Canada.

89. On 1 October 2019, the Claimant was appointed by WCL as CAO on a contract basis.
In that role, he was to deliver a complaints and appeals service for WCL.  Complaints
generally involve participants in the sport or people related to the sport, such as
parents, who come forward to assert that there had been a breach of the WCL Code of
Conduct, or harassment, or maltreatment. At the time of his appointment, the
Universal Code for the Prevention of Maltreatment in Sport had not yet been adopted,
so the position was initially based purely on the WCL Code of Conduct.

90. His second role as CAO was to act as an appeals officer, in which he established
hearing panels to hear appeals based on such issues as team selection, carding (under
the Sport Canada Athlete Assistance Program) and other sports-related issues. He did
not sit as a member of any such panels.

91. Both roles were quite similar. When he received either a complaint or an appeal, he
would conduct a triage to determine whether the complaint or appeal was receivable
under the applicable WCL discipline or appeal policy. If it was an appeal, he would
appoint a panel of one or three persons to hear the matter. If it was a discipline matter,
he could appoint a panel or, if it was a matter in which a panel would benefit from
having an investigation done, he would appoint an independent investigator. He
would basically act as the administrative control person at WCL to ensure that the two
policies (appeals or disciplinary matters) were followed in accordance with the
relevant WCL process.

92. There were relatively few discipline cases compared with appeals. Disciplinary
complaints related mainly to maltreatment and harassment. Upon receipt, he would
vet them from the perspective of the policy, the appropriate timing, the seriousness of
the event (to determine whether a provisional suspension was necessary to protect the
individuals involved) and the possible impact on the reputation of wrestling or sport
in Canada.

93. He would then determine whether an investigation was required or whether there
was sufficient prima facie evidence to send the matter directly to a discipline panel,
although the latter had never occurred. Everything that came to him relating to
disciplinary matters ultimately required an investigation to provide clarity to a
discipline panel so that it could be informed of all positions, not merely that of the
complainant.

94. Once the investigation was done, he would receive the report and, based on the
information contained in the report, he would determine whether a discipline panel
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was needed or not. There were instances where at the end of an investigation, the 
investigator might advise that it was not possible to reach a satisfactory conclusion 
that a breach of the Code of Conduct had taken place. In those cases, the Claimant 
would not send the matter to a panel.   

95. In other cases, the investigator might come back to say that there was evidence that
should be heard in front of a panel. He would then appoint a panel and provide
administrative support to it, booking all the steps that were necessary, providing
terms of reference to the panel, and providing a flow of paperwork in matters such as
invoicing.

96. Once a decision was reached by the panel, it would be passed back to WCL for its
follow up as the discipline policy required, which would include actions such as
posting the investigation report or the outcome of the appeal.

97. It was very much an administrative job. He had decision-making authority when
receiving a complaint and could exercise discretion in the initial evaluation of it. He
had discretion in determining which persons would be members of a disciplinary
panel or an appeal panel and in providing them with appropriate terms of reference.
He was never a member of a discipline panel.

98. The feedback that he received from Tamara Medwidsky, WCL’s Executive Director,
regarding his job performance as CAO was good. There had been no complaints from
anyone regarding the performance of his responsibilities, except for those emanating
from the Affected Parties.

99. Things went well for eight or nine months, until the commencement of a series of
emails sent by AP Spinney (followed by communications from the other Affected
Parties) arising from the possibility of an undisclosed relationship of AP Spinney with
Madison Parks. Apparently, a somewhat similar complaint had arisen at Western
University, where AP Spinney was a coach, that had led to a suspension. There was a
subsequent reinstatement. The Claimant asked AP Spinney for a copy of the report
that AP Spinney claimed had exonerated him. No such report was ever provided to
him. Based on that history, as CAO, he decided it was in the best interests of sport that
the matter be properly investigated.

100. A somewhat similar documentary issue arose with respect to AP Schiavulli, the
mother of Madison Parks, who claimed to be in possession of a power of attorney from
her adult daughter and to which she made many references and described herself as
the possessor of such a document. She had an additional email address –
“madisonparkspoa.” Despite requests to provide this, the document, assuming it
exists, no power of attorney has ever been provided.

101. In the end, the investigator appointed to determine whether an undeclared
relationship existed reported that he had been unable to establish that an undeclared
relationship between AP Spinney and Madison Park existed. Accordingly, no hearing
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before a panel was required. If AP Spinney had simply allowed the process to follow 
its normal course, this entire matter might never have arisen. 

102. The Claimant’s appointment as CAO was terminated by WCL on 15 September 2020.

103. There had been two whistleblower complaints received in early 2021 with respect to
AP Spinney. These are not directly involved in these proceedings but provide some
context to them.

104. One was from Lúcás Ó'Ceallacháin, who had been the WCL Director of High
Performance, responsible for assembling the national teams, for high performance
training, managing the three or four high performance contracts with different gyms
across Canada, basically dealing and managing Olympic, Pan American,
Commonwealth Games and world championship level athletes.  After leaving
Canada, he got a job with the Australian Sport Institute, which has a very good
reputation, dealing with high performance athletes. He currently resides in Perth,
Australia. He was one of two whistleblowers who brought the suspected conduct of
AP Spinney to the attention of WCL. As a whistleblower, he was effectively “finished”
in Canada, so he left for Australia, where he is now employed. Despite leaving Canada
he was effectively pursued by AP Shamiya, half way around the world, who contacted
the Australian sport authorities, such as Sport Integrity Australia, the Australian
Sports Commission and potential employers, which seriously affected his chances of
employment, caused extra police clearances to be required and was disruptive enough
to lead to the issuance of a cease-and-desist order directed at AP Shamiya. He had
never experienced anything like this and had worked in Russia, Kazakhstan, Finland,
Ireland, and other very different sport cultures. He had never met AP Shamiya.

105. The second was from Ed Zinger, whom AP Spinney accused of extorting him and
wrote that if Zinger did not quit wrestling within 48 hours, “I am going to make your
life miserable and post all these things about you.” He said he also had a recorded
conversation (that had been made surreptitiously by AP Shamiya) that he was going
to put up on the Internet.

106. To make a long story short, the two matters were joined and the complainants were
eventually successful in proceedings before a SDRCC panel. Both Ó'Ceallacháin and
Zinger encountered the delaying tactics that have marked the progress of these
proceedings. The cost awards by the arbitrators in their favour have never been paid.

Was There Harassment? 

107. This is the only issue to be decided in this appeal. Was the Claimant harassed and if
so, by whom?

108. At the time the matter of a possible undeclared relationship was raised, the definition
of harassment in the WCL Code of Conduct (June 2017) was reasonably general:
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“Participants are to refrain from any behaviour that constitutes harassment, where 
harassment is defined as improper conduct by an individual during a Wrestling 
Canada Lutte sanctioned or sponsored event or business activity and that the 
individual knew or ought reasonably to have known would cause offence or harm. It 
comprises objectionable act(s), comment(s) or display(s) that demean, belittle or cause 
personal humiliation or embarrassment, and any act of intimidation or threat.” 

109. The principles underlying this definition were made more precise in the WCL Safe
Sport Manual (2021) in which Harassment is defined as:

 A course of vexatious comment or conduct against a Participant or group, 
which is known or ought to be reasonably known to be unwelcome. Types of 
behaviour that constitute harassment include, but are not limited to: 

a) Written or verbal abuse, threats or outbursts;
b) Persistent unwelcome remarks …;

… 

e) Condescending or patronizing behaviour …;

… 

l) Behaviours such as those described above that are not directed towards a
specific person or group but have the same effect of creating a negative or
hostile environment; and

m) Retaliation or threats of retaliation against a person who reports
harassment to WCL.

110. The WCL Discipline Policy (July 2018) provides for a range of sanctions that may
include but are not limited “to-… (d) removal of certain privileges of membership for
a period of time … (f) suspension from all WCL activities for a period of time … (j)
suspension of funding from WCL or from other sources.”

111. Offensive characterizations of the Claimant by the Affected Parties included: racist,
bully, misogynist, racist homophobe and “you behave like a classic cop thug Frank
Fowlie it’s plain and simple.” I have deliberately not included every example of
harassment contained in the documents in Appendix “A”. They are there to be read,
if ever required, but odious and distasteful enough that they need not be repeated in
the body of this Decision.

112. There were also multiple threats of litigation clearly intended to intimidate the
Claimant, none of which appear to have been pursued.

113. AP Shamiya threatened to organize protests to the Minister of Immigration regarding
the Claimant’s role with the Immigration and Refugee Board.

114. The harassing conduct of the Affected Parties continued long after the Claimant had
ceased to have any connection or role with WCL and was clearly directed at
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attempting to ruin his reputation. In addition, the evidence is clear that the Claimant 
had an administrative role and that he never sat on any panels that affected the rights 
of the parties involved. The Affected Parties went out of their way to try to ruin his 
entire career. 

115. Copies of communications from the Affected Parties were sent to Kirsty Duncan
(Minister of Sport), Vicki Walker (Director of Sport Canada) and Steven Guilbault
(Minister of Heritage) who held those positions at that time. Copies were also sent to
Marie-Claude Asselin (Chief Executive Officer of the SDRCC), Tamara Medwidsky
(Executive Director WCL), the Prime Minister, and Anne Merklinger (CEO of Own the
Podium). The only purpose for such widespread distribution was to damage the
Claimant’s reputation.

116. The Claimant was accused by AP Spinney of mistreating a First Nations person whom
he had never met.

117. The Claimant was also accused of trading on his former RCMP career. In fact, he
scrupulously avoided doing so. Refugees from troubled parts of the world, based on
their own experiences, were often suspicious of police. It would have been much more
difficult for him to establish the relationship necessary to determine their real status
as refugees had he disclosed his former career. The only time he acknowledged his
first career was in response to someone who said she had been in the Royal Canadian
Air Force.

118. The harassment campaign orchestrated by the Affected Parties took its toll on the
Claimant. It caused a great deal of stress, required medication, led to a thyroidectomy,
deafness in his left ear for six weeks and generally affected his health, psyche, and
sense of well-being. He even consulted the RCMP, who advised him that the conduct
to date of the Affected Parties was clearly harassment, but that it had not risen to the
level of criminal harassment. The RCMP did speak to AP Spinney, but to no effect.

119. I am more than satisfied that the Claimant has established that he was the victim of a
deliberately orchestrated vindictive campaign of aggressive harassment by all three of
the Affected Parties.

120. The Claimant was also the victim of what I infer to have been a deliberate failure of
WCL to enforce its own Safe Sport rules when it became aware of the nature and extent
of the harassment organized by the Affected Parties against one of its own appointed
officials. I find that WCL was aware of the harassment and that it did nothing about
it, other, perhaps, than to terminate the Claimant’s position.

121. I make no comment on or Order with respect to the regular employment of any
Affected Party. Whatever arrangements they may have in place are not before me and
I have no wish to interfere in any manner with their employment relationships.

122. Accordingly, I declare that the Claimant’s appeal is allowed.
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123. AP Spinney is hereby declared to be suspended from all positions with or designated
by WCL, from receiving any financial support from WCL, from participating in any
activities within, organized or sponsored by WCL, including any role relating to
Canadian teams participating in any events, effective upon the communication of this
Decision until 30 days following the conclusion of the 2028 Olympic and Paralympic
Games.

124. AP Shamiya is hereby declared to be suspended from all positions with or designated
by WCL, from receiving any financial support from WCL, from participating in any
activities within, organized or sponsored by WCL, including any role relating to
Canadian teams participating in any events, effective upon the communication of this
Decision until 30 days following the conclusion of the 2028 Olympic and Paralympic
Games.

125. AP Schiavulli is hereby declared to be suspended from all positions with or designated
by WCL, from participating in any activities within, organized or sponsored by WCL,
including any role relating to Canadian teams participating in any, events effective
upon the communication of this Decision until 30 days following the conclusion of the
2028 Olympic and Paralympic Games.

126. The Claimant has indicated that, should his appeal be allowed, he will be making
submissions regarding costs, pursuant to Section 5.14 of the Code. Since this is known
at the time of issuing my Decision in this matter, it seems more efficient to deal with
the issue of such submissions in advance. Accordingly, cost submissions from the
Claimant shall be received on or before 29 November 2024 and shall be limited to 10
pages. Submissions from the Affected Parties and the Respondent shall be received on
or before 6 December 2024 and shall be limited to 10 pages.

127. Should any awards in respect of costs be granted, the suspensions noted above shall
be extended until WCL certifies that such cost awards have been paid in full and files
confirmation(s) accordingly with the SDRCC.

MONTREAL, this 22nd day of November 2024 

________________________________ 

Richard W. Pound, CC, KC 

Arbitrator 
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From: "complaints@wrestling.ca" < complaints@wrestling.ca> 
Date: Tuesday, February 23, 2021 at 1:46 PM 
To: "Dave@  "madiparks@ <madiparks@
Cc: "cayleyt@  <cayleyt@
Subject: Appointment of an Independent Investigator 

Dear Mr .  Spinney and Ms. Parks, 

Further to my previous correspondences with you on February 3, 2021, it is my opin ion that 
reasonable g rounds exist to appo int an I ndependent I nvestigator to look into a potential violation of 
the WCL Code of Conduct: 

Participants shal l  not have sexual relations, or sexua l  intimacy of any description,  with any 
other participant he/she has access to in the sport environment if the participant is under the 
age of 18 years of age. If the participant is 18 years of age or older and if  there exists a 
significant imbalance of power with respect to the relationship between the participants which 
could reasonably jeopardize effective decision making given the existence or nature of the 
sexual relations or sexual intimacy, a written disclosure is required to enable assessment and 
appropriate action. 

Ms. Thomas wil l  be fact finding and i nterviewing witnesses to determine if a violation occurred . 

I have previously pointed out to you that if a relationship does, or has, exist(ed) between you that you 
may make a declaration as requ i red by the Code of Conduct. 

Mr. Spinney, I have asked you for a copy of the investigation you say was carried out by university in 
the past. You indicate that this investigation exonerated you . You may wish to provide a copy of the

report, or an authorization to obtain  the report from the university to Ms. Thomas. You also indicated 
that there was an i nvestigation carried out i n  2018. I have verified this cla im and I can confirm that 
while you may have been i nterviewed as part of the 'Bennet Report' that no investigation took p lace 
at that t ime. 

Should the i nvestigation ind icate that there was a breach of the Code of Conduct a Discip l ine Panel 
maybe convened. 

Please feel free to write to me at any point should you have any questions or feedback for me. 

Best regards, 

Dr. Frank Fowlie 
Complaints and Appeals Officer 
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Frank Fowlie 

From: 
Sent: 

To: 

Cc: 

Subject 

Dear Frank Fowlie, 

Shamiya, Ahmed 
February 24, 2021 1 :1 8  PM 
kirsty.duncan@  vicki.walker@  mcasselin@

complaints@wrestling.ca;  Tamara Medwidsky; Guilbeault, Honorable 
Steven (PCH) 
dave@
Response to Frank Fowlie's Demeaning Comments 

I just found out what you said to VOWL member 

You said; 
" ... rather than trying to have a meaningful conversation, you are using your email for purposes beyond the 
actual communication. I was hoping that we could continue a conversation based on trust and mutual respect, 
but I fear that is not your choice." 

What an awful accusation to make against a mother of an abused child who has selflessly dedicated hundreds 
of volunteer hours advocating to make wrestling safer. If you had not declined to get the "other side of the 
story" you might have known that. 

If you had all the facts (you are selective about what you want to hear) you would realize that not only was 
 correct in  copying others on her communication with you but that she would have been careless if 

she d idn't copy all those people. Including others in emails was done to ensure maximum transparency in 
real-time. I am not surprised that a man who has already been found to be lacking credibi lity is so obviously 
irritated by transparency. 

You have impugned  motivations in the same way you impugned the motivations of much 
smaller women when your meal was not to your satisfaction. As a man of colour, I have many times 
witnessed white men attempting to use their position of power and privilege to belittle others exactly as you are 
doing now. You are a bully plain and simple. Canadian sport in 2021 needs to be done with bul l ies and I want 
to be part of the solution . Real men stand up to bull ies. I have no control if you leave Canadian sport, but I will 
do my best to have you leave the sport of wrestl ing. 

, I would recommend never communicating with this bully again .  You are wasting your words with this 
man. Did you notice how he only responded to parts of your email? Professional fact-finders have already 
found Frank Fowlie to have changed h is notes in order to paint himself in a better light. As a result of his 
sne�ky behaviour h is credibil ity was called into question. Men that behave this way wil l  simply change the 
facts to fit the narrative .... my recommendation is that you ignore this guy and continue your efforts 
towards advocating to the government for a solution. 

Tamara, I am really big on forgiveness but Frank Fowlie has not reformed h is bullying ways. I will be 
emailing you separately to find out how I can make a complaint against the complaints officer. I have several 
things I want to say about th is man . Among other things, I find it horrible that when some people call h im to 
complain about bad things happening in wrestl ing h is recommendation is to go for a beer in order to try and 
solve problems (I have l iterally heard the audio recording) but when it suits h is agenda Frank Fowlie takes a 
very different approach. I still can't believe that after everything that has gone on in wrestling, this man is our 
Complaints Officer. 

1 
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From: "complaints@wrestling.ca" <complaints@wrestling.ca> 
Date: Wednesday, March 24, 2021 at 11:35 AM 
To: "'Durant, E rin'" 
Subject: Systemic investigation update 

Dear All , 

I am writ ing to advise you that I have appointed Erin Durant to act as the I ndependent Investigator on 
this matter. After careful review with Daniele, who I had previously appointed, we have concluded 
that this matter is  best handled and eval uated by a lawyer during the investigation phase. 

I have included Erin's emai l address so that you can include it i n  your "safe senders" l ist. 

Should you have any questions for me, please feel free to reach out at any t ime. 

Thank you. 

Best regards, 

Dr. Frank Fowlie 
Compla ints and Appeals Officer 
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Frank Fowlie 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Dear Tamara, 

Ahmed Shamiya 
April12, 2 0 21 9:29 AM 
tamara@  
eamonn dorgan; David Spinney; cayleyt@  complaints@wrestling.ca 

Concerns About Frank Fowlie 

I wanted to let you know that if the Board of Directors is not will ing to replace Frank Fowlie, I will be call ing for 
an open discussion in the wrestling community regarding his role in wrestling. 

As I have described previously, this man's very public record of abuse and d ishonesty should have been 
enough to d isqualify him for the job, but I have come into new information that makes his involvement with 
wrestling even more problematic. 

Also, I wanted to let you know that I am deeply d isturbed about an incident involving Cayley Thomas, who is a 
lawyer. She has made it clear to me that Frank Fowlie is giving her important instructions and exercising a lot 
of power within her investigation of Madison Parks, who is a young woman I am supporting because of years 
of harassment she has suffered in wrestl ing. I spoke with Madison Parks' mother (who is her Power of 
Attorney) and she described that on February 23, 2021, both Frank Fowlie and Caylee Thomas were told to 
have no contact with Madison Parks and that Madison was only to be contacted once an official complaint was 
being sent to a Panel.  Madison's mom described the negative impact that Ms. Thomas's contact had on 
Madison. Madison was in the United States training,  and Madison cut her training short because she felt 
dejected and powerless. She said Madison felt completely deflated because she is in a sport in which her 
right not to be contacted isn't even respected. 

What has happened to Madison is another reason why the role of Frank Fowlie needs to be considered, 
although the main reason I want his role examined is because of his transparent double standard involving 

. When it comes to safety issues, there should never be double-standards. Now that I have 
learned more about what has happened to  over the last 5 years, the willingness of wrestl ing 
leadership to d iscriminate based on race, sexuality, and gender needs to be addressed. When it comes to the 
abuse suffered by a woman who has been d iscriminated against because of her race, sexuality, and gender 
(  is a BIPOC queer woman}, Frank Fowlie recommends "going for a beer" with WCL leadership. 
However, when it comes to others (who just happen to be the enemies of wrestling leadership}, Frank Fowlie 
seems to apply a completely d ifferent standard. 

I have 2 questions, will the WCL board of d irectors be will ing to: 

A) Replace Frank Fowlie;
or
B) Call a Town-Hall meeting with the wrestling community in order to d iscuss concerns about Frank Fowlie

If WCL fails to do either, then I will be forced to reach out to the wrestling community myself and d iscuss why it 
is a very bad idea to have a man l ike Frank Fowlie involved with wrestling at this critical time. For example, I 
have spoken with a woman who was sexually assaulted in wrestling (a woman who I have been encouraging 
to come forward) and she has told me that she will not d isclose the abuse she has suffered to a man like 
Frank Fowlie. {This woman has already provided a statutory declaration of the abuse she has suffered to 
Sport Canada). 

Regards, 
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Ahmed Shamiya 
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Frank Fowlie 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 

Subject 
Attachments: 

Ms. Thomas, 

Madison Parks < madisonparkspoa@
April12, 2 0 21 12:46 PM 
cayleyt@

dave@ ahmed.a.shamiya@  tamara@ ; 
vicki.walker@  complaints@wrestling.ca 

Publ ic Sham ing of Madison Parks 
Scan 2021-4-9 12.52.42.pdf 

When you spoke with Madison you told her that the evidence that was supportive of the allegations of a sexual 
relationship came from 2 people. 

The first person is an abusive ex-boyfriend from 6 years ago. 

The second person is a powerful wrestl ing official Ed Zinger {who has been harassing ,  demeaning, and 
defaming Madison for years). You specifically said that Ed Zinger provided 2 pieces of information that you 
refer to as evidence "supportive" of a sexual relationship.  The 2 pieces of evidence are: 

• Ed Zinger was told by Madison Park's training partner, , that Madison Parks had a 
relationship with David Spinney.

• At the Olympic trials in  201 5, Madison Parks' mother asked him to speak to her because she "wasn't
making good decisions."

Incredibly, and d isgustingly, both you and Frank Fowlie cared very l ittle for confidentiality and went out into 
the wrestling community to shame and humiliate Madison by telling members of her peer group about these 
horrible allegations. You recklessly went "fish ing for evidence" that could possibly substantiate the salacious 
allegations made against Madison .... allegations that were clearly reprisals. 

What you DID NOT DO however is start by simply checking with either me or  to see whether or 
not Ed Zinger's so called "evidence" was corroborated by the same women he referenced in his statement to 
you .... evidence that you said was "supportive" of a sexual relationship. 

Let's set aside for a moment the real reason why you d idn't seek to speak to either me or  to 
corroborate Ed Zinger's evidence. 

As you can see from the attachment, I suspected last week that you would not reach out to  and so 
I did your job for you. The attached letter from  confirms that Ed Zinger is lying and it confirms how 
the abusive ex-boyfriend was smearing Madison's reputation after she ended the relationship. 

I can also confirm that I have NEVER asked Ed Zinger to speak to Madison Parks. S ince 2014 I have wanted 
to confront Zinger about his harassing and unwelcome obsession with my daughter, but Madison is very non­
confrontational and until very recently she has always asked me to just be civil with this man. Madison has 
always been fearful of Ed Zinger's immense power in the wrestling community and so she wanted to avoid any 
conflict with h im.  

Regarding the real reason why you and Frank Fowlie went into the wrestling community to share these 
allegations without first seeking out the most obvious and appropriate witnesses, I think that these answers will 
best be found in the upcoming litigation against WCL, Ed Zinger, Frank Fowlie, and possibly you Ms. 
Thomas. Madison and I have discussed it and because you are a woman working in Canadian sport we will 
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give you an opportunity to have a without-prejudice conversation with us prior to the filing of Madison's lawsuit 
to see if we can achieve an amicable resolution. The misogynist Frank Fowlie will not receive the same 
opportunity. 

Regards, 
Mara Schiavull i  
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Frank Fowlie 

From: 
Sent 
To: 
Cc: 

Subject: 

Dear Tamara, 

Madison Parks < madisonparkspoa@
April14, 2 0 21 6:52 AM 
tamara@  

madiparks@  dave@  cayleyt@ moedorg@
ahmed.a.shamiya@ complaints@wrestling.ca; 
vicki.walker@
Please Help Madison Parks 

My name is Mara Schiavulli and I am the mother and Power of Attorney for Madison Parks, who is copied on 
th is email. 

We are requesting your help. Madison is concerned that Frank Fowlie may not accurately and honestly 
provide her information that she was told she would receive. Allow me to expla in: 

In the near-term, Madison will be suing Ed Zinger, Lucas 6'Ceallachain, Frank Fowlie, and possibly others 
(based on what her lawyer ultimately decides}. 

The reason that she will be suing Frank Fowlie is because Mr. Fowlie recklessly participated in 
Lucas 6'Ceallachain's reprisals. Madison takes the position that Mr. Fowlie knew, or ought to have known, 
that Mr. 6'Ceallachain's complaint was l ikely a reprisal. Madison takes the position that Mr. Fowlie knew, or 
ought to have known, that the negl igent (or grossly negligent) manner in which he responded to 
Mr. 6'Ceallachain's reprisal would harm Madison. 

Please let me know if you want me to provide you more details describing how Mr. Fowlie was negligent or 
grossly negl igent. 

I am telling you about Mr. Fowlie because we need information that is in his possession. He now has the final 
report of Cayley Thomas who is the lawyer that he h ired and/or appointed to investigate the complaint made 
by Mr. 6'Ceallachain against my daughter. 

During the investigation Madison was told that she would be informed of the outcome of the investigation and 
the rationale for Ms. Thomas's conclusion. 
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Unfortunately, because of Mr. Fowlie's track record we are afraid that he will not be truthful in  providing this 
information. Please read this: 

 

This article speaks about Frank Fowlie. It says: "In the five-page decision, posted on the CTA's website, the
agency not only ruled against Mr. Fowlie but questioned his credibility and concluded his behaviour 
during the flight was "abusive and offensive." The media report describes Mr. Fowlie as "intimidating and
aggressive". It was so bad that one of the managers said Mr. Fowlie "could have put the safety of the 
crew and the operation of the aircraft at risk" and that it was necessary to contact airport security. 

Obviously this article gives us some insight into Mr. Fowlie's nasty character as a bully, however I d raw your 
attention to what is said about Mr. Fowlie's honesty. This is what is most concerning to Madison and I right 
now. 

Mr. Fowlie's arguments are described by the Tribunal as "implausible" and the Tribunal questioned how 
someone in h is position could make such claims. The tribunal specifically questioned Mr. Fowlie's credibil ity 
and described how he changed his notes in order to help his position. 

Tamara, we can all see that Frank Fowlie is a man who is: 
A. willing to be a bully when people don't bend to h is will, and
B. willing to change documentary evidence if he believes it will help him

For this reason can WCL please take steps to ensure that your latest "independent" hire Mr. Fowlie does not 
change any of the documentary evidence and please immediately inform Madison of the outcome of the 
investigation and the rationale for Ms. Thomas's conclusion. 

Thank you, 
Mara 

2 



Frank Fowlie 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

David Spinney 
May 2, 2 0 21 9:58 PM 
Durant, Erin; complaints@wrestling.ca; Walker, Vicki (PCH); Tamara Medwidsky 
eamonn dorgan 
Re: WCLinvestigation - lucas O'Ceallachain Complaint 

Dear Director General Walker, Frank Fowlie, Ms. Durant, and Tamara/WCL, 

As a preliminary matter, I draw your attention to WCL's repeated unwill ingness to respect d i rections regarding 
contact. This is now the second instance in recent times in which I specifically directed agents of WCL to have no 
contact regarding Lucas's reprisals until the al legations are sent to a Panel, and yet once again, I am ignored .  Yesterday, 
I spent 6 hours re-reading al l  of my correspondence with WCL employees, WCL coaches, and WCL Directors since 2015
and I find it noteworthy that I have never once ignored a d i rect request to have no contact with any person from WCL, 
and yet agents of WCL have now twice ignored my request. Is this harassment? 

Ms. Durant's Email 

I remind all of you what Frank Fowl ie has a l ready said about Lucas 6'Ceal lachain's "complaint". Frank Fowl ie's has 
stated "I am considering i t  to be a systemic violation of the Code of Conduct, as  opposed to a s ingle t ime breach. I h ave 

read the var ious ema ils and have interviewed the i mpacted staff. I believe the systemic compla int to be weli 

formulated, and that an individual who is a coach with WCL ought to have reasonably known that these 

com m unications were offensive, harass ing, or generally d isrespectful  or inappropriate.�� 

Frank Fowlie has also declined to see evidence/information that I previously offered to p rovide. In an amazing display 
of clairvoyance M r. Fowlie has decided that the information I offered does not have "any relation to the matter at hand

concerning the Code of Conduct allegations" 

It has a l ready been explained that it is not the investigator but M r. Fowlie who u ltimately decides whether 
allegations/complaints proceed to a Panel, and so at this point the only thing I have to say to Ms. Durant about these 
transparent reprisals of WCL leadership (Insidious Tactic #1) is: 

• Harassment in sport is indeed a very serious matter.
• I am pleased to be a voice for the VOWL group  that continues to expose a buse and harassment within the

sport of wrestling. I wil l  continue to advocate for athlete safety.
• If you truly want my "s ide of the story", then go and read All OF MY COMMUNICATION with WCL,

since Lucas O'Ceal lachain was hired. You wi l l  see that I stand up to the powerful on behalf of the
powerless. Let this email official ly serve as my consent for you to access all emails I have sent to WCL
since Lucas 6'Ceallachain was h i red. This includes all communication I have had with WCL lawyer Jordan
Goldblatt.

1 would  a lso strongly encourage Ms. Durant to speak to the Head Wrestling Coach of York University Coach Eamonn 
Dorgan (who is copied on this email) and he wil l  provide you information about Lucas O'Ceal lachain's abuse of 

. The information Coach Dorgan wi l l  provide you wil l  demonstrate in precise detail why the police had 
to be contacted and why it was essentia l  that somebody stood up and d irected Lucas O'Ceallachain to have no-contact 
with  as we entered 2021. Coach Dorgan will explain how  had multiple times 
attempted to access the WCL Discipline Process in order to keep herself safe and how WCL's fake "independent" 
lawyers engaged in shameful behaviour meant to silence her. 
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Director-General Walker you are being included on this email  so that there is a publ ic record establishing that you are 
being kept apprised in " real-time" regarding serious safety issues. This is another text-book example of how WCL 
weaponizes its Discipline Policy in order to engage in reprisals against those who speak out against abuse (Insidious 
Tactic #1). 

When I sent you a l l  of those letters and statutory declarations in December 2020 it dearly established how WCL has 
been able to engage in 5 Insidious Tactics that a re meant to discourage victims from disclosing abuse to the police and 
sports authorities, and now you continue to see with you r  own eyes more examples of exactly how WCL does this. 

For example, what Frank Fowlie/WCL did to Madison Parks these past few months was precisely the kind of reprisals 
that we have been describing to you for years. I am sure you remember when Madison copied you when she 
reprimanded Frank Fowlie for his treatment of her. I regret to inform you Ms. Walker that immediately after M ad ison 
criticized Frank Fowlie, he publicly shamed her by sending correspondence to Madison's peer group in the wrestling 
community describing the salacious and humi l iating complaint that HPD lucas made against her. This may seem 
difficult to bel ieve b ut it actua l ly happened (less difficult to believe when you investigate Frank Fowl ie's past 
behaviour). 

It is important for you to know that not only d id the investigator/lawyer exonerate Madison, but the investigator 
confirmed that: 

• When HPD Lucas made h is complaint to Frank Fowlie he provided no evidence other than to say that
he had heard rumours.

• The only allegations that the investigator/lawyer could find came from two people. The first was an
abusive ex-boyfrien d  who was In his second  year of university when he began sexually grooming 15
year-old Madison Parks (grade 10). The investigator/lawyer was provided evidence that this man
stalked and abused Madison after she ended the relationship. The other allegation came from the
powerful wrestling official Ed Zinger. You will remember that you were provided very serious evidence
concerning Ed Zinger just days before Mr. Zinger made those allegations to the WCL investigator­
classic WCL reprisals. You may find It interesting that the only evidence that Ed Zinger could provide
the WCL investigator was to say that about 5 years ago 2 women told h im that Madison was in a
relationsh ip with me, however the 2 women he referenced have stated in writing that Mr. Zinger is
lying.

I ask you to remember that VOWL member  sent you correspondence in August of 2020 describing how 
violating privacy discourages victims from coming forward to disclose abuse. I am compelled to ask you Director­
General Walker, as the most powerful woman in Canadian sport, does Frank Fowlie's decision to publ icly shame

Madison trouble you? I am sure you remember what the Bennett Report said about WCl leadership engaging in 
breaches of confidential information. 

I encourage you to go back and re-read the statements from the survivors of sexual abuse I am supporting and imagine 
how it would feel to carry that terrible burden knowing that coming forward to the police or sports authorities wil l  
a lmost certainly result in WCl leadership reprising against you. 

Perhaps you as the Director-General of Sport can write those victims of sexual  violence assuring them that when it 
comes to the independent men that WCL hires "4-times-a-charm" .  You could tell victims to forget about WCL's previous 
"independent" men Brian Ward, Adam Klevinas and Andrew Furgiuele. I am sure you remember when Sport 
Canada/Minister of Sport/Athlete Helpl ine d i rected victims to contact those 3 fake independent lawyers. Perhaps you 
might tel l  survivors that this time it's real .. . this time they should trust the 4th man WCL has hired in the last 3 
years. Perhaps you have the courage to tel l  victims that Frank Fowlie is independent, neutral, and that he  creates no 
apprehension of bias. 
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Perhaps you can tel l those victims to forget a bout what Frank Fowlie just did to Madison Parks. Tel l  those victims to 
ignore what happened to , and other athletes who tried to speak out against abuse. Tell those victims 
that what WCl's HPD lucas did to  at the last Canada Cup is no b ig deal . .. that queer female athletes

should expect and accept that kind of terrifying treatment from powerful men in wrestling. 

Frank Fowlie constantly reminds us that he is an ex-RCMP officer and so perhaps you, as the most powerful woman in 
sport, can explain to Black and Indigenous victims of sexual violence that they should have ful l  confidence in a retired 
Caucasian RCMP officer from the 1980's or 90's who has a disturbing tribunal record of abusing those who he perceives 
as less powerful than him. Perhaps, you you can tell victims of sexua l  violence that when it comes to hearing their 
disclosures of abuse in wrestling Frank Fowlie is the right man for the job. 

You can be the person who tells victims that they should just go to the police and not to worry a bout the impact that 
going to cou rt will have on their involvement with Wrestling Canada .  You can tell victims not to worry about 
reprisa ls. You can ask victims to forget about the very publ ic video of the Wrestling Canad a  President throwing himself 
to the ground and cla iming he was assaulted the l ast time an abused athlete involved the courts. (By the way, I have to 
ask . . . .  do you find it almost unbel ievable that after the Bennett Report and a l l  of the ugliness involving the long-time 
WCl President, that he d idn't have the sense of decency to simply say, "For the sake of the sport of wrestling, I think

it's best that I resign from this volunteer position"? But of course, he didn't resign. You have audio recordings of h im 
violating the privacy of  members of  the wrestling community exactly as the Bennett Report spoke about. The WCl 
President is part of the top WCL leadership that David Bennett specifical ly said that he was NOT given the mandate to 
investigate. 

Perhaps you might reassure victims and tell them that it's perfectly acceptable that the Sport Law and Strategy Group 
showed up  to run WCL's Safety Town Hal l  just a few months ago, even after SLSG lawyer Adam Klevinas was exposed 
engaging in abhorrent and dangerous behaviour in support of SLSG's long-time cl ient (WCL). You can tel l  victims to 
ignore the fact that the SLSG started the Town Hal l  meeting describing how powerful the F i rm is (Steve lndig said at 
the Town Hal l  that they now have over 1000 sport organizations as cl ients) . Tell those victims to erase from their 
memories how the SLSG intimidates survivors of a buse by saying that even Sport Canada is a client of the SLSG. Tel l  
those victims to forget how Sport Canada personal ly endorsed Adam Klevinas by name as a man who should receive 
a l legations against WCl leadershi p. (This is one of the greatest scandals in a l l  of Canadian sport ... even b igger than 
what is happening in just wrestling alone). 

You can tell victims who have been abused by Ontario Amateur  Wrestling Association leadership not to worry about the 
fact that the lawyer Jordan Goldblatt was acting as a l itigation lawyer for Ontario Wrestling at the same time that he 
was representing Wrestling Canada Lutte in chi ld welfare matters. Why don't you ask one of your  Government of 
Canada lawyers who sometimes sends us emails to expla in to us how it's perfectly OK for litigation lawyers to represent 
both Ontario Wrestling and Wrestling Canada (the national sport organization whose constitution says that it is 
supposed to handle the d iscipl ine of Ontario Wrestl ing). Or perha ps independent Investigator Ms. Durant, who recently 
publicly expressed interest in some of Mr. Goldblatt's professional work, can provide her professional opinion regarding 
whether or not Mr. Goldblatt's decisions to represent both the PSO and NSO has made victims more or Jess l ikely to 
bring their d isclosures about Ontario Wrestling leadership forward? I am curious if a female lawyer thinks decisions like 
this makes sport safer. 

Perhaps Ms. Walker you can tell victims to ignore the reprisals that are taking place against me as we speak. Tell them 

to forget about the fact that when Coach Eamonn Dorgan spent an hour on the phone with Frank Fowlie detai l ing the 
abuse of  at the hands of WCL leadership, he recommended that Coach Dorgan go for a beer with WCL 
leadersh ip, but when 1 sent the abusive HPD lucas an email warning him to quit harassing , Frank 
Fowl ie h ired 3 separate investigators to try and substantiate the al legations HPD Lucas made against me. 

Ms. Walker you have clearly been comfortable endorsing both the lawyers and the dispute resolution system designed
and control led by lawyers who profiteer from this dangerous system ( lawyers who boast a bout their relationship with 
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Frank Fowlie 

From: 
Sent 

To: 
Cc: 

Subject: 

Mr. Fowlie, 

Madison Parks < madisonparkspoa@
May 2, 2021 1 0:1 9 PM 
complaints@wrestl ing.ca 
tamara@wrestling.ca; vicki.walker@
ahmed.a.shamiya@  dave@  moedorg@

Request to Mitigate Damages

I 'm sure you have already realized that you let your  emotions get the better of you again .  You wil l  be sued for 
your  abhorrent behaviour. 

Please understand that even if VOWL achieves a resolution with WCL Madison Parks will not be providing you 
indemnity from legal action. 

Madison wants the court to have evidence that you were given an opportunity to help mitigate the damage you 
caused. 

We have 2 requests of you.  

1. Will you immediately send a letter to Madison unreservedly apologizing for communicating with her
wrestling peer g roup about details of the false and salacious allegation of the former HPD? This will bring a
measure of relief for Madison.

2. Will you immediately send a letter to everyone who you shared details about the former HPD's false and
salacious al legations indicating that the investigator completed her investigation and determined that the
allegations were u nsubstantiated? This will bring a measure of relief for Madison .

Please advise as soon as possible. 

Mara Schiavull i  
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Frank Fowlie 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Dear Frank Fowlie, 

David Spinney 
May 3, 2021 1 2:45 PM 
complaints@wrestling.ca 
Durant, Erin; Tamara Medwidsky 
Re: Discipline Policy 

All of the voices of our VOWL Group a re directly involved in the a l legations of WCL's former High-Performance 
Director. These false a l legations are part of the same campaign of targeted reprisals that the former HPD began in 
2018. Everyone I have included in emails would a l l  be called as witnesses in this Discipline Proceedings. 

Director-General Walker has been kept apprised of these reprisals for many years ( long before your  involvement in 
wrestling) and has advised victims with respect to these matters and so I will continue to keep her apprised. She would  
also be called as  a witness i n  these Discipline proceedings as  Sport Canada/Government of  Canada was d i rectly involved 
in the endorsement of Brian Ward and Adam Klevinas. These fake "independent" men are d i rectly involved in these 
a l legations concerning both M adison and myself. 

But perhaps you wou ld have known a l l  of this if you hadn't so arrogantly dismissed the evidence that I offered to send 
you. Do you remember when you said that the information I offered does not have "any relation to the matter at hand 

concerning the Code of Conduct a l legations" 

I can assure you that a l l  of the people who I h ave included i n  my correspondence had more to do 
with these discipl ine proceedings than those people in  Madison's peer group who you contacted to share Lucas's 
salacious a l legations . .. you sure showed Madison who's boss when you publicly shamed her didn't you Frank 
Fowlie. You must have felt like a real tough guy when you got your revenge against Madison for scolding you i n  front of 
Sport Canada. 

You behave like a classic former cop thug Frank Fowlie, p lain and s imple. This is why WCL hired you.  With you r  terrible 
treatment of Madison Parks, you have certain ly l ived up to your bill ing as a misogynist who is willing to demean and 
shame those who do not sufficiently bend to your wil l .  

I realize that you a re desperate for something . . .  anything that you can use to retal iate. I appreciate that it must sting 
real izing that we a l l  know that a tribunal has a l ready found that you are an abusive angry man who is willing to engage 
in deceitful practices in order to fit your false narratives ... literally the perfect fit for WCLI 

Perhaps instead of sending me sil ly emails as you desperately try to regain a bit of face, you should spend more time 
trying to come up with a counterclaim for the lawsuit that you wil l  soon be defending. Perhaps you can try and figure 
how you will handle the questioning of 's extremely talented sister as you explain under oath why you 
think the abuse  has suffered should be addressed by Coach Eamonn Dorgan going out for a beer with WCL 
leadership. 

Those are all interesting thoughts for the weeks to come, but I asked you a question yesterday and so I expect an  
answer within the timeframe I gave you. 

Ms. Durant, I am including you on this email so that you can see for yourself that the positions I take in my
correspondence are measured against the kind  of " power" that I am deal ing with. Even though athletes who I care for 
very deeply are suing Tamara, I have never spoken to Tamara this way. The harshest words I ever had with 
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Further to my email to you on February 23, 2021, I am resending you the WCL discipl ine policy, and 
draw your attention to section to Section 27: 

CONFIDENTIALITY 
27. The d iscipl i ne process is confidential. Once i nitiated and unti l  a decision is  released, none of
those i nvolved wi l l  d isclose confidentia l  i nformation relating to the on-going process to any person not
involved i n  the proceedings.

I note from your most recent correspondence that Ms. Walker and Mr Dorgan are not i nvolved i n  the 
present proceeding. 

Best regards, 

Dr. Frank Fowlie 
Complaints and Appeals Officer 
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Frank Fowlie 

From: 

Sent: 

To: 
Cc: 

David Spinney 
June 29, 2021 3:45 PM 
complaints@wrestl ing.ca 
Eamonn Dorgan 

Subject: Re: Investigator's Report 

Hi Frank, 

Please provide an address whereby you can be served legal documents. Thanks and Happy Canada Day, 

Dave 

David W. Spinney, President 
M.A. (Econ.) CfM® FCSf®

AUTUS WEALTH I CAPITAL 

From: complaints@wrestling.ca <complaints@wrestling.ca> 
Sent: Tuesday, J une 29, 2021 4:21:38 PM 
To: compla ints@wrestling.ca <complaints@wrestling.ca> 
Subject: Investigator's Report 

Please be advised that the I nvestigator's report been received and forwarded to the Panel per 
Section 1 6  of the D iscip l ine Policy.  You wi l l  be advised of the Panel's decision to accept the 
compla int and report in due course. 

Thank you ,  and Happy Canada Day 

Best regards ,  

Dr.  F ra n k  Fowlie 
Com plaints and Appeals  Officer 

 .ca 
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Frank Fowlie 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 

Subject: 

Attachments: 

Dear WCL, 

David Spinney 
July 5, 2021 4: 1 6  PM 
Tamara Medwidsky; Jordan Goldblatt; complaints@wrestling.ca 
Ahmed Shamiya; eamonn dorgan;  Erin Durant (she/her) 
For Review 
Notice (23.9 KB) 

I find it extremely unfortunate that we couldn't achieve a resolution. 

As you may know,  has now initiated her lawsuit against all parties. Madison Parks and others will commence 
legal proceedings shortly. 

We warned WCL that if we could not achieve a resolution that 's would retain legal counsel to advocate on 
her behalf. For your  reference I am forwarding you an emai l  I sent WCL on December 24, 2020, regarding

. It is truly horrible what WCL, and others have done to this incredible . 

Further, please be informed that our group has been contacted by TSN, hoping to p ublish an expose on WCL and 
's case. 

I have asked  not to speak to the media and so I hope it is becoming even more clear to WCL that I h ave 
always attempted to escalate concerns very slowly. Even though I h ave been wil l ing to escalate concerns in my efforts 
to assist abused ath letes I have tried to s imultaneously min imize the damage that the sport of wrestl ing suffers publ icly. 

Frank Fowlie, now that you are personally named in 's lawsuit you may view this as a wake-u p  cal l .  I 
will be watching how the court views your  very clear double standards towards complaints. When a n  enemy of WCL 
leadership makes an a l legation of a buse, you tel l  them they should try and go for a beer, but when abusive WCL staff 
make an a l legation against the man who is exposing abuse you immediately hire 2 lawyers and a police officer ... truly 
amazing! Good luck to you Fran k. Perhaps you thought you could come i nto the sport of wrestling and treat athletes 
and coaches the way you treat airl ine staff, but it was never going to be permitted on my watch. I trust you wil l  behave 
more professionally moving forward - if, in fact, your  role with WCL remains intact, which at this point seems doubtful 
to me. Regardless, I wil l  make it my goal to ensure that you wil l  feel some lasting effects from your tenure at WCL. 

You have advised me that the report of Erin Durant has been sent to a Panel, and so kindly provide me the report 
immediately. It is withi n  your  power to do so. I expect to receive the report by the end of the day tomorrow. Fai lure to 
provide m e  with the report wil l  only complicate your growing legal problems. CCC 346 ( 1.3) ( 2) 

Thanks, 

Dave 

David W. Spinney, President 
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of WCL who are u nder WCL jurisdiction and who are subject to the UCCMS and the pol icies of 

WCL, as well as a l l  people employed by, contracted by, or engaged i n  activities with , WCL includ ing ,  

but not l imited to, employees, contractors, Athletes, coaches, instructors, officials, volunteers, 

managers ,  admi nistrators, committee members, parents or guard ians,  spectators at WCL­
sanctioned 

Events, and Directors and Officers. 

"Harassment" - A course of vexatious comment or conduct against a Participant or g roup, which is  

known or ought to reasonably be known to be unwelcome. Types of behaviour that constitute 

Harassment include, but are not l im ited to: 

a) Written or verbal a buse, threats, or outbursts;

b) Persistent unwelcome remarks, jokes, comments, i nnuendo, or taunts;

c) Racial harassment, which is  racial s lurs ,  jokes, name cal l ing , or i nsulting behaviour or termi nology

that reinforces stereotypes or d iscounts abi l ities because of racial or ethn ic orig in ;  

d) Leering or other suggestive or obscene gestures;

e) Condescending or patron izing behaviour which is i ntended to undermine self-esteem, d imin ish

performance or adversely affect working conditions; 

f) Practical jokes which endanger a person's safety, or may negatively affect performance;

g) Hazing,  which is  any form of conduct which exhib its any potential ly humil iat ing, degrad ing ,

abusive, or dangerous activity expected of a jun ior-ranking i nd ividual by a more senior ind iv idua l ,  

which does not contribute to  either ind ividual 's positive development, but is requ ired to  be 

accepted as part of a team or group,  regard less of the jun ior-ranking i ndividual 's wi l l ingness to 

participate .  This includes , but is not l imited to, any activity, no matter how traditional or seemi ngly 

benign, that sets apart or al ienates any teammate or g roup member based on class, number of 

years on the team or with the group ,  or  abi l ity; 
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h)  U nwanted physica l  contact includ ing ,  but not l im ited to, touch ing ,  pett ing, pinch ing ,  or kissing; 

i) Deliberately excluding or social ly isolating a person from a group or team;

j )  Persistent sexual fl i rtat ions, advances, requests ,  or i nvitations ; 

k) Physical or sexual assault ;

I ) Behaviours such as those described above that are not d i rected towards a specific person or
group

but have the same effect of creating a negative or hosti le environment; and 

m)  Retal iation or threats of retal iation against a person who reports harassment to WCL. 

Participants have a responsib i l ity to: 

a )  Maintain  and enhance the d ignity and self-esteem of members and other i nd iv iduals by: 

i . Treating each other with the h ighest standards of respect and integrity;

i i .  Focusing comments or criticism appropriately and avoid ing publ ic criticism of athletes, 

coaches, officials, organizers, volunteers, employees, or members; 

i i i .  Consistently demonstrating the spirit of sportsmanship, sport leadership ,  and eth ical conduct; 

iv. Acting, when appropriate, to correct or prevent practices that are unjustly d iscrim inatory;

v. Consistently treating ind ividuals fairly and reasonably; and

vi . Ensuring adherence to the rules of the sport and the spirit of those rules.

b )  Refrain  from any behaviour  that constitutes Abuse, Harassment, Workplace Harassment, Sexual 

Harassment, Workplace Violence, Discrim ination or any form of Maltreatment. 

The emails contin uing to emanate from your email address are noted and fi led. 

Best regards , 
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Obviously we a l l  know that if VOWL (who is supporting Madison) relentlessly keeps up the pressure and continues to 
demand a response, WCL will eventually provide one, however I ask you to a l l  take notice of how WCL ignores and/or 
delays safety issues that WCL leadership selectively decides should be treated differently than those al legations that 
WCL aggressively pursues for the purpose of reprisals. 

I am told that fol lowing the Olympics, VOWL wil l  renew their advocacy and seek an  independent i nvestigation, so I 
want a l l  of you to see for yourself what is happening in  " real time". Even if WCL finally does the right thing and takes 
action against Ed Zinger, a l l  of you wil l  have witnessed the enormous advocacy effort it ta kes just to get WCL to take 
the most obvious and basic steps towards holding bad men accountable . . . . .  and so please ask yourself, Is this a victory 
for safety in wrestling? Of course not! It only underscores the effort that WCL continues to make insulate pol itical ly 
powerful men in  wrestl ing who abuse and mistreat women. 

All of you saw how quickly Rugby Canada moved to fire a coach for tweets he made that were d isparging to 
women . . . .  that coach wil l  l ikely N EVER represent Canada at the Olympics again  . . .  and yet in  the corrupted and abusively 
misogynist sport of wrestl ing, our top official  Ed Zinger was a l lowed to say horrible demeaning l ies about WCL's female 
CEO and he is  rewarded with an  Olympics spot. Look for yourself! It's happening right before your eyes! 

I n  the corrupted and abusively misogynist sport of wrestl ing, our top official Ed Zinger was a l lowed to say horrible 
demeaming things a bout the sex l ife of my daughter, and the WCL Safety Officer Frank Fowlie reaches out to h im 
asking h im to particiapte in  an  official  WCL complaint against VOWL members who advocate for athletes saftey. Look 
for yourself! It's exactly the reprisals VOWL has been speaking about for years ( I ns id ious  Tactic #1) .  It's happening 
right before your eyes ! 

Ms. Medwldsky, how much advocacy is requ ired to get you and your corrupted National Sport Organization to take 
action against politically powerful men who hurt women in our sport? It is possible that have you a l ready spent a l l  of 
your legal and safety budget reprising against VOWL members, or suing coaches for a few thousand dol lars of travel 
expenses? Do you need money for legal resources because I am sure that VOWL could help raise this for you if it i s  
necessary to help WCL to do the right thing. 

Perhaps WCL could send another letter to Director General Walker describ ing how many good things WCL is doing for 
safety . . . .  l agree you have certainly paid a lot of money to the Sport Law and Strategy Group so that you can 
demonstrate "on paper" how much you are doing towards safety, but everyone on this email can see with their own 
eyes how WCL is completely dangerous and corrupted in real life. 

Ms. Medwidsky, please just answer the question .  Will you/WCL be taking any action with respect to the audio 
recording and statutory declaration that is in your possession? 
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Please know that even if you do something now, this entire process only proves that WCL remains dangerous and 
corrupt. WCL had an  opportunity months ago to prove that the NSO was turning over a new leaf and you completely 
squandered it. Japan has the internet and you could have responded with something. Shame on WCL. 

Mara Schiavul l i  

On Fr i ,  Ju l  30, 2021 at 9:38 AM  wrote: 

Dear Al l, 

I am writing this email to support and ampl ify Mara Schiavu ll i ,  who has recently been in contact with you.  I am also 
writing to you in  the context of the amazing success of our Canadian women at the 2021 Tokyo Olympics. Clearly,

women in Canada are ascending to the forefront of our sports community, so the issue of the safety of our 
girls/women in sport should be of even more concern for those in  sport leadership .  

Setting aside the important and affecting words of Ms. Schiavul l i  and the situation with Ms. Madison Parks/Mr. Ed 
Zinger, I must ask: can you not see how it hurts gir ls and women i n  wrestl ing when a female CEO remains si lent in  the 
face of a powerful wrestling official engaging in misogynistic and defaming statements? 

WCL is currently su ing wrestl ing coaches who have been financial ly crippled during the COVI D pandemic for relatively 
small amounts of money related to travel .  Yet, the WCL lawyers take no action against powerful men in wrestl ing 
who publicly spread humi liating statements a bout WCL's female CEO. Do you think that victims are u naware of this 
terrible prioritization of WCL's legal resources?
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We m ust also remember that female victims are NOT bl ind to the fact that M r. Zinger is a board member of Ontario 
Wrestl ing and that WCL lawyer J ordan Goldblatt also acted as the l itigation lawyer for Ontario Wrestling. 

Shortly after these events, WCL was provided with very compell ing evidence that demeaning and false statements 
were being spread about its femal e  CEO from a powerful man in wrestl ing, Instead of acting swiftly to address these 
concerns, WCL chose to reward that very man with a coveted Olympics spot. Can you not see how WCL is 
perpetuating a culture of si lence and institutional misogyny? 

Ms.  Medwidsky, I believe that you can see how women in wrestl ing are suffering. Are al l  of those women who have 
made serious al legations against WCL male leadership in recent years lying? There a re too many victims to deny that 
a problem does not exist. 

When Olympic Gold Medalist Erica Wiebe recently publ icly spoke about "countless" victims in wrestl ing, she was 
sharing a powerful and undeniable truth. 

We in  VOWL cannot u nderstand how women leaders in sport, l i ke those addressed in  this email and by Ms. Schiavul l i ,  
can continue to remain silent, even under conditions where men in  their very organizations are working and speaking 
against them. This only encourages the powerful culture of fear and si lence that remains in our sport community 
today. 

How can we expect young women to come forward to d isclose abuse when victims see that certain  powerful " inner
circle" men in wrestl ing can do and say whatever they want to women leaders in our sport, without any 
consequence? 

How can we expect young victims to come forward when even the highest ranking woman in WCL is targeted, and a 
powerful man i n  wrestl ing defames her i n  her role as CEO/ED? 

We here at VOWL offer support and encouragement to Ms. Medwidsky and all women in  sports leadersh ip, to use 
their power and leadership to make sport safer for a l l .  Ms .  M edwidsky, for the sake of women in  wrestl ing and a 
better future - hear us, stand up, and take action immediately. 

Wil l  you do this? 
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Thank you, 

VOWl member 
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From: 
Sent 
To: 

Subject 

Dear M s. Medwidsky and WCL, 

Madison Parks < madisonparkspoa@
August 4, 202 1  4:1 5  PM 
complaints@wrestling.ca; Tamara Medwidsky; ahmed.a.shamiya@

moedorg@  dave@
Re: Please listen to VOWL - female sports leadership 

Coach Spinney has asked me to not send a ny more correspondence to a nyone outside of wrestl ing until after the 
Olympics and so I am only including WCL's CEO and Madison's support group in this emai l .  

I ask that WCL receive my 5 safety concerns about Frank Fowlie, the 5th being the most immediately important; 

1. Frank Fowlie has an establ ished publ ic h istory of abusing those who he bel ieves are less powerful .

2 .  Frank Fowlie h a s  an  establ ished public history of being deceitful i n  Tribunal  settings in  order to advance h i s  nefarious 
agenda. 

3. Frank Fowlie has been named in  a lawsuit involving  and I am told that the reason for this i s  because 
after receiving detai led a l legations against Lucas O'Ceallachain his advice was to "go for beer" with WCL leadership.

Frank Fowlie, has no hesitation in  shrugging off athlete's a l legations when the complaint is against WCL leadership  (the 
same leadership who h ires and pays Frank Fowlie), however when the complaint comes from WCL leadership against 
the ath lete who makes complaints against Fran k  Fowlie's paying customer he immediately appl ies a wi ld double 
standard .  For example, Frank Fowlie immed iately h i red lawyers to investigate the salacious and reprising a l legations 
that were advanced by Ed Zinger and Lucas 6'Ceallachain - a l legations in which no actua l  evidence was provided
beyond rumours and gossip. 

4. Frank Fowlie sends me written communication that is unprofessional overtly/ u nnecessarily argumentative. Frank
Fowlie holds h imself out as an  expert in confl i ct resol ution and management - please look careful ly at al l  of h is
correspondence and you wi l l  see that he fal ls wel l short of an acceptable standard for a professional i n  his
i ndustry . . . . but of course he does . . . .  he has an established tribunal h istory of abusing those who he perceives as less 
powerfu l .  

5. Frank Fowlie has multiple times violated the privacy of Madison. Allow me to provide you with 2 easi ly verifiable
examples.

• Frank Fowlie just sent me an  email (see attached) in  which he clearly communicated at the outset that he was
unsure about who he was communicating with ("whoever is us ing th is  ema i l  address") and yet later in the same
email he speaks about confidential i nformation involving Madison. If Frank Fowlie was unsure about who he
was communicating with then he should have N EVER spoken about any private matters involving Madison (ex.
point #6 in h is  email ) .  This is reckless and dangerous behaviour for someone in h is  position.

• Shortly after M ad ison reprimanded Frank Fowl ie for speaking to her in  a manner that was misogynistic he sent
out written communication to Madison's peer group describing that Madison was being investigated for
inappropriate sexual relationships with her coach. Surely WCL can see this is yet another example in which
Frank Fowlie attempts to publicly shame those who he believes he can dominate.
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Frank Fowlie has demonstrated a decade's long inabi l ity to emotionally regulate himself. His desire to dominate others 
is so overwhelming that he will even violate the confidential ity of athletes in his attempts to establish superiority. Frank 
Fowlie takes "pissing contest" to such a level that according to the tribunal decision even the safety of an a ircraft may 
have been jeopard ized because of h is inabil ity to appropriately control h imself after receiving meal service that fel l  
short of his expectations. 

 

Please let me know if WCL needs any information from me as WCL addresses the conduct of the abusive misogynist 
Frank Fowlie. I expect that WCL wil l  terminate his role in wrestling in the very near future. 

And final ly, please direct Frank Fowlie to stop sending me emails un less he is advancing official WCL business. Perhaps 
you could block him from sending me emails at the server level .  

Thank you, 
Mara Schiavul l i  

On Wed, Aug 4, 2021 at 10:09 AM  wrote: 

Dear Madison ,  or Mara ,  or whoever is using this emai l  address. 

1. Thank you for your most recent m issive;
2.  No Power of Attorney has been filed w ith this office, and in  lack of any documentation of a

Power of Attorney document , your cla ims to a Power of Attorney have no fou ndation.  I f  you 
wish to fi le a Power of Attorney with me, it wil l be held in confidence, and reviewed to 
determine if such Power of Attorney appl ies; 

3. You have been treated with appropriate respect throughout al l  of our correspondence, and I
am affronted that you would suggest that I have cognitive impairments is an obvious insult ing
and harassing comment ,  and I would encourage you to raise the level of respect you use i n
corresponding with m e  i n  m y  workplace; 

4. You have made many threats concern ing legal action ,  I am aware of your i ntentions to create
a legal action ,  and whi le I am sure that your i ntention is to int imidate me in my workplace, I
am not i nt imidated. If you wish to pursue legal action ,  please do so. It is a free and 
democratic country and you have every right to do so; 

s. If you cannot transact commun ications with me in a respectful tone appropriate to the
workplace, then I wou ld ask you to cease writ ing to me, or sending me copies of
correspondences which are only meant to int imidate, threaten ,  bel ittle ,  demean ,  or
insult .  Should such correspondence continue, I wi l l  ask WCL to block your email address at
the server level;

6. I can assure that there has been NO reprisal against Mad ison . In 2021, it is imperative for
sports to properly engage i n  safe sport complaints, fai lure to do so would be neg l igent. This
office proceeded i n  good faith, and with a goal to ensure that Madison was not i nvolved i n  a
relationship where there was an imbalance of power. I note that the i nvestigation fou nd that
there was no imba lance of power relationsh ip ,  and that no further action was taken by this
office or WCL. As a parent myself, I would be more u pset if an NSO d id not act in the best
i nterest of the athlete as opposed to s imply shrugging off such al legations. Your  continued
intimidation and threats are simply puffery;

7. I have never met Mr. Zinger, and we are not "friends" ;
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I n  the meantime, let me state as clearly as possible that you and Ed Zinger are horribly abusive misogynists who have 
abused my daughter. Everyone of the women on this emai l  knows how immediately after my daughter Madison 
reprimanded you for misogynistic behaviour you reprised against her by sending written correspondence to her peer 
group shaming her with those horrible a l legations that were obviously proven false. 

But of course you did that to Madison because every woman on this email knows that you are man who has a proven 
tribunal h istory of abusing those who you believe have less power than you . . . .  and when you don't get what you want 
you have been proven by the tribunal to engage in  deceitful behaviour . . . . .  and so you can take your  weak attempts to 
intimidate me and save it for weaker prey. 

And fina l ly, I am not sure whether it is cognitive impa irments or j ust another attempt to inappropriately engage with 
M adison, but I ask that you pay attention to the detai ls when you send futu re emails . . . . .  my name is Mara Schiavulli 
and I have POA for Madison. You are not permitted to speak with Madison. 

Mara Schiavul l i  

On Tue, Aug 3, 2021 at  1:44 P M  wrote: 

Dear Madison, 

I am attaching a copy of the most recent WCL Safe Sport Policy Manual ,  and have pasted re leva nt 
Sections below: 

*"Participants" - Refers to a l l  categories of ind ividual members and/or registrants defined in the 
Bylaws 

of WCL who are under WCL jurisdiction and who are subject to the UCCMS and the policies of 

WCL,  as well as a l l  people employed by, contracted by, or engaged in activities with, WCL 
including, 

but not l im ited to, employees , contractors, Athletes, coaches, instructors, officials, volunteers, 
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managers, administrators, committee members, parents or guardians, spectators at WCL­
sanctioned 

Events, and Directors and Officers . 

"Harassment' - A course of vexatious comment or conduct against a Participant or group,  which is 

known or ought to reasonably be known to be unwelcome. Types of behaviour that constitute 

Harassment include, but are not l imited to: 

a) Written or verbal abuse, threats, or outbursts;

b) Persistent unwelcome remarks, jokes, comments, i nnuendo, or taunts;

c) Racial harassment, which is racial s lurs ,  jokes, name cal l ing ,  or insu lting behaviour or
terminology

that reinforces stereotypes or d iscounts abi l ities because of racial or ethn ic orig in ;  

d )  Leering or  other suggestive or obscene gestures; 

e) Condesce nding or patronizing behaviour which is intended to undermine self-esteem,  d imin ish

performance or  adversely affect working conditions; 

f) Practical jokes which endanger a person's safety, or may negatively affect performance;

g) Hazing ,  which is any form of conduct which exhibits any potential ly humil iating,  degrading,

abusive, or dangerous activity expected of a junior-ranking i nd iv idual by a more senior ind ividual ,  

which does not contribute to either individual's positive development, but i s  required to be 

accepted as part of a team or group,  regard less of the jun ior-ranking ind ividual 's wi l l ingness to 

participate. This includes, but is not l im ited to, any activity, no matter how traditional or seemingly 

ben ign ,  that sets apart or al ienates any teammate or group member based on class, number of 

years on the team or with the group ,  or abi l ity ; 

h )  Unwanted physica l  contact includ ing ,  but not l im ited to, touch ing ,  pett ing, pinching ,  or kissing ; 

i )  Del iberately excluding or social ly isolating a person from a group or team ;  
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j )  Persistent sexual fl irtations, advances, requests, or invitations; 

k) Physical or sexual assault;

I) Behaviours such as those described above that are not directed towards a specific person or
group

but have the same effect of creating a negative or hosti le environment; and 

m)  Retaliation or threats of retal iation against a person who reports harassment to WCL. 

Participants have a responsib i l ity to: 

a) Mainta in and enhance the d ignity and self-esteem of members and other individuals by:

i .  Treating each other with the highest standards of respect and i ntegrity; 

i i .  Focusing comments or criticism appropriately and avoiding publ ic criticism of athletes, 

coaches, officials, organizers, vol unteers, employees, or members; 

i i i .  Consistently demonstrating the spirit of sportsmanship, sport leadership, and eth ical conduct; 

iv. Acting, when appropriate, to correct or prevent practices that are unjustly d iscrim inatory;

v. Consistently treating ind ividuals fai rly and reasonably; and

vi . Ensuri ng adherence to the rules of the sport and the spirit of those rules. 

b) Refrain from any behaviour that constitutes Abuse, Harassment, Workplace Harassment, Sexual

Harassment, Workplace Violence, Discrimination or any form of Maltreatment. 

The emails continu ing to emanate from your email address are noted and fi led. 

Best regards, 

Dr. F ra n k  Fowlie 
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delays safety issues that WCL leadership selectively decides should be treated differently than those a l legations that 
WCL aggressively pursues for the purpose of reprisals. 

I am told that fol lowing the Olympics, VOWL wil l renew their advocacy and seek an independent i nvestigation, so 1 
want a l l  of you to see for yourself what is happening i n  " rea l time". Even if WCL final ly does the right thing and takes 
action against Ed Zinger, all of you will have witnessed the enormous advocacy effort it takes just to get WCL to take 
the most obvious and basic steps towards holding bad men accountable . . . . .  and so please ask yourself, is this a victory 

for safety in wrestling? Of course not ! It only underscores the effort that WCL continues to make insulate pol itical ly 
powerful men i n  wrestl ing who abuse and mistreat women . 

All of you saw how quickly Rugby Canada moved to fire a coach for tweets he  made that were disparging to 
women . . . .  that coach wil l l ikely N EVER represent Canada at the Olympics again . . . and yet in the corrupted and 
abusively misogynist sport of wrestling, our top official Ed Zinger was a l lowed to say horrible demeaning l ies about 
WCL's female CEO a nd he is rewarded with an Olympics spot. Look for yourself! It's happening right before your 

eyes! 

I n  the corrupted and abusively misogynist sport of wrestling, our top official Ed Zinger was a l lowed to say horrible 
demeaming things about the sex life of my daughter, and the WCL Safety Officer Frank Fowlie reaches out to him 
asking him to particiapte in  an official  WCL complaint against VOWL members who advocate for athletes saftey. Look 
for yourself! It's exactly the reprisals VOWL has been speaking a bout for years ( Ins id ious  Tactic #1) .  It's happening 
right before your eyes ! 

Ms. Medwidsky, how much advocacy is requ ired to get you and your corrupted National Sport Organization to take 
action against politica l ly powerfu l men who hurt women in  our sport? It is  possible that have you a l ready spent all of 
your legal and safety budget reprising against VOWL members, or suing coaches for a few thousand dollars of travel 
expenses? Do you need money for legal resources because I am sure that VOWL could help raise this for you if it is  
necessary to help WCL to do the right thing. 

Perhaps WCL cou ld  send another letter to Director General Walker describing how many good things WCL is doing for 
safety . . . .  ! agree you have certainly paid a lot of money to the Sport Law and Strategy Group so that you can 
demonstrate "on paper" how much you a re doing towards safety, but everyone on this email can see with their own 
eyes how WCL is completely dangerous and corrupted in real life. 

Ms. Medwidsky, please just answer the question. Will you/WCL be taking any action with respect to the audio 
recording and statutory declaration that is in your possession? 
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Please know that even if you do something now, this entire process only p roves that WCL remains dangerous and 
corrupt. WCL had an  opportunity months ago to prove that the NSO was turn ing over a new leaf a nd you completely 
squandered it. Japan has the internet and you could have responded with something. Shame on WCL. 

Mara Schiavul l i  

On Fri, Ju l  30, 2021 at 9 :38 AM  wrote: 

Dear All, 

I am writing this email to support and amplify Mara Schiavull i ,  who has recently been in  contact with you. I am a lso 
writing to you in the context of the amazing success of our Canadian women at the 2021 Tokyo Olympics. Clearly, 
women in Canada a re ascending to the forefront of our sports community, so the issue of the safety of our 
girls/women in  sport should be of even more concern for those in  sport leadership. 

Setting aside the i mportant and affecting words of Ms.  Schiavul l i  and the situation with Ms. Madison Parks/Mr. Ed 
Zinger, I m ust ask: can you not see how it hurts gir ls and women in  wrestling when a female CEO remains s i lent in 
the face of a powerful wrestl ing officia l  engaging in  misogynistic and defaming statements? 

WCL is currently su ing wrestl ing coaches who have been financial ly crippled during the COVID pandemic for 
relatively small amounts of money related to travel .  Yet, the WCL lawyers take no action against powerful men in 
wrestl ing who publi cly spread humi l iating statements a bout WCL's female CEO. Do you think that victims are 
u naware of this terrible prioritization of WCL's l egal resources?

10 



We must a lso remember that female victims are NOT bl ind to the fact that M r. Zinger is a board member of Ontario 
Wrestling and that WCl lawyer Jordan Goldblatt also acted as the litigation l awyer for Ontario Wrestling. 

Shortly after these events, WCL was provided with very compell ing evidence that demeaning and false statements 
were being spread about its female CEO from a powerful man in wrestling, Instead of acting swiftly to address these 
concerns, WCL chose to reward that very man with a coveted Olympics spot. Can you not see how WCL is 
perpetuating a culture of si lence and institutional misogyny? 

Ms. Medwidsky, I believe that you can see how women in wrestl ing are suffering. Are a l l  of those women who have 
made serious a l legations against WCL male leadership in recent years lying? There a re too many victims to deny that 
a problem does not exist. 

When Olympic Gold Medalist Erica Wiebe recently publicly spoke about "countless" victims in wrestl ing, she was 
sharing a powerful and undeniable truth. 

We in VOWL cannot u nderstand how women leaders in sport, l i ke those addressed in this email and by Ms. 
Schiavul l i, can continue to remain si lent, even under conditions where men in  their very organizations are working 
and speaking against them. This only encourages the powerful culture of fear and si lence that remains in  our sport 
community today. 

How can we expect young women to come  forward to disclose abuse when victims see that certai n  powerful " inner­
circle" men in wrestling can do and say whatever they want to women leaders in our sport, without any 
consequence? 

How can we expect young victims to come forward when even the highest ranking woma n  in  WCL is targeted, and a 
powerful man i n  wrestling defames her i n  her role as CEO/ED? 

We here at VOWL offer support and encouragement to Ms. Medwidsky and a l l  women in sports leadership, to use 
their power and leadership to make sport safer for all. Ms. Medwidsky, for the sake of women in wrestling and a 
better future - hear us, stand up, and take action immediately. 

Wil l  you do this? 
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Thank you, 

VOWL member 
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• Mr. Fowl ie's conduct created an  impression of bias
• Mr. Fowl ie acted in a manner that was insensitive to members of the wrestling community
• M r. Fowl ie inappropriately shared information that he ought to have known wou ld cause shame a nd

humi l iation to members in the wrestling community.

WCL holds those hired to deal with issues of safety to the highest of standards and any conduct that undermines the 
confidence of the wrestling community will result in immediate termination. 

I do not speak for M adison Parks, but I had a conversation with her POA Mara Schiavul l i  who is copied on this email, and 
she tel ls  me that M adison will sign the same lega l releases being offered in this email. (Madison Parks would s ign the 
release, not M ara Schiavull i )  

I 'm sure that WCL realizes that given al l  of the circumstances in  recent years with its 4 " independent" 
Safety/Complaints officers WCL should terminate Frank Fowlie regardless of whether or not we are wil l i ng to provide 
releases. By posting this message on WCL's website, WCL has an opportunity to demonstrate that it is changing its 
approach and no longer tolerates misogyny a nd maltreatment within the organization. This lega l release is an added 
bonus which I am happy to provide for the betterment of wrestling. 

If WCL has done research into Frank Fowlie you will know that he is no stranger to making frivolous claims, and so if you 
accept my offer be forewarned that he might very well come after WCL, but I am confident that WCL has the legal 
horsepower to easily defeat this man. 

Director-General of Sport Vicki Walker, I n  the coming week/months a significant effort wil l  be made to address Sport 
Canada's and Own the Podium role in the abuse of athletes. As you know much of these issues concerning you/Sport 
Canada are a result of Wrestl ing Canada Lutte's h ighly questionable decisions to h ire men who demonstrate i ncredible 
bias. It remains incomprehensibly reckless and dangerous that WCL chose Brian Ward, Adam Klevinas, and Andrew 
Furgiuele to be its Complaints/Safety Officer and it remains equa l ly outrageous that the Government of 
Canada personal ly endorsed 2 of those men (one of those men i ntimidate and si lence victims by publicly boasting that 
hundreds of sporting organizations, Own the Pod ium, and Sport Canada are their clients) .  

I 'm including you on this  emai l  so that you are aware for the record that I have consistently focussed on resolving 
matters early. If WCL fires Frank Fowlie it wi l l  not solve the many issues of safety in wrestling, but it wil l certa in ly be a 
good start i n  a process of reconciliation that I believe can be achieved in the very near future. 

Own the Podium, you are being included on this email because you have played a massive role in the complete a nd 
total destruction of female wrestl ing in Canada. The facts are clear, OTP has actively supported men in positions of 
leadership within  wrestling who abused athletes. Furthermore, OTP was aware that Ind igenous athletes were being 
abused and did noth ing. Any efforts of OTP to pretend that WCL operates independently from OTP in  terms of who it 
hires in positions of high-performance leadersh ip wil l  be exposed. 

Marie-Claude Asselin, you are being included in this email  because in the near future you will receive an offer to be 
given access to very d isturbing evidence. Because of the accessibi l ity that you have provided in  past years (you are 
wil l ing to answer your phone) our VOWL group holds out hope that with you at the helm the SDRCC has a future role to 
play in  sport. However, the evidence is clear, there is dangerous corruption that cannot be easily extracted from 
within the operational structure of the SDRCC. 

I real ize that these are extremely serious a l legations. You can confirm with Director-General Walker that our group 
does not make "vague or unsubstantiated a l legations". I n  December 2020 I provided Sport Canada with detai led 
evidence of abuse, and the evidence that our group is wil l ing to provide you wil l  be equa l ly d isturbing. I am 
establishing for the record that I continue to keep all parties appropriately apprised of events.

This email is NOT without prejudice. 
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Frank Fowlie 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Cc: 
Subject 

Dear Marie-Claude Asse l in ,  

David Spinney <dave@
August 1 2, 202 1 5:07 PM 
mcassel in@
Tamara Medwidsky; Jordan Goldblatt 
Frank Fowl ie 

I hope this message finds  you safe and well .  As you may know, we h ave a lready provided detai led evidence of a buse to 
the Right Honourable Justin Trudeau Prime Min ister of Canada, the Honourab le  Steven Guilbeault Minister of Heritage, 
the Honourable Kirsty Duncan Deputy Leader of the Government in the House of Com mons, 
the Honourable Mark Miller Min ister of I n d igenous Services, the Honourable Carolyn Benett Minister of Crown­
Ind igenous Relat ions, and  the Di rector General of Sport Vicki Walker. 

The Government of Canada is aware that I have been for years supporting many ath letes who have suffered a buse, 
inc luding I ndigenous athletes who h ave been sexua l ly abused in wrest l ing. 

For the past 20 years WCL leadersh ip  has engaged in  systemic reprisals agai nst coaches and athletes who speak out 
against a buse.  Som e  of these m atters a re a l ready before the cou rts. Some of these m atters wi l l  be before the cou rts in 
the coming m onths. And some of these matters a re being addressed d irectly before the Government of Canada, e lected 
officia ls, the po l ice, and  sports a uthorities. 

As a sma l l  part of th is  a dvocacy, we have made the a bove-named parties aware that s ince at least December  2, 2020, 

WCL Officer/SDRCC Investigator Frank  Fowlie not on ly demonstrated outrageous b ias i n  the sport of wrest l ing, but he has 
engaged in repris ing behaviour against m ultip le coaches and ath letes; reprisals that he knew, or  ought to have known, 
would cause damage to vict ims and deepen a cu lture of fear a nd s i lence .  For exam ple, Fra n k  Fowli e  has  breached ath lete 
confidence on mu ltip le occasions, includ ing inappropriately sending humil iat ing info rmation to the peer group of a young 
woman  i mm ed iately after she repr imanded h im for h is  m isogyn istic conduct. H is  be haviou r  as WCL Officer i s  
consistent with h i s  wel l-estab l ished publ ic inc idents of  a buse and retal iation . 

Of particu lar  concern is that Frank  Fowl ie has a well-documented tribuna l  h i story of engaging i n  deceitfu l behaviour 
i ntended to advance his own persona l  agenda. 

Please note that we h ave al ready shared m uch of these concerns with Wrestl ing  Canada Lutte. Hopefu l ly WCL once aga in  
responds to our  pub l ic pressu re and ends the i r  relationsh ip  with yet another Safety Officer who we exposed ma king 
wrest l ing more d angerous.  

For the past half year members of the wrestling community, including myself, have continued to make the Government 

of Canada and Canadian sport leaders aware about the inappropriate nature of having Frank Fowlie involved in any role 

meant for victims to d isclose abuse. 

Frank Fowlie and the  of Athletes 

Accord ing to  the webpage " was created to host the Canadian Sport Helpline, aimed at offering a safe 
place for victims and witnesses of abuse, harassment and discrimination in sport to share their concerns and get advice on 

next steps. " 
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From: David Spinney 
August 1 2, 2021 6:14 PM Sent: 

To: 
Cc: 

Daniel Ratushny 
Tamara Medwidsky; Jordan Goldblatt; complaints@wrestling.ca; 
lucasoceal lachain@

Subject: Response 
Attachments: Moving Forwards (14.0 KB); Frank Fowl ie (34.0 KB) 

Dear WCL Discipl ine Panel Daniel Ratushny, 

In my efforts to support abused ath letes I am a volunteer and not a professional advocate, and so M r. Goldblatt is l ikely 
far more capable expressing how Frank Fowlie's behaviour  raises concerns of bias/apprehension of bias. 1 will let my 
attached emai l  to the SDRCC from earl ier today describe some of our concerns about how the WCL Safety/Complaints 
Officer Frank Fowlie deepens a culture of fear and si lence in  the Canadian wrestl ing commun ity. 

Kindly let me provide you one s ingle piece of information regarding why the WCL Officer Frank Fowlie  should never 
have had anything to do with the "a l legations" of WCL H igh-Performance Director Lucas O'Ceal lacha in .  

First Incident 

• On December 2, 2020, the Head Coach for wrestl ing at York University had a lengthy and deta i led conversation
with Frank Fowlie in which he careful ly described abuse that  suffered at the hands of one of
the h ighest-ranking employees of WCL leadership  (Lucas O'Ceal lachain) .  I am attaching an emai l  that

sent the WCL Executive Director after Lucas O'Ceal lachain resigned . As you can see, Ms.  was very
close to q uitting wrestl ing because of the abuse and harassment of Lucas 6'Cea l lachain .

• I n  response to these December 2, 2020, d isclosures WCL Officer Frank  Fowlie suggested to "go for beer" with
WCL leadership .  Please remember that WCL leadership are the people who hire and fire WCL Officer Frank
Fowl ie.

I would strongly recommend that the Panel s imply ask Frank Fowlie to confirm or deny if he  made this "go for a beer" 
comment. If he d enies it then p lease let me know and I will further assist on this evidentiary issue.

Setti ng aside the plethora of outrageous behaviour of Frank Fowlie  after December 2, 2020, I would respectful ly submit 
that this "go for a beer" incident alone should have been enough for Frank Fowlie to recuse h imself from any al legation 
in which the WCL H igh-Performance Director was a l leging harassment surrounding any efforts to keep 
safe from Lucas 6'Ceal lachain's abuse. (ex. My December 2020 emai l  warni ng h im to stay away from 
or face a com plaint of crimina l  harassment) 

But to be clear, this December 2, 2021 "go for a beer" response to receiving serious a l legations of harassment is only a 
s ingle incident in  a much larger narrative establ ishing that Frank Fowlie's behaviour and continued presence in  
wrestling creates a reasonable apprehension of  bias. There is  good reason that  has  a l ready fi led her 
lawsu it in the courts against Frank Fowli e  and Lucas 6'Ceal lachain .  

Respectful ly, 

Dave 
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Frank Fowlie 

From: 
Sent 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject 

Dear Marie-Cla ude Asse l in, 

David Spinney 
August 1 2, 2021 5:07 PM 
mcassel in@
Tamara Medwidsky; Jordan Goldblatt 
Frank Fowlie  

I hope th i s  message finds you safe and wel l .  As  you may know, we h ave a lready provided detai led evidence of a buse to 
the Right H onourab le  Justin Trudeau Prime M in ister of Canada, the Honourable Steven Gui lbeault Minister of Heritage, 
the Honourable Kirsty Duncan Deputy Leader of the G overnment in the House of Com mons, 
the Honourable Mark Miller Min ister of Ind igenous Services, the Honourable Carolyn Benett Minister of Crown­
Ind igenous Relations, and the Director Genera l of Sport Vicki Walker. 

The Government of Canada is aware that I have been for years support ing many ath letes who have suffered abuse, 
includ ing  I ndigenous ath letes who h ave been sexual ly a bused in wrest l ing. 

For the past 20 yea rs WCL leadersh ip  has engaged in system ic reprisa ls against coaches a n d  athletes who spea k out 
against abuse .  Some of these matters are a l ready before the courts. Some of these matters wi l l  be before the courts in 
the coming months. And some of these matters a re being addressed d i rectly before the Govern ment of Canada, elected 
officials, the pol ice, and sports authorities. 

As a smal l  part of th is  a dvocacy, we have made the above-named parties aware that s ince at  least Dece m ber 2, 2020, 

WCL Officer/SDRCC Investigator Frank  Fowli e  n ot on ly demonstrated outrageous bias in  the sport of wrest l ing, but he has 
engaged in  repris ing behaviour against m u ltiple coaches and athletes; reprisal s  that h e  knew, or  ought to have known, 
would cause damage to vict ims and deepen a culture of fear and s i lence .  For exam ple, Fra n k  Fowl ie has breached ath lete 
confidence on mu lt ip le occasions, inc lud ing inappropriate ly sending humi l iating information to the peer group  of a you ng 
woman i m m ed iately after she repri ma nded h im for h is  m isogynistic conduct.  H is  behaviour as WCL Officer i s  
consistent with h is  wel l-establ ished pub l i c  inc idents of a buse and reta l iation .  

Of part icular concern is that Fra n k  Fowlie has a well-documented tribuna l  h i story of engaging i n  deceitfu l behaviou r 
i ntended to advance h is own personal  agenda. 

P lease note that we h ave a l ready shared m uch of these concerns with Wrest l ing Canada Lutte. Hopefu l ly WCL once aga in  
responds to our publ ic  pressure and ends the ir  re lationsh ip with yet another Safety Officer who we exposed making  
wrest l ing m ore da ngerous. 

For the past half year members of the wrestling community, including myself, have continued to make the Government 
of Canada and Canadian sport leaders aware about the inappropriate nature of having Frank Fowlie involved in any role

meant for victims to disclose abuse. 
-

Frank Fowlie and the  of Athletes 

According  to  the webpage "was created to host the Canadian Sport Helpline, aimed at offering a safe 

place for victims and witnesses of abuse, harassment and discrimination in sport to share their concerns and get advice on 

next steps. " 

1 





.\UTUS 
• •  :, ! ', 

3 



Frank Fowlie 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 

Subject: 

Dear Tamara, 

February 1 1 , 2021 1 0:59 AM 
tamara@
eamonn dorgan; Dave@
Moving Forwards 

My reason for ending direct communication with WCL was because of Lucas, but now that Lucas is gone 
I consent to you communicating with me directly. I am comfortable with it now given that you are someone 
Spinney trusts. Please copy both Eamonn and Spinney on any communication with me. I still give 
permission for Eamonn and Spinney to be my representatives in wrestling. 

I wil l  be meeting with a lawyer soon to discuss my options regarding Lucas, and I expect that she wil l say 
I should sue him. I want you to know that if this is the road I go down, I wi l l  tell her that I prefer to deal only 
with Lucas, and not involve WCL. I real ise that she may tell me that it's easier dealing with a corporation 
in Canada than chasing Lucas wherever in the world he is, but I am not doing this for money. I just want 
the opportunity to reclaim my voice from this man . 

 It brings me great relief knowing that Lucas is gone from the Canadian wrestling 
community. 

I also wanted to let you know that I'm very grateful for my coaches. Eamonn has always been there for 
me - if it wasn't for him I wouldn't be wrestling . It's unfortunate how WCL put him through more than a 
year of discipline proceedings dealing with  l ies, and I can see how it has devastated his 
health. I am thankful that Spinney stepped in and spoke up for me when I needed it. During the Christmas 
season , I was close to quitting because my fear of being harassed by Lucas almost outweighed the 
passion that I have for this sport. I dreaded the idea of starting a new year with Lucas being involved in 
my future. When I found out that Spinney told him to stay away for me or face the police, I realized that I 
would be safe. 

I have heard talk about a great reset, and with Lucas gone, I hope that you, Eamonn, Dave, and I can 
have a reset in our relationship and see each other as friends in sport. 

Kind regards, 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 

Subject: 

Dear 

Ahmed Shamiya <ahmed.a.shamiya@
July 26, 2021 6:1 3 PM 

Walker, Vicki (PCH); Anne Merkl inger; Tamara Medwidsky; integrity@sportaus.gov.au; 
complaints@wrestling.ca 
Athlete Safety 

My name is Ahmed Shamiya. I am a multi-time Canadian USport champion wrestler who has represented 
Canada around the world.  I am the Head Coach of one of Wrestling Canada Lutte's National Training Centres 
located in Hamilton, Ontario. I also volunteer with a group of coaches, athletes, and parents who support 
wrestlers who have been abused in sport. My primary role in  this group is to support Black, Indigenous, and 
LGBTQ+ athletes, while facil itating mentorship between more senior wrestlers of colour and younger 
athletes. 

I write to let you know that a man who you are now associated with , named Lucas 6'Ceallachain ,  has engaged 
in abuse/maltreatment of athletes and coaches in Canadian wrestling according to several athletes and 
coaches who have started legal proceed ings against Mr. O'Ceallachain. 

I recognize that these are extremely serious allegations and the athletes and coaches involved do not make 
them l ightly. I have viewed the d isturbing evidence which includes statements from athletes and coaches, 
audio/video recordings, etc. Mr. O'Ceallachain is now being officially sued by a victim through the 
Canadian courts (it is my understanding that legal documents were filed with the court earlier this month). 
am also of the understanding that other athletes and coaches will be fi ling their claims in the courts against 
Mr. O'Ceallachain in the very near future. 

As a coach who cares deeply for the well-being of athletes in the black, Indigenous, and LGBTQ+ 
communities, I am very concerned that Mr. O'Ceallachain may victimize others before the often lengthy legal 
process is completed (courts in Canada are often very slow). As such, I believe I have a duty as a racialized 
Canadian coach, and support person for many athletes of colour, to let your organization know about the 
information and evidence I have seen . 

One of the ways that we support athletes is to make efforts to try and stop abusive men from continuing to 
harm athletes within  the Canadian sport community. We do this by providing access to facts and 
evidence. The reason that I am reaching out to  is because I saw on a social media platform that your  
organization has connected Mr. O'Ceallachain with a Canadian National Sport Organization ( ). 

Having seen the overwhelmingly negative impact that Mr. O'Ceallachain had on the sport of wrestling in 
Canada, I felt it was important to provide your organization with the opportunity to address personnel 
issues. Please know that we have no interest in  anyway harming 's business which is why 

 is not copied on this email. 

I recognize that receiving emails out of the blue from someone who  has no relationship with does very 
l ittle to establish that  should have reasonable g rounds to be concerned about its involvement 
Mr. O'Ceallachain. Therefore I propose that we arrange a time for your associate, Mr. O'Ceallachain, to attend 
a Zoom meeting in order to transparently answer questions related to h is time working in Canadian h igh­
performance sport. For example, through this questioning you will learn that Mr. Q'Ceallachain resigned 
almost immediately after he became aware that his continued harassment of a young female athlete, including 
maltreatment that never would have taken place if the athlete was a heterosexual woman , could result in a 
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Frank Fowlie 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Hi Frank, 

Tamara Medwidsky 
February 8, 2021 5:36 PM 
Complaints & Appeal Officer 
FW: Notice 

Just reviewing my emai ls from the weekend again and I real ize that you were NOT copied on this particu lar 
one. We' l l  add it to our l ist of things to d iscuss tomorrow. 

Thanks, Tamara 

From: David Spinney <Dave@
Date: Saturday, February 6, 2021 at 3 :28 P M  
To: "ed.zinger@  "officia ls@oawa.ca" <officials@oawa.ca> 
Cc: "Walker, Vicki (PCH)" Tamara Medwidsky 
" info@danielesauvageau.com"  Gary Bird 
Subject: Notice 

Dear M r. Ed Zinger, 

For severa l years you have engaged in demeaning, misogynistic, and harassing behaviour  directed at multiple women in 
wrestling. 

Madison Parks is formally making you an offer: 

Voluntarily depart from the sport wrestling until she retires from her competitive career, likely this year, but possibly 
as long as Paris 2024. 

If you accept this offer, Ms. Parks wil l agree not to escalate these concerns in a ny manner that seeks to address your  
harassment of her. 

Based on your  past actions we doubt that you will accept this offer however, please be aware that if M adison is forced 
to escalate a nd seek sanctioning of your conduct, thereby involving witnesses, we wil l present this correspondence as 
evidence that we provided you an  opportunity to achieve a resolution that would a l low you to return to wrestl ing 
relatively u nscathed. I n  other words, if you spare members of the wrestling community the anxiety of 
becoming involved as a witness against you (one of the most powerful wrestl ing officia ls in Canada), you have the 
opportunity to get off relatively easy. 

Please be advised that for reasons that have a l ready been provided to Wrestl ing Canada Lutte and Sport Canada neither 
I nor Madison wil l be a complainant in  any WCL Discipl ine Proceeding at this point, however, if you don't accept this 
offer Wrestling Canada Lutte wil l  be provided evidence of your behaviour  regarding misogynistic, demeaning, a nd 
harassing conduct in wrestling. 

We rea l ize that because of WCL's past behaviour  you may be hopeful that WCL wil l  ca l l  on lawyer's l ike Bryan Ward or 
Adam Klevinas to assist in this matter, or perhaps you are hoping that a wrestl ing official who is subordinate to you wil l 
suddenly show up as the voice of the Discipl ine Panel, as was the case in  the past. However, as you can see the Director-
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Frank Fowlie

From: David Spinney <dave@
Sent: Thursday, August 12, 2021 5:07 PM
To: mcasselin@
Cc: Tamara Medwidsky; Jordan Goldblatt
Subject: Frank Fowlie 

Dear Marie-Claude Asselin, 

I hope this message finds you safe and well. As you may know, we have already provided detailed evidence of abuse to 
the Right Honourable Justin Trudeau Prime Minister of Canada, the Honourable Steven Guilbeault Minister of Heritage, 
the Honourable Kirsty Duncan Deputy Leader of the Government in the House of Commons, 
the Honourable Mark Miller Minister of Indigenous Services, the Honourable Carolyn Benett Minister of Crown-
Indigenous Relations, and the Director General of Sport Vicki Walker. 

The Government of Canada is aware that I have been for years supporting many athletes who have suffered abuse, 
including Indigenous athletes who have been sexually abused in wrestling.   

For the past 20 years WCL leadership has engaged in systemic reprisals against coaches and athletes who speak out 
against abuse.  Some of these matters are already before the courts.  Some of these matters will be before the courts in 
the coming months.  And some of these matters are being addressed directly before the Government of Canada, elected 
officials, the police, and sports authorities.  

As a small part of this advocacy, we have made the above-named parties aware that since at least December 2, 2020, 
WCL Officer/SDRCC Investigator Frank Fowlie not only demonstrated outrageous bias in the sport of wrestling, but he has 
engaged in reprising behaviour against multiple coaches and athletes; reprisals that he knew, or ought to have known, 
would cause damage to victims and deepen a culture of fear and silence.  For example, Frank Fowlie has breached athlete 
confidence on multiple occasions, including inappropriately sending humiliating information to the peer group of a young 
woman immediately after she reprimanded him for his misogynistic conduct.  His behaviour as WCL Officer is 
consistent with his well-established public incidents of abuse and retaliation.   

Of particular concern is that Frank Fowlie has a well-documented tribunal history of engaging in deceitful behaviour 
intended to advance his own personal agenda.   

Please note that we have already shared much of these concerns with Wrestling Canada Lutte.  Hopefully WCL once again 
responds to our public pressure and ends their relationship with yet another Safety Officer who we exposed making 
wrestling more dangerous. 

For the past half year members of the wrestling community, including myself, have continued to make the Government of 
Canada and Canadian sport leaders aware about the inappropriate nature of having Frank Fowlie involved in any role 
meant for victims to disclose abuse.   

Frank Fowlie and the Safety of Athletes 

According to abuse-free-sport.ca the webpage "was created to host the Canadian Sport Helpline, aimed at offering a safe 
place for victims and witnesses of abuse, harassment and discrimination in sport to share their concerns and get advice on 
next steps."   
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Frank Fowlie

From: Ahmed Shamiya <ahmed.a.shamiya@
Sent: Thursday, September 1, 2022 1:11 PM
To: Mark Bourrie
Cc: Frank Fowlie; Andre Marin
Subject: Re: Mr. Shamiya's email of August 29

Mr.Bourrie, 

Instead of spending your time trying to intimidate me, you might want to redirect your efforts towards making 
another complaint with the RCMP. Perhaps your client can send your case law to Officer  of the 
Richmond RCMP and take another shot at trying to persuade him to charge me with a crime.   

The Ontario Court of Appeal in Paragraph 4 of R. v. Simoes describes the facts in that case. The court states, 

"E-mails inviting sexual activity were sent to the complainant’s employer from fake e-mail accounts set 
up in the complainant’s name.  The same sexually explicit message was posted on an adult cyber-dating 
website.  That posting also included the complainant’s photo." 

I encourage you to use your legal skills and attempt to convince the RCMP that concerned Palestinian 
immigrants communicating facts and evidence with their Member of Parliament is pretty much the same thing 
as the facts in R. v. Simoes.   

Your client has a remarkable history of failed legal proceedings and while I do appreciate the money I will 
receive when I am awarded costs against your client (likely double costs), I strongly urge you to finally get 
some legal advice from a reputable criminal law colleague and show some self-restraint before sending me 
ridiculous letters that are nothing more than transparent bluster. If you believe my email of  "August 29 
contains a new litany of false allegations that are actionable." then spend your time doing actual legal work and 
amend your Statement of Claim instead of sending me letters trying to scare me with your nonsensical 
arguments.   

Like I said previously, I am extending you the generous courtesy to seek an injunction before I send my 
correspondence to my Member of Parliament. Save your arguments for the court and the upcoming tribunals 
that will be addressing Fowlie's violations of the Universal Code of Conduct to Prevent and Address 
Maltreatment in Sport.    

Ahmed 

On Wed, Aug 31, 2022 at 5:03 PM Mark Bourrie <bourrielaw@gmail.com> wrote: 
Mr Shamiya, 

Please find attached a letter concerning the email you sent to parties and counsel in the defamation lawsuit filed 
against you by my client, Dr. Frank Fowlie. 

yours truly, 

Mark Bourrie PhD JD 
Co-counsel to Dr. Frank Fowlie  

_______________________________ 
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The information in this email is intended solely for the addressee(s) named and is confidential. Any other distribution, 
disclosure or copying is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please reply by email to 
the sender and delete or destroy all copies of this message. Thank you. 

Ce courriel est transmis à titre confidentiel et n’est destiné qu'à la personne ou à l'entité à qui ils sont adressés et 
pourraient bénéficier du secret professionnel. Un tel privilège est réclamé de façon expresse. Si vous avez reçu ce 
courriel par erreur vous êtes prié de contacter l'auteur immédiatement et d'effacer la version originale. Veuillez ne pas 
diffuser, distribuer ou copier. Merci. 
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Frank Fowlie

From: Andre Marin <andremarinlaw@gmail.com>
Sent: Monday, August 29, 2022 11:01 AM
To: Mark Bourrie; Frank Fowlie
Subject: Fwd: Next Steps Concerning Fowlie

You can’t fix crazy! 

Sent from my iPhone 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: Ahmed Shamiya <ahmed.a.shamiya@
Date: August 29, 2022 at 11:09:21 AM EDT 
To: justins@  Mark Bourrie  Andre Marin 

Cc: David Spinney  dtaylor@  KCaron@
Subject: Next Steps Concerning Fowlie 

Dear Legal Representation for Frank Fowlie, David Spinney, Mara Schiavulli, 

I am writing to advise all of you that I will be making an official WCL Complaint against Frank 
Fowlie today for engaging in racist and threatening behaviour.  

Also, I would like all of you to know that once the WCL Discipline Process addressing Fowlie's 
racism is complete, myself, some fellow Palestinians, McMaster students and alumni who feel 
strongly about the integrity of Canada's immigration system, will be reaching out to my Member 
of Parliament, The Honourable Karina Gould. We will be providing her with detailed 
information concerning the past and recent disturbing behaviour of Frank Fowlie.   

We will be asking Minister Gould to speak with her colleague, The Honourable Sean Fraser, 
Minister of Immigration, Refugees, and Citizenship, to investigate the appropriateness of Frank 
Fowlie being involved in a decision making capacity regarding immigrants in Canada.   

I realize Coach Spinney believes that since Frank Fowlie is no longer involved in wrestling, 
there is no need to raise any concerns about Fowlie. However, after seeing Fowlie's most recent 
racist, xenophobic, and threatening behaviour, I cannot simply stand by and remain silent while 
this bully remains in a position of authority over the lives of immigrants. My family has received 
immeasurable benefit from Canada's immigration system and I feel I have a duty to share 
important information about Frank Fowlie with the Government of Canada - a serial bully who 
uses his position of privilege as a white man to engage in the maltreatment of women, 
minorities, and immigrants.   

It is also important for the sexually abused and harrassed female athletes and coaches that I am 
supporting to see that I continue to take a stance against men in positions of authority behaving 
badly. I have come to learn that the strength I demonstrate in the face of bad behaviour has a 
positive impact upon victims who are too fearful to speak out themselves.     

Out of respect for Coach Spinney, I am letting his legal counsel know my intentions in advance 
so that there are no surprises. I also want the record to be clear that I am giving Fowlie 
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advanced opportunity to mitigate any of the damages that he might later seek to claim. For 
example, I will send Fowlie all of my communication with the Government of Canada in advance 
so that he has enough time to seek an injunction to suppress my communication.    

When I communicate with the Government of Canada, I will share facts and evidence that 
demonstrates: 

 Fowlie's past abusive and dangerous behaviour (Tribunal proven)
 Fowlie's deceitful conduct in Tribunal settings
 The circumstances of Fowlie being described by WCL as the "judge, jury, and

executioner" as well as WCL's references to the scathing rebuke Fowlie received
during his role with Athletics Canada

 Fowlie's outrageous double standards being applied to the harassment of women and
minorities in wrestling in favour of white men in positions of power, including
harassment that would have been impossible if one of the victims were a heterosexual
women.  These facts concerning Fowlie's treatment of women in wrestling will be
especially compelling after the allegations of  and Madison Parks are
heard before The Office of the Sport Integrity Commissioner. I am fairly certain Fowlie
will NOT be involved in the hiring of any of those Panel members.

 The public shaming of Madison Parks as a direct violation of Sections 2.2.6.1.1 and
2.2.1.2.1 of the Universal Code of Conduct to Address and Prevent Maltreatment in
Sport

 Fowlie's most recent racist and threatening language as described below

Below is the text that will be in my WCL complaint.   

Ahmed Shamiya 

*********************************************************************************** 

My complaint is distinct from Coach Spinney's in that I am only reporting only one specific 
issue; racism.  

Frank Fowlie has engaged in a violation of section 2.2.1.2.1 of the Universal Code of 
Conduct to Prevent and Address Maltreatment in Sport (UCCMS) when Fowlie/his 
representation made: comments that are demeaning, humiliating, belittling, intimidating, 
insulting or threatening 

I am formally making a complaint that Frank Fowlie/Fowlie's representation has engaged in 
racist and threatening behaviour during my time participating in 2 separate WCL 
Discipline Proceedings (one as a respondent and one as a witness). Fowlie's most recent 
objectionable comments are highlighted below in yellow.   

On July 12, 2022 I was sent an email from Fowlie/Fowlie's representation in which he referred to 
me and other BIPOC "Participants" in the sport of wrestling using racist language.   

Fowlie's legal representative said, "This is like an internet scam. We never really know what the 
three amigos are up to, except no good." 

The Everyday Language of White Racism 
I am attaching a screenshot of what comes up when you google "three amigos". The pictures in 
this screenshot speak volumes. It is shameful that Frank Fowlie thinks it's OK to reduce BIPOC 
coaches (who happen to share phenotypical characteristics of Latin American people) to 
"comical" racist stereotypes.   
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The social psychologist Dr. Christian Tileaga of Loughborough University states, 

"Irrespective of the chosen analytical perspective, analysis of the language of racism 
considers “speaking about others“ a matter of paramount significance.  This is a far-
reaching issue that can help one understand not only the interplay and role of language, 
culture and race in the continuous reproduction of racism.....Commonsensical meanings 
we attach to race and racism, to language and the way we use language, are said to be 
an integral part of how racism operates and perpetuates itself in society." 

The Complainant will likely attempt to downplay the racism in this July 12, 2022 communication 
because he is clearly obtuse to the standards expected in Canadian sport in 2022, however I 
would ask WCL to consider what would happen if Frank Fowlie dressed up like the "three 
amigos" and walked around our campus at McMaster University (or any of the many campuses 
that host WCL Training Centres). I suggest that Frank Fowlie would quickly learn that standards 
related to racism in 2022 are very different than they were 36 years ago in 1986 (the year that 
the Three Amigos movie was released). 

There is no excuse for white people to refer to brown people as "three amigos". I acknowledge 
that because of the colour of my skin, I sometimes gets mistaken as Latin American, however I 
am brown because I am ethnically Palestinian.   

Scholars refer to this behaviour as the “everyday language of white racism” - see Ms. Jane Hill’s 
publication on the matter (Online ISBN: 9781444304732).  It is deeply offensive when white 
people engage in name calling that perpetuates "comical" stereotypes of my skin colour - it is 
racist and has no part in a WCL Discipline Hearing or in wider Canadian society.   

I am attaching a news article that speaks about the racism of the "three amigos" comment.  

https://www.sandiegouniontribune.com/opinion/letters-to-the-editor/sd-three-amigos-response-
utak-20170616-story.html 

Additional Racism and Xenophobia from Fowlie/Fowlie's Representation  
I was also a witness in another WCL Discipline Proceeding in which I was provided evidence 
demonstrating that Frank Fowlie/Fowlie's representation engaged in racially demeaning 
behaviour. 

As part of my duties in that hearing, I read an email dated June 9th, 2022, from Fowlie/Fowlie's 
representative to the WCL Complaint's Officer Yampolsky. Fowlie/Fowlie's representative says: 

"One day, your “determinations” may set off a complainant who might successfully hunt 
for your head" 

"You are laying the groundwork for your demise. Remember that. Remember where you 
heard it first. You might consider resigning before it gets to that.  By the way, you might 
want to invest in a spell check. Your email, with all its grammar and syntax mistakes make 
you look amateurish." 

In the "three amigos" news article referenced above, it states, "Community members who have 
been impacted by words that reflect casual racism and actual fear for their families need more 
than an apology". As you read the words of Frank Fowlie/Fowlie's representation you can 
clearly see the violent and threatening messaging, while he simultaneously engages in 
xenophobic ridicule of an immigrant.  The news article's description of "actual fear" rings true 
when you read these intimidating words from Fowlie.   
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The WCL Complaints Officer Ilan Yampolsky, it would seem, speaks English as a second 
language. I come from a family of immigrants and so I realize that because of the age at which 
some people arrive in Canada, newcomers may continue to speak English with an accent and 
make grammatical mistakes. It is beyond question that belittling an immigrant because of flaws 
in their English is cruel and offensive.  I am a BIPOC wrestling coach who has seen and 
experienced racism in the sport of wrestling.  I believe I have a duty to take a stand against 
racism in all its forms.    

Appropriate Resolution 
I ask that Frank Fowlie receive a reprimand from a WCL Panel for violating Section 2.2.1.2.1 of 
the UCCMS by using racially offensive and threatening language during the course of WCL 
Discipline Proceedings as well as an indefinite suspension that will only be lifted once Frank 
Fowlie has provided an apology letter for using racially offensive and threatening language. 



Frank Fowlie

From: Ahmed Shamiya <ahmed.a.shamiya@
Sent: Monday, July 18, 2022 9:58 AM
To: Timothy Cullen
Cc: Madison Parks; David Spinney; Andre Marin; Mark Bourrie; Frank Fowlie; Ilan Yampolsky; Tamara 

Medwidsky
Subject: Re: Fowlie v. Spinney et al. - Response of the Panel

Dear WCL Executive Director Tamara Medwidsky, 

I am writing to you to express my concern about the racism taking place in 2 WCL hearings of which I am 
involved in; one of which I am a Respondent and one in which I am a witness (or possible representative). At 
the end of this email I ask WCL a very important question.   

Facts 
On July 13, 2022 I wrote to Panel Cullen and carefully and thoughtfully expressed my concerns about the 
racism I had just suffered in the hearing.    

On July 15, 2022 Panel Cullen reprimanded all sides for "lack of civility" in the content of our "written 
exchanges" in this proceeding.  I have only had one "written exchange" in this hearing and that was my July 
13, 2022 email.   

On July 16, 2022 I read an email dated June 9th, 2022 from Frank Fowlie's legal representative. In this email 
Dr. Fowlie's representation said to the WCL Complaint's Officer Yampolsky,  

"You have no credibility left at all. You continue to show animus against Dr. Frank Fowlie. I see no need 
to respond to either of your “determinations.” You’re not a judge. You are like a traffic cop directing 
traffic. You have no legal credentials whatsoever. And you don’t even offer what little contribution you 
can make to your “determination”. 

Dr. Fowlie through his representative also said, 

"One day, your “determinations” may set off a complainant who might successfully hunt for your head”. 

Dr. Fowlie through his representative also said, 

"You are laying the ground work for your demise. Remember that. Remember where you heard it first. 
You might consider resigning before it gets to that.  By the way, you might want to invest in a spell 
check. Your email, with all its grammar and syntax mistakes make you look amateurish". 

As you can see Dr. Fowlie engages in racist and disrespectful behaviour on matters that I am involved with. 
Reading this email was terrifying. Dr. Fowlie's side aggressively foreshadows the imminent harm of the 
WCL Complaint's Officer - using speech laced with horribly violent descriptions while 
simultanously engaging in blatantly racist and xenophobic commentary about the Complaint Officer's 
imperfect English.  

I ask Panel Cullen, how can Dr. Fowlie complain about me when he speaks like this to the new Complaint's 
Officer?   
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When I was criticizing Dr. Fowlie, I was advocating for athlete safety - Dr. Fowlie on the other hand was 
engaged in nothing more than a reprehensible racist tantrum related to the decision of Mr. Yampolsky to send 
his violation of confidentiality to a Discipline Panel.   

Aftermath 
I have gone back and read my July 13, 2022 email multiple times and I am at a loss to understand how my 
email amounted to a "lack of civility". All I did was speak out against a man who has a historical record of 
engaging in aggressive bullying type behaviour, who was actively engaging in casual white racism against me 
in the hearing.  Panel Cullen's letter indicates that he believes that speaking out against racist behaviour 
amounts to a "lack of civility". Clearly I stand no chance of being absolved by Panel Cullen.   

I have barely slept since having experienced Dr. Fowlie's racist bullying taking place in events of which I am 
involved with. I am gutted that even speaking out will cause someone in a position of power like Panel Cullen 
to reprimand me. The emotional impact upon me is significant.   

Analysis 
Dr. Fowlie's negative comments about a non-native English speaker's grammar is reprehensible and the courts 
have condemned this kind of behaviour.   

In  R v Stephan, 2021 ABCA 82, the Alberta Court of Appeal case addressed this exact issue of xenophobic 
and racist conduct in which a trial judge negatively commented on the speech and grammar of a witness.   

In this case the Crown argued that the way a person speaks should have no bearing on the weight of their 
evidence, saying the comments made by the judge about the witness were “downright degrading”.  The 
Crown argued that the judge in that case "sent a message to people who speak English as a second 
language that they shouldn't even bother participating in our courts". The Alberta Court of Appeal condemned 
the judges comments as a factor in demonstrating an apprehension of bias, leading to the overturning of the 
trial judge's decision.   

(FYI - Dozens of medical and legal experts filed a complaint against Justice Terry Clackson alleging that he 
acted in a "discriminatorily" fashion and "harshly mocked" a medical examiner's accented speech. 
This complaint has been accepted and is being adjudicated by the Canadian Judicial Council's conduct 
committee. www.cbc.ca/news/canada/calgary/alberta-judge-terry-clackson-complaint-medical-expert-
1.5944109) 

Frank Fowlie's behaviour as an "expert" sends a message to participants in wrestling, that if you speak English 
as a second language, you shouldn't even bother participating in our Discipline Proceedings unless you are 
prepared to be demeaned and belittled.   

Dr. Fowlie should not be allowed to demean a non-native English speaker in this way and he shouldn't be 
allowed to make racist comments to BIPOC members of the wrestling community, or anyone else for that 
matter. This abusive/harassing behaviour simply has no place in Canadian sport.   

Is WCL Willing to Take a Stance on Dr. Fowlie's Everyday White Racism? 
Ms. Medwidsky, I am sure you can appreciate that since McMaster University is a stakeholder in WCL (as part 
of USport), they may have serious concerns about the shockingly brazen racism taking place in the two 
hearings I am involved in. They may also have objections to the reprimand I received on July 15, 2022 after I 
expressed my concerns about racism. It is not in the interest of WCL to have its stakeholders believing 
that BIPOC coaches or athletes are being subjected to racism in their involvement with WCL.   

Since Panel Cullen found my words problematic, then perhaps a news article that speaks to the racism of the 
"three amigos" comment would be less objectionable.   www.sandiegouniontribune.com/opinion/letters-to-the-
editor/sd-three-amigos-response-utak-20170616-story.html    
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This is truly the everyday language of white racism.  

I have an extremely serious question for WCL about its interpretation of its own Code of Conduct. Sec. 48 of 
the WCL Discipline Policy says that the discipline and complaints process "involves" WCL and so please do 
not avoid answering this very serious question because there are no Policy prohibitions on WCL commenting 
on Dr. Fowlie's racist and xenophobic conduct at this time. 

If a white man engages in casual racism against a BIPOC coach, and that coach speaks out in the way 
that I spoke on July 13, 2022, has that coach committed an offence worthy of a reprimand?  

I do not speak on behalf of McMaster University, but I can tell you that they take racism very seriously.  Once 
this hearing is over I will be showing McMaster everything, including WCL's answer, or non-answer, to this 
question. 

Regards, 
Ahmed Shamiya 

On Fri, Jul 15, 2022 at 4:39 PM Timothy Cullen  wrote: 

Dear Parties and Counsel, 

In response to all of the correspondence that has been exchanged this week, the Panel notes: 

1. Mr. Spinney’s extension was understood to have been sought in respect of his own submissions and was
accordingly granted in respect of his own submissions. Before rendering a decision in respect of any of the
Respondents, the Panel will be reviewing all submissions from the Claimant and Mr. Spinney.

2. This is a Process #1 proceeding, which does not contemplate motions being made to the Panel. The role of the
Arbitrator is limited to a determination with respect to sanction in relation to the Complaint on the basis of the written
submissions of the parties. No motions will be heard by the Panel in this process.

3. While the subject matter of the Complaint is deeply personal for the parties and tensions are high, the Panel is
disappointed by the lack of civility in the content of the written exchanges from all sides in this proceeding. The Panel
reminds all parties and counsel that the use of inflammatory language, quick quips and other uncivil exchanges do
nothing to advance the positions of the parties in this proceeding and will be disregarded by the Panel in any event.

4. Counsel for the Claimant know better than to copy a non-participant on an exchange in this proceeding, regardless
of the fact that the particular non-participant in this instance may be fully aware of this proceeding and the allegations
in the Complaint. The Panel expects all parties and counsel to respect the confidentiality of this Complaint process as
contemplated by the WCL policy.
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- The Panel

Timothy Cullen 
Partner, Litigation and Dispute Resolution

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This email, including any attachments, may contain information that is confidential and privileged  Any unauthorized 
disclosure, copying or use of this email is prohibited  If you are not the intended recipient, please notify us by reply email or telephone call and 
permanently delete this email and any copies immediately   

Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail. 

From: Madison Parks <madisonparkspoa@
Sent: Wednesday, July 13, 2022 8:28 PM 
To: Ahmed Shamiya <ahmed.a.shamiya@
Cc: David Spinney <Dave@  Andre Marin  Timothy Cullen 

Mark Bourrie  Ilan Yampolsky 
Subject: Re: Schiavulli and Shamiya's default in meeting the July 11, 2022 deadline 

[EXTERNAL/EXTERNE] 

Dear All, 

After Frank Fowlie was fired and was no longer in a position of power over my daughter I put him out of my mind...all 
communication ended.  I was relieved that this misogynist would never again engage in maltreatment of my 
daughter...good riddance to the so-called "independent" Complaints Officer who "styled himself as the judge, jury, and 
executioner".  (WCL lawyer Mr. Goldblatt wrote those highlighted words immediately before Frank Fowlie was 
terminated)  
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But after these most recent disrespectful emails that make racist commentary and false allegations it's apparent that 
I'm still being forced to deal with this man's ugly behaviour.  I may share the same skin colour and appearance as many 
Mexicans but I am Canadian. It's wrong to refer to me and these 2 BIPOC coaches as "three amigos".   

I find it deeply offensive that the Complainant makes demeaning racist comments in a manner that suggests that he 
believes that he's immune from being held to the standard of behaviour that is acceptable in the current era of 
Canadian sport.  It seems obvious that Frank Fowlie's inglorious termination from WCL has taught him no humility 
whatsoever.   

Frank Fowlie continues to behave like a bully whose legal team uses insults, false allegations, and racist commentary 
simply because they feel like it.  

For the above stated reasons, I would like to join Coach Shamiya and Coach Spinney in my criticism of a man who, 
among other things, violated the Universal Code of Conduct to Prevent and Address Maltreatment in Sport while 
harming my daughter - a man who is still behaving badly today. 

I readily admit that my email today is the same kind of criticism that I've made against this "expert" in the past - 
criticism that has resulted in me being a Respondent in this hearing. By this rationale, it only makes sense to add 
today's email to the "evidence" that Frank Fowlie believes is deserving of my lifetime ban.  Perhaps Frank Fowlie can 
amend his Statement of Claim to include my criticism from today and then re-submit his amended Statement of Claim 
to Panel Cullen as evidence against me.   

Please read the sentence in which Frank Fowlie asks Panel Cullen for my permanent removal from wrestling. This single 
sentence demonstrates the inappropriateness of Frank Fowlie being in the role of WCL's Complaints Officer far better 
than 10,000 words written by me ever could.  In the words of Mr. Goldblatt, "What is clear is that this Complaint 
became personal to the Officer. He abandoned neutrality and entered into the fray. This was inappropriate" 

This "expert" actually believes that for the rest of my life I should be prohibited from attending a tournament to watch 
my daughter compete because as a parent I spoke out against his maltreatment of my daughter.   

But of course Frank Fowlie thinks I'm deserving of the most extreme sanction in all of sport, because after all, Fowlie 
has a history of failed claims in which he purports to have been victimized by some form of injustice 
(Spinney's submissions will prove it). Even Mr. Goldblatt has criticized Fowlie for "comparing himself to a victim of 
domestic violence."   It's no wonder that WCL realized that this "expert" needed to be fired.   
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I stood up and spoke out against a man in a position of power who was engaging in Maltreatment of my daughter and if 
that means that Panel Cullen is going to punish me for it then, like Coach Shamiya, I will accept those sanctions as a 
badge of honour.   

I ask that my name be added in support of both Coach Shamiya's and Coach Spinney's motions.   

Mara Schiavulli 

On Wed, Jul 13, 2022 at 11:41 AM Ahmed Shamiya  wrote: 

Dear All, 

I forgot to attach the screenshot in my last email. Please find attached a screenshot of what comes up when you 
Google "three amigos". As you can see, the pictures that appear prominently speak loud and clear.   

Ahmed Shamiya  

On Wed, Jul 13, 2022 at 11:23 AM Ahmed Shamiya wrote: 

Dear Panel Cullen and Mr. Yampolsky, 

Upon the conclusion of this hearing I will be meeting with my employer McMaster University to give them an update 
on these matters.   

McMaster University has taken a very strong stance in the last two years on issues relating to racism. I am confident 
that when McMaster reads all of the documentation related to Frank Fowlie they will be disturbed regarding how he 
has treated BIPOC coaches and athletes from December 2020 until present.   

Coach Spinney's submissions will deal with the double standards that the Complainant applied to white people and 
BIPOC members of the wrestling community, but I am compelled to speak up here and now in the face of the 
Complainant's ongoing racism.   
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The Everyday Language of White Racism 

I am attaching a screenshot of what comes up when you google "three amigos". The pictures in this screenshot speak 
volumes. It is shameful that the Complainant thinks it's OK to reduce BIPOC coaches (who happen to share 
phenotypical characteristics of Latin American people) to a "comical" racist stereotype.   

The social psychologist Dr. Christian Tileaga of Loughborough University states,  

"Irrespective of the chosen analytical perspective, analysis of the language of racism considers “speaking about 
others“ a matter of paramount significance.  This is a far-reaching issue that can help one understand not only 
the interplay and role of language, culture and race in the continuous reproduction of 
racism.....Commonsensical meanings we attach to race and racism, to language and the way we use language, 
are said to be an integral part of how racism operates and perpetuates itself in society." 

The Complainant will likely attempt to downplay the racism in this July 12, 2022 communication because he is clearly 
obtuse to the standards expected in Canadian sport in 2022, however I would ask the Panel to consider what would 
happen if Frank Fowlie and his two white lawyers dressed up like the "three amigos" and walked around our campus 
at McMaster University (or any of the many campuses that host WCL Training Centres). Please consider if Dr. Fowlie 
would impress anyone with his resume when dressed like that. I suggest that Frank Fowlie would quickly learn that 
standards related to racism in 2022 are very different than they were 36 years ago in 1986 (the year that the Three 
Amigos movie was released). 

While I believe that Frank Fowlie has egregiously misrepresented the facts in many of his allegations, let me admit 
here and now that I have assertively criticized Frank Fowlie's behaviour on many occasions.  I have consistently 
taken the position that Frank Fowlie behaves like a bully who does not belong in the position of Complaints Officer 
in which victims of abuse, particularly Indigenous victims of sexual abuse, should be expected to trust Frank Fowlie 
to receive their sensitive disclosures.   

The sport of wrestling has a serious problem with gender-based sexual violence as evidenced by the fact that at least 
three more victims of sexual abuse in wrestling have spoken out in recent months (including an Indigenous victims of 
sexual abuse).  Separate and apart from these three victims, in this year alone a wrestling referee and a Provincial 
Coach from the last Canada Games have been criminally convicted for sexaul assault (the latter being sentenced to 
four years in jail).   

Sadly, the Government of Canada statistics are undeniable - only 5% of victims of sexual violence come forward to 
disclose abuse and so it is incumbent upon the Canadian sport dispute resolution system to ensure that the 
Complaints Officers hired to receive these disclosures/allegations do not behave in a way that will cause victims to be 
hesitant to speak to the Officers.   



As has been stated previously, no amount of resume building can erase the fact that Frank Fowlie has a historical 
public record of being a bully.  The CTA Tribunal proved that Frank Fowlie is a bully (as well as someone who will 
nefariously change evidence in order to advance his false and failed narrative).  Frank Fowlie's 2021 treatment of 
Madison Parks proved that he is a bully.  And yesterday's July 12, 2022 correspondence proves that Frank Fowlie is 
still a bully who behaves like we are back in 1986.  

Let me be perfectly clear what I am alleging: White male Complaints Officers who behave like Frank Fowlie 
decrease the likelihood that female and BIPOC victims will make disclosures of sexual abuse and harassment - for 
this reason Frank Fowlie made the sport of wrestling less safe. The submissions of Coach Spinney will demonstrate 
this. 

If Panel Cullen convicts me of a WCL Code of Conduct violation for speaking out about Frank Fowlie during his time as 
WCL Complaints Officer, then it will be a badge of honour that I will wear proudly.   

Mr. Yampolsky, upon our return to Canada in August, Coach Spinney and I will be making a formal WCL complaint for 
the "Disrespectful Conduct" of the Complainant's July 12, 2022 communication - I simply will no longer tolerate racist 
and bullying behaviour from Frank Fowlie and/or his representation. 

But in the meantime, I would like to make my own separate motion. I am asking the Panel to do more than Coach 
Spinney is asking in his motion.   

Motion: I make a motion that Panel Cullen immediately denounce the July 12, 2022 correspondence from the 
Complainant as "disrespectful conduct".   

I respectfully submit that it is important that the Panel restores order by making it clear that the Panel believes that 
we as BIPOC coaches should be safe to participate in this hearing without experiencing racist disrespectful conduct.    

Regards, 

Ahmed Shamiya  

On Wed, Jul 13, 2022 at 6:54 AM David Spinney <Dave@autus.ca> wrote: 

Dear WCL Discipline Panel Ilan Yampolsky and Panel Cullen, 



I write to you today for 2 reasons: 

Issue #1: The Volume of Reading 

The first reason I write is to possibly be of assistance with respect to the 50 extra pages of reading that the 
Complainant has added to the Panel's mandate. 

Frank Fowlie believes that submitting a 50-page Statement of Claim at this late stage "provides all of the salient 
arguments and analysis of the various emails".    

I believe it is inappropriate to ask a WCL Discipline Panel to read a 50-page Statement of Claim meant for the Civil 
courts in a Process #1 WCL Discipline Hearing dealing with "Disrespect Conduct".   

However, since Dr. Fowlie/Marin wants his Statement of Claim used as evidence against me then I will consider 
providing you with the Statement of Defence for myself and Ms. Schiavulli, prior to the deadline. 

Since the parties are not allowed to question each other, I ask that the Panel weigh the strength of the competing 
documents on their face. You will be able to see that the Statement of Defences provides a clear and rational 
example of how Frank Fowlie makes erroneous allegations.   

I plan on making a larger submission before my deadline as well, but I wanted to make you aware of my intentions. 

Issue #2 Directing the Complainant to Cease Disrespectful Conduct 

As stated above, it is clear on the face of those of the legal pleadings that the Complainant makes many erroneous 
claims/allegations.  You will see from my upcoming submissions that it was Dr. Fowlie's own bad behaviour that 
caused him to be fired by WCL. 

In fact, in the last 2 weeks we have all just had a chance to experience in real-time how the Complainant makes false 
accusations.  In the Complainant's June 29th, 2022, letter to the WCL complaints officer, it was stated that: 



“Mr. Spinney is not an official member of the team Canada coaching staff at the Commonwealth game. He’s being 
deceitful and disingenuous and claiming that he is part of any team Canada coaching." 

He also stated, 

“Mr. Spinney is merely attending as a tourist or observer, not in any formal capacity.   “Volunteer Coach” as he calls 
himself do not have any standing.   

I submit to WCL Discipline Panel Ilan Yampolsky and Panel Cullen the June 29, 2022, letter from the Executive Director 
of Wrestling Canada Lutte establishes that the Complainant's June 29th, 2022, allegations are false and derogatory.   

To state that I would make such a flagrant and egregious lie about my role as a coach for Canada is a serious 
allegation that speaks directly to my role within Wrestling Canada Lutte - an accusation that is clearly false.   

I ask the Panel to take note that once the Complainant makes an allegation, he apparently expects it to be believed as 
truth regardless of what the facts state.  In the last 2 weeks you have seen this bizarre and incomprehensible 
behaviour - it speaks to the credibility of Dr. Fowlie's allegations as a whole.  For example, yesterday, July 12, 2022, 
the Complainant just said. "Spinney asked for a postponement of his submission based on HIS purported coaching at 
the Commonwealth Games, which we demonstrated was a complete fake."   

Panel Cullen, what is going on here?  Did we not all read the June 29, 2022, letter from the Executive Director of WCL 
that clearly stated that I am part of, "WCL’s coaching staff for the 2022 Commonwealth Games in Birmingham, 
England.  He is expected to be travelling from August 3 to 9, 2022."   

How is the Complainant simply ignoring the facts?  He has received the letter from WCL and yet he continues to make 
these disparaging allegations against me.  Clearly, I am being neither "fake" or "deceitful" regarding my coaching role 
at the Commonwealth Games.   

It is disturbing that while making these false allegations of being “deceitful” in my role as a coach the Complainant 
continues to use rude, inflammatory, and racist language.   

For example, there is no excuse for white people to refer to brown people as "three amigos".  I spoke with Coach 
Shamiya yesterday and he would like to point out that because of the colour of his skin he sometimes gets mistaken 
as Latin American, however he is brown because he is ethnically Palestinian.  I am also a person of colour, and even 
though my family originated from Cuba I was born and raised in Canada. I am in no way Latin American or Spanish - I 



am Canadian. Scholars refer to this behaviour as the “everyday language of white racism” - see Ms. Jane Hill’s 
publication on the matter (Online ISBN: 9781444304732).  Coach Shamiya and I don't appreciate white people 
engaging in name calling that perpetuates "comical" stereotypes of our skin colour - it is racist and has no part in a 
WCL Discipline Hearing.   

Furthermore, the Complainant specifically mentioned Madison Parks in his June 29, 2022, letter.  Referencing Ms. 
Parks in simple timeline protestation provided absolutely no evidentiary/argumentative value to the issue he was 
advancing.  When the WCL Complaint’s Officer considers the totality of historical circumstances between Madison 
Parks and Frank Fowlie it is evident that the inclusion of Madison Parks in his June 29, 2022, letter was beyond 
disrespectful to the young athlete/victim.   

I will have more to say about the Complainant's Disrespectful Conduct in my submissions, but in the meantime, I 
make the following motion. 

Motion:  I make a motion that the Panel order the Complainant to cease his Disrespectful Conduct which includes 
racist name-calling, inflammatory language, and making transparently false allegations.   

Thank you, 

Dave 

David W. Spinney, President 

M.A.(Econ.) CIM® FCSI®

Executive Assistant:  
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Ilan Yampolsky 
Subject: Re: Schiavulli and Shamiya's default in meeting the July 11, 2022 deadline 
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On Jul 12, 2022, at 5:44 PM, David Spinney wrote: 

Dear Panel Cullen, 

This is a single hearing that involves 3 Respondents.  My submissions speak to all of Dr. Fowlie's 
allegations involving all three parties who he alleges were acting in concert. 

For example, I will be using the erroneous allegations of Dr. Fowlie against Ahmed Shamiya to help 
demonstrate the absurdity of all these allegations.     

Thank you, 

Dave 

David W. Spinney, President 

M.A.(Econ.) CIM® FCSI®



Executive Assistant:  

AUTUS WEALTH | CAPITAL 

200 Villagewalk Blvd. Suite 300B 

London, Ontario N6G 0W8 
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F: 519.645.7899 
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Frank Fowlie

From: Ahmed Shamiya 
Sent: Monday, September 20, 2021 12:23 PM
To: complaints@wrestling.ca
Cc: Tamara Medwidsky; edurant@  RatushnyD
Subject: A Continuing Double Standard

Dear Government of Canada, and/or Commissionaire of Inquiry, and or Trial Judge, and or Human 
Rights Tribunal, 

Even though you will not likely be reading this correspondence for a period of weeks or months I am 
addressing you in advance to establish for the record that I am aware of the nefarious games that Frank Fowlie 
continues to play, however, I am never-the-less participating in good-faith in this WCL Discipline Process even 
though it is biased and not genuinely attempting to address issues of athlete safety. 

I also wanted to point out to you the enormous amount of effort and pressure it took just to have Frank Fowlie 
demonstrate the most basic levels of respect to  address me by name.  As you consider Frank Fowlie's 
abusive past, his 5 Instances of Misconduct, and his unwillingness to even respect a complainant's wishes to 
be addressed by name, I ask yourself if you think this is the kind of man who victims of abuse, particualrly 
racialized victims of sexual abuse, would feel safe making disclosures too.  WCL Officer Fowlie's behaviour is 
a textbook example of how WCL has been able to help silence victims of abuse for so many years.   

WCL Officer Fowlie, 

Thank you for referring to me by name.  

I realize that you liken yourself to a victim (you have an established public history of falsely claiming you have 
been mistreated).  Although I think it is most likely that you are behaving as a "hired gun" for WCL (just like the 
previous 3 Safety Officers) , I am willing to consider the possibility that you are not being sinister but instead 
you possibly genuinely operate from a belief system suffering from grand delusion.  Let me state for the record:

I know that it must be frustrating to have your public history of abuse and deceit discussed over and over 
again, however I remind you that you are the person who chose to generate money as someone who victims of 
abuse in wrestling should be expected to trust with sensitive disclosures.  You applied for a job that affords you 
massive power to impact the lives of others.  For this reason, so long as you remain in this position of 
incredible importance to the safety of our sport and the lives of others, your very public history as abusive and 
deceitful behaviour, along with the horrible behaviour you have demonstrated to marginalized groups within the 
wrestling community, will remain a live issue that will continue to be discussed as relevant to the issues at 
hand.   

With respect to my complaint I am aware that you are trying to impede my efforts, however I will continue to 
dedicate a little more time to establish that I was more than reasonable in the efforts I made to advance a 
complaint - a complaint intended to help make the sport safer for marginalized members of the wrestling 
community. 

WCL Officer Fowlie asks:  
Will you please advise why Mr. Ratushny and Ms Durant are included as CC’s in this email?  How did you 
come to know of their involvement, if any, with any WCL Matter? 

Coach Spinney has provided me information about this ongoing matter and I am copying parties that I believe 
are involved.   
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WCL Officer Fowlie, will you now authorize Ms. Durant to continue her investigation and afford my 
allegations the same investigatory resources you afforded the male Caucasion complainants who 
hold/held positions of power in WCL/the sport of wrestling?   

Regards, 
Ahmed Shamiya 
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Frank Fowlie

From: Ahmed Shamiya 
Sent: Saturday, September 18, 2021 11:49 AM
To: complaints@wrestling.ca; Tamara Medwidsky; RatushnyD@
Cc: edurant@
Subject: Complaint Follow-up

Dear WCL CEO Medwidsky 

I ask you to take note that the WCL Officer has repeatedly decided to not address me by name and/or 
title.  Because of his established tribunal history of abuse and deceit, along with his very concerning behaviour 
during his time as the WCL Officer, I believe that Frank Fowlie is a dangerous and abusive man who should 
not be involved with our sport, and yet despite my views I still demonstrate the professional courtesy of 
addressing him by name and/or title when sending him communication.   

I realize that given the 5 serious instances of disturbing behaviour of Frank Fowlie during his time in wrestling, 
not addressing complainants by their name or title is a relatively minor instance of unprofessionalism 
by comparison, however I feel it appropriate to demonstrate to WCL all aspects of unprofessionalism when 
Officer Fowlie is receiving complaints.   

Please add this to the growing list of examples of why it is reckless for WCL to expect that complainants and/or 
victims of abuse disclose abuse to a man who doesn't even address the sender by name when he 
receives complaints, consistently behaves in a way that creates fears of bias, and who grotesquely violates the 
privacy of abused athletes.   

Officer Fowlie, 

You should not have to be repeatedly corrected on issues of professionalism/misconduct.  Please do better 
when you communicate with those who make complaints.   

Thank you for the graphic.  You are already very familiar with these facts and issues and so it should take you 
no time to tell me what the next steps are.  Any delay in communicating your decision will be perceived as a 
stalling tactic.   

My statutory declaration (and witnesses) is all the evidence that I will be proceeding with in my complaint.  The 
audio recording referred to in my statutory declaration includes information about females in the 
wrestling community beyond Madison Parks.  After receiving legal advice, I sent copies of the audio recording 
to those who were demeaned as well as sport authorities such as Sport Canada and WCL.  After losing my 
laptop on a recent international trip I realized how quickly sensitive information could get into the wrong 
hands.  As a result, I deleted much off of my phone because I did not want to be responsible for storing that 
kind of sensitive evidence/information.    

Among those who have received the audio recordings are Madison Parks, WCL, and Sport Canada. If you 
would like a copy of the recording you are certainly free to ask for them.  Perhaps you could do the same thing 
you did when you were investigating Madison Parks and you can send all of those people a letter saying that 
they will be contacted by a lawyer who will be investigating Ed Zinger for Code of Conduct violations.  I am 
sure I don't need to remind you how you sent that written communication about Madison Parks out to the 
wrestling community even though the only evidence that Lucas Ó'Ceallachán was able to provide you was 
rumours and gossip.  Fortunately I am not providing you with rumours or gossip, rather I am speaking about 
what I directly witnessed.   
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Again, I am proceeding in my complaint with my sworn statement.  I suspect that Ed Zinger or 
Lucas Ó'Ceallachán did not give you a sworn statement.   

Like so many tribunal hearings it will be my word (and the word of witnesses) against that of the 
respondent.  You could of course do what you have done previously when WCL staff made 
complaints/allegations and you could hire Ms. Durant as the investigator who could speak with Ed Zinger and 
simply ask him if the portions of my Statutory Declaration that describes my interactions with Ed Zinger are 
accurate.   

Obviously I expect bias from you because of your previous behaviour, but I would like you to render a decision 
anyways for the record.  

Please tell me how you are proceeding. 

Regards, 
Ahmed Shamiya 
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Frank Fowlie

From: Ahmed Shamiya 
Sent: Sunday, September 19, 2021 3:37 PM
To: complaints@wrestling.ca
Cc: Tamara Medwidsky; edurant@
Subject: More Bad Behaviour

Officer Fowlie, 

I note that you still refuse to address me by my name despite my request.  

As a late aged Caucasian man who boasts about being a police officer from decades ago, and who 
has already been proven by a tribunal to be abusive and deceitful, I should not be surprised that you would not 
afford basic levels of respect to a young Muslim Palestinian.    

I note that you also used your discretionary power to apply a grotesque double standard when you were 
provided allegations of abuse of a Queer BIPOC athlete against a caucasian man.  In that case you 
recommended "going for a beer".  But when 2 Caucasian men wanted to make a complaint against a BIPOC 
coach after he spoke against the abuse of a BIPOC athlete you hired 3 lawyers and a police officer to go after 
that BIPOC man.   

You sir, are displaying transparent racism.  As this young Black Indigenous Queer woman advances her 
lawsuit against you I will be keeping the Government of Canada apprised of the verifiable facts and 
evidence.  Based on your historically verifiable behaviour I take the position that men who behave like you 
have no business dealing with refugees or immigrants while employed by the Government of Canada.  When I 
start sending facts and evidence to the Government of Canada I look forward to your cease and desist letters, 
almost as much as I look forward to a possible lawsuit or human rights complaint because after all Frank 
Fowlie, that is your historical record.   

I am aware that you make fake extortion allegations and so it's important that you are told that even if you start 
behaving better at this very moment there is nothing you can do that will prevent me from exercising my right to 
keep the Government of Canada informed about matters of public record.   

You don't have to like me Officer Fowlie, but as a WCL Complaints Officer you do have to afford basic levels of 
respect to complainants.  Once again, I insist that you begin behaving better; my name is Ahmed Shamiya. 

Officer Fowlie states: 
Please provide a copy of the correspondence you have received from WCL indicating they will not be acting as 
the complainant. 

I never said that I received correspondence from WCL indicating that they will not be acting as the complainant 
(strange how you seem to have such a poor handle on the facts...or perhaps this is just part of the transparent 
games you are playing).  Coach Spinney told me last week that Ms. Parks was very upset because she had 
just found out that WCL was not willing to be the complainant against Ed Zinger.     

Officer Fowlie states: 
From what you have written below you have not provided a written request explaining why you did not make 
the complaint within 14 days. 

This is now the third time I have explained this but I am willing to do it again for the record:   

Page 506 of 581

mcasselin
Rectangle



Reason for not Reporting within 14 Days  
When I first heard Ed Zinger demeaning women in the wrestling community, I was fearful to speak out.  Mr. 
Zinger is a very powerful person in the wrestling community and has the power to hurt both me and my 
athletes through reprisals.  I have personally experienced severe reprisals for speaking out against abuse and I 
have seen other people experience reprisals after they spoke out against abuse and maltreatment.  Reprisals 
were also confirmed in the Bennett Report.  

I am not sure how much clearer I can make this; I didn't make a complaint within 14 days because I was 
fearful of reprisals against me and the athletes I coach.   

In February of 2021 I decided to publicly share what Ed Zinger had done and so I made a statutory 
declaration.  It is my understanding that this Statutory Declaration and the audio recording was going to be 
shared with WCL (it was).  In recent years WCL has acted as the complainant against men in the wrestling 
community however I just found out last week that WCL was not going to be acting as the complainant against 
Ed Zinger (I have no idea why) and for reasons that I have already explained, I felt compelled to make an 
official WCL complaint now knowing that nobody else is making a complaint.  I must do this as part of my 
efforts to improve athlete safety in the sport of wrestling.   

Regards, 
Ahmed Shamiya 
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Frank Fowlie

From: Ahmed Shamiya 
Sent: September 15, 2021 12:14 PM 
To: complaints@wrestling.ca; edurant@  Tamara Medwidsky  David 
Spinney <dave@ RatushnyD@
Subject: Fwd: Exposing Abuse in Wrestling 

Dear WCL Complaints Officer and WCL Panel, 

I have recently discovered that WCL will not be the complainant against Ed Zinger.  For this reason, I feel 
compelled to make a complaint against Ed Zinger myself (even though I believe the WCL discipline process is 
deeply flawed/corrupted).   

I am attaching a statutory declaration describing these concerning events that give rise to my complaint. 

The Bennett Report has much to say about the treatment of women in wrestling and I need to express as 
strongly as possible that when powerful men in the sport of wrestling demean and defame women, it deepens 
a culture of fear and silence.   

https://wrestling.ca/wp-content/uploads/2018/12/FINAL-WCL-Report-for-Release-December-2-2018.pdf 

Our wrestling program here in Hamilton has had multiple instances of sexual abuse and harassment (you only 
need to Google "wrestling coach sexual assault Hamilton") and I am currently part of a support group that 
assists multiple young women in wrestling, who have been sexually abused and harassed but who are too 
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fearful to make disclosures to the police and sport authorities.  I therefore have a duty as a coach and witness 
to Ed Zinger's behaviour to make an official WCL complaint. 

Financial and Procedural Considerations Concerning my Complaint 
I have been told by David Spinney that I will be called as a witness in an upcoming hearing in which he is 
named as a Respondent.  Coach Spinney advises that I will be asked questions about my involvement with Ed 
Zinger as per the attached statutory declaration.  

As the coach for McMaster University, as well as the Head Coach for a WCL National Training Centre, I am a 
stakeholder in wrestling and my athletes have an interest in the financial health of WCL.  There is a lot of 
discussion in the wrestling community about the incredible amount of money WCL spends on lawyers.  I have 
heard that our NSO spends a far greater percentage of our budget on lawyers when compared to other 
sports.  I have also learned that for the first time in 40 years, Senior level athletes will have to entirely fund 
themselves to the World Championships next month.  Some athletes describe this as a very difficult financial 
hardship.   

In order to minimize expenses for WCL, I propose that Erin Durant be permitted to continue her investigation 
into the allegations against Ed Zinger since the incident described in the attached statutory declaration involves
the same issues that were partially investigated by Erin Durant previously.  If WCL doesn't have the money to 
allow Ms. Durant to continue her investigation then I will pay this cost.    

After this investigation, a decision can be made on whether or not my complaint should move to a Panel.  If the 
answer is yes, then it makes sense for Mr. Ratushny to act as the Panel because he will be dealing with the 
same set of facts in the complaint against David Spinney.  David Spinney is being ??? before the Panel with 
respect to communication he had with Ed Zinger and Lúcás Ó'Ceallacháin in response to the maltreatment of 
Madison Parks and , and both of these young women have made allegations against Ed 
Zinger and Lúcás Ó'Ceallacháin. Therefore, the Panel will be able to make a ruling on all of these issues in 
one single proceeding.   

Victim Centric Considerations 
The most important reason to include my complaint in the same proceeding being adjudicated before Mr. 
Ratushny is that it will allow Madison Parks and  to only have to attend one Disciplinary 
Hearing to be examined/cross-examined.  Because of the abuse they have suffered at the hands of Ed Zinger 
and Lúcás Ó'Ceallacháin, who are/were men in positions of power over these athletes, every effort should be 
made to be victim-centric in the handling of these allegations.  One hearing to address all of these issues is the 
most considerate and compassionate way forward for these young athletes.   There will also be other 
witnesses who will be spared having to attend multiple hearings. 

I remind everyone that this WCL Proceeding has already combined multiple complainants and so I hope that 
we are not going to experience more double-standards.   

Do My Efforts to Expose Abuse in Wrestling Constitute Harassment? 
The lawsuits against Frank Fowlie will address his horrible behaviour as WCL Complaints Officer (not 
unexpected given his established tribunal history of abuse and deceit), but that is another issue for another 
day; what matters right now is that he is still the WCL Complaints Officer and according to the standards of 
Officer Fowlie, I have apparently also engaged in systemic harassment.  

I am forwarding an email describing my efforts to expose Ed Zinger.  As you can see my communication is 
more public and my language is arguably much stronger than Coach Spinney's communication.  I have also 
made efforts to publicly expose the abuse of Lúcás Ó'Ceallacháin, resulting in a cease and desist letter from 
his lawyer.   

Furthermore, a good argument could be made that according to the "standards" of Officer Fowlie my 
communication is even more problematic because Coach Spinney's communication was making a settlement 
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offer when he was corresponding with Ed Zinger, but my communication made no such conciliatory offer to Mr. 
Zinger.   

For the Record 
My efforts concerning Ed Zinger and Lúcás Ó'Ceallacháin were meant to accomplish 2 things: 

1. To create awareness in the sport community about Ed Zinger's dangerous behaviour.  I maintain that the
sport is safer when stakeholders are made aware about men in positions of power who are dangerous,
harassing, and demeaning towards women.

2. To keep the Government of Canada, and the relevant organizations they fund, apprised regarding the
dangerous systemic behaviour taking place in the sport of wrestling.  All of these parties are stakeholders in
the sport of wrestling and I will continue to communicate with the Government of Canada, the Prime-Minister's
Office, and Members of Parliament, regarding relevant safety issues in our sport (as per the instructions of the
Minister of Sport in 2018).

For reasons of procedural and cost efficiencies, I think my actions should also be part of Erin Durant's 
continuing investigation and a determination be made by WCL Officer Fowlie if I am to be named as a 
Respondent.   

And finally I want to restate what has been said so many times; because of what has gone in WCL over the 
course of the previous 3 fake "independent" Complaints Officers and the Panels they have put in place; I have 
no faith whatsoever that this WCL complaints process is fair or unbiased, but I think that the sport of wrestling 
will ultimately be better off if I go through this complaint's process. 

Please advise how both my complaint and admission of public communication involving Ed Zinger 
and Lúcás Ó'Ceallacháin, will be handled.   

Regards, 
Ahmed Shamiya 

---------- Forwarded message --------- 
From: Ahmed Shamiya 
Date: Tue, Sep 14, 2021 at 3:14 PM 
Subject: Exposing Abuse in Wrestling 
To: Ontario Amateur Wrestling Association <admin@oawa.ca>, Tamara Medwidsky 
<erica.wiebe@  <jasminemian89@  <lappage.d@ David Spinney 
eamonn dorgan <moedorg@ <Steventakahashi92@ <ed.zinger@
<officials@oawa.ca>, <refgary@ , <mflinders@ , <mcasselin@ , Walker, Vicki (PCH) 

 <complaints@wrestling.ca>, Anne Merklinger 

Dear Members of the Canadian Wrestling Community, Sport Canada, and Own the Podium, 

Now that I have discovered that WCL will not be advancing a complaint against Ed Zinger I bring to your 
attention the horrible behaviour of one of the most powerful men in wrestling.   

WCL and Sport Canada are already in possession of a statutory declaration and audio recording confirming 
incidents that I witnessed.  They have had this information for over 6 months.   

Officials/Referees are essential to the success of our sport, but the evidence demonstrates that Ed Zinger is an 
abusive misogynist.  When a young woman says that Ed Zinger has harassed her for nearly a decade, I 
believe her.  I have seen with my own eyes how Mr. Zinger treats women in wrestling. 

Page 510 of 581

mcasselin
Rectangle



4

I firmly believe that the primary reason for the complete and catastrophic destruction of high-
performance female wrestling in Canada is because for far too long, so-called "good men" have remained 
silent when women are abused, marginalized, and silenced.  Silence has clearly led to violence for many 
victims in our sport.   

Over the past 12 months I have had the opportunity to look carefully at what Coach David Spinney has done to 
support sexually abused and harassed wrestlers over the last 20 years. I realize through his example, that I 
cannot call myself a good man if I am silent on the important issue of safety and respect for women in 
wrestling.  Because of the example of Coach Spinney and Erica Wiebe, I am inspired to speak out and become
part of the solution.   

Today my efforts are focused on exposing Ed Zinger, but he is not the first abusive man who I have helped 
expose in the sport of wrestling.  I helped bring to light the abuse of our former High-Performance 
Director Lúcás Ó'Ceallacháin.  In response to my efforts, Lúcás Ó'Ceallacháin tried to silence me by having a 
lawyer threaten me with lawsuits.  I am attaching my response to those threats.  Lawyers and lawsuits won't 
silence me.   

Ed Zinger, you should be ashamed of yourself.  The evidence proves that you are a misogynist who demeans 
and harasses women in the wrestling community.   Why would any victim feel safe to come forward to disclose 
abuse when they realize that powerful men like you will publicly demean and shame them?  What kind of man 
would speak that way about a young woman he coached as a child?  Your actions have helped deepen a 
culture of fear and silence in the sport of wrestling.  Do the right thing and leave our sport so that individuals 
who have the decency to respect women can occupy your positions of power.   

WCL, your previous efforts at reprisals against me earlier this year failed, and so you had better hurry up with 
another  "retaliation allegation" to once again try and silence me.  A reckoning is coming that will further 
expose the deep level of corruption that continues to put athletes at risk. I will continue to demonstrate that 
WCL actively discourages victims of abuse, particularly victims of sexual abuse, from making disclosures to the 
police and sports authorities.   

Erica Wiebe, I am including you on this email because you have boldly spoken out against abuse in 
wrestling.  It is clear that you are one of the only people who has demonstrated the courage to be a public 
voice for change in our sport.  Thank you for setting an example of leadership that is so desperately needed.  I 
strive to be more like you and Coach David Spinney.  I am hopeful that I can help make a difference in the 
coming months and years.  I realize that you don't really know me, but I will reach out to you in the near future 
and privately share some important information.   

Regards, 
Ahmed Shamiya 
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ffowlie@hotmail.com

From: David Spinney 
Sent: Friday, November 19, 2021 3:58 AM
To: Ilan Yampolsky
Cc: Erin Durant (she/her); Jordan Goldblatt; Ahmed Shamiya; Daniel Ratushny
Subject: Re: Confidential - Complaint
Attachments: Wrestling Canada Lutte Investigation for Mr Spinney.pdf; Moving Forwards; Response to your 

request for information 

Hi Ilan, 

Ahmed and I are prepared to have a conversation with you provided that if you decide to move forward with Frank 
Fowlie’s complaint, you hire Erin Durant to continue her investigation.   

In reading the report of Ms. Durant, she made it clear that she was limited in her scope of investigation.  She stated that 
she would be willing to expand her investigation into these matters.  For the sake of continuity and cost efficiency I 
propose that Ms. Durant be permitted to continue her investigation.  Even though I have already been the subject of 2 
investigations in 2021 I would be prepared to again be interviewed by Ms. Durant will provide her additional information 
or evidence as per her request.  Further, I have attached her report. I understand that Frank Fowlie has already provide 
it to you, however, a previous Tribunal found that Frank Fowlie altered documents, so although I’m not saying that he 
altered this document, I wanted to ensure that you received the genuine article.  

If WCL has funding limitations such that it cannot afford to allow Ms. Durant to continue her investigation, please let me 
know and I will make a charitable donation (WCL is a registered charitable organization).   

I want the record to be clear that I am providing you 6 instances of very concerning behaviour regarding Frank Fowlie. 

These Incidents are listed in chronological order, but please note that The Third Incident is the most important in my 
estimation.    

First Incident Demonstrating Officer Fowlie's Misconduct: "Go for a Beer" Double Standard 

On December 2, 2020, the Head Coach for wrestling at York University, Eamonn Dorgan, had a lengthy and detailed 
conversation with Officer Fowlie in which Coach Dorgan carefully described the abuse that 
suffered at the hands of one of the highest-ranking employees of WCL leadership (Lúcás Ó'Ceallacháin).  I am attaching 
an email that  sent the WCL Executive Director after the WCL High Performance Director resigned.  As you can 
see,  was very close to quitting wrestling because of the abuse and harassment of the WCL HPD Ó'Ceallacháin.

In response to these December 2, 2020, disclosures, Officer Fowlie suggested to “go for beer” with WCL 
leadership.  Please remember that WCL leadership are the people who hire and fire Officer Fowlie  (As a less important 
aside: I find it interesting that Officer Fowlie recommended drinking alcohol within a National Sport Organization that 
has documented problems with drinking culture.  Apparently, Officer Fowlie only cherry picks which parts of the Bennet 
Report suits his agenda at any given moment.  But of course, Frank Fowlie cherry-picks because he has an established 
tribunal history of deceitful behaviour) 

I would strongly recommend that you simply ask Officer Fowlie to confirm or deny if he made this "go for a beer" 
comment.  If he denies it then please let me know and I will further assist on this evidentiary issue.   
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WCL should be very concerned about the incredible double standard that Officer Fowlie demonstrated when 
was making allegations against WCL HPD Ó'Ceallacháin (  has since filed a lawsuit against WCL 
HPD Ó'Ceallachán in the Ontario courts) and yet when the WCL HPD Ó'Ceallacháin took exception with my December 23, 
2021, warning to cease all contact with  or face a criminal complaint, Officer Fowlie immediately hired 2 
lawyers and a police officer to investigate me.  He then later hired a third lawyer to act as the Panel against me, despite 
independent investigatory reports from the first 2 lawyers that concluded that I have not engaged in Code of Conduct 
violations.   

Second Incident Demonstrating Officer Fowlie's Misconduct: Reprisals Against York and McMaster Coaches 

Both the head coaches for York University and McMaster University publicly raised concerns about the appropriateness 
of expecting victims of abuse and harassment, particularly Indigenous victims of sexual abuse, to make disclosures to an 
older white man who brags about being a former police officer and who also has an established and public history of 
abuse and misogyny - a man who has been found to be physically imposing when engaging in his abuse.  These concerns 
were especially important given WCL's troubled history of safety/complaints officers.   

These coaches also raised concerns about Officer Fowlie's disregard ("go for a beer") for  allegations of 
harassment.   

In response to these expressed concerns, Officer Fowlie reprised against those coaches by sending communication to 
both York University and McMaster University - communication for which he did not copy either coach.  For example, 
the York University Administrative Coordinator  has stated that the WCL Officer Frank Fowlie made a 
complaint to York about the York Wrestling Coach Eamonn Dorgan.  Please remember that Coach Dorgan was the same 
coach who shared detailed allegations against HPD Ó'Ceallacháin with Officer Fowlie on December 2, 2020 (the "Go for a 
Beer" incident).   

These letters of complaint from Officer Fowlie were not a bona fide effort to fulfill his specific duties as WCL Complaints 
Officer (as defined by either the SDRCC or WCL's Schedule A Statement of Work) - these letters to York and McMaster 
were reprisals against those coaches for their public commentary of the appropriateness of Officer Fowlie's role in WCL.

Once again, I refer you to the Bennett Report statements on reprisals within WCL.   

Third Incident Demonstrating Officer Fowlie's Misconduct: Officer Fowlie Retaliates by Publicly Humiliating Madison 
Parks 

As you read the facts below, please consider the position of the SDRCC and the UNIVERSAL CODE OF CONDUCT TO 
PREVENT AND ADDRESS MALTREATMENT IN SPORT. 

 The SDRCC has been clear about its expectations of someone in Officer Fowlie's position.  The SDRCC states that
the Officer should "Preserve the confidentiality of the complaints, allegations or concerns so that no one
potentially conflicted in the organization may discover who the complainant is, who the person alleged to have
breached the rules is, and what the allegations are about".  http://www.crdsc-
sdrcc.ca/eng/documents/Third Party - Profile and Role with Declaration EN.pdf

 The UNIVERSAL CODE OF CONDUCT TO PREVENT AND ADDRESS MALTREATMENT IN SPORT (UCCMS) states:
 Maltreatment Related to Process consists of "publicly disclosing a Participant’s identifying

information, without the Participant’s agreement" (2.2.6.1.1)
 The UCCMS states that Psychological Maltreatment consists of "humiliating" a Participant and

"the use of rumours or false statements about someone to diminish that person’s reputation;
using confidential sport and non-sport information inappropriately" (2.2.1.2.1)

The Facts of HPD Ó'Ceallacháin's Complaint/Allegations against Madison Parks and David Spinney (I refer myself in 
the third person during the following bulleted points): 
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 Ms. Parks is a 27 year old athlete who, like , is pursuing legal action for harassment. Ms. Parks has
been harassed by the powerful wrestling official Ed Zinger for nearly a decade.  WCL already has in its possession
an abundance of evidence supporting Ms. Park's allegations of harassment.  For example, WCL has an audio
recording and statutory declaration confirming that Ed Zinger made publicly demeaning and humiliating
commentary pertaining to his allegations of Ms. Park's sexual life.  WCL also has evidence of Mr. Zinger making
other false defamatory statements about female leadership in wrestling).

 On December 23, 2021, Coach David Spinney sent correspondence to WCL HPD Ó'Ceallacháin telling him that if
he continued to harass  that a criminal complaint would be made against him.  WCL is encouraged to
again read the attached correspondence from  to the WCL CEO that states that it was Coach
Spinney’s December 23, 2021, email that was instrumental in preventing her from leaving sport.

 In response to Coach Spinney's December 23, 2021 email, WCL HPD Ó'Ceallacháin made 2
complaints/allegations against Coach Spinney.  The first complaint was a harassment complaint.  The second
was a complaint/allegation that the athlete Ms. Parks and Coach Spinney were involved in a sexual
relationship.

 It was later determined by the lawyer Cayley Thomas, who Officer Fowlie hired to investigate Ms. Parks and
Coach Spinney, that the only evidence that WCL HPD Ó'Ceallacháin provided in his complaint/allegations
were rumours of an inappropriate relationship.  Once again, please refer to what the UCCMS states about
rumours.

 On February 3, 2021, the WCL Officer sent Coach Spinney an email stating, "I am considering it to be a systemic
violation of the Code of Conduct, as opposed to a single time breach.  I have read the various emails and have
interviewed the impacted staff.  I believe the systemic complaint to be well formulated."

 In response to Officer Fowlie's allegations of harassment and sexual relationship with Ms. Parks, Coach Spinney
sent an email on February 4, 2021, stating that the allegations were reprisals related to his advocacy efforts on
behalf of athlete safety.  Because Officer Fowlie was accusing Coach Spinney of systemic violations over time,
Coach Spinney offered to provide Officer Fowlie "my previous past communication".   Coach Spinney also stated
that "the University of Western Ontario received these same false allegations in 2016.  Western took the matter
very seriously and correctly suspended me pending an investigation.  The matter was investigated, I was cleared
of any wrongdoing, and I was reinstated as a coach."

 In an outrageous display of prejudgement, the WCL officer responded to Coach Spinney's offer stating, "I do not
think that these will have any relation to the matter at hand concerning the Code of Conduct allegations."  I
remind WCL that WCL's contract with Officer Fowlie (Statement of Work) states that Officer Fowlie is to "work
with the parties by providing information, using active listening skills, and by providing suggestions, options or
alternatives towards resolution".  Officer Fowlie knew, or ought to have known, that he could not properly
provide suggestions or alternatives towards resolution because he was not inclined to actively listen to what
Coach Spinney offered to share with him.

 On February 3, 2021, Officer Fowlie sent Ms. Parks an email that stated, "Please advise me in writing by the
close of business Monday (5 pm Pacific Time), February 8, 2021, of your status.  If, in fact, you are in a sexual
relationship with David"

 Ms. Parks responded to Officer Fowlie with a scolding email that was copied to the investigator hired by
Officer Fowlie as well as several female leaders in Canadian Sport.  One of the persons copied was the Director-
General of Sport Vicki Walker who had already received a relevant statutory declaration of Ms. Parks in
December 2020 describing the abuse she had suffered in wrestling.  I am attaching Ms. Parks's email in which
she references the Globe and Mail article describing Officer Fowlie's abusive history.  As you read the email, you
will clearly understand why Officer Fowlie was motivated to retaliate against Ms. Parks.  Officer Fowlie is a man



with a well-documented history of relentlessly (and unsuccessfully) pursuing those he believes have wronged 
or embarrassed him - a man who was found to have engaged in deceitful behaviour in his efforts to further his 
agenda in tribunal settings. 

 Immediately after Ms. Parks reprimanded Officer Fowlie for his insensitive and misogynistic behaviour,
Officer Fowlie sent written correspondence into the wrestling community and peer group of Ms. Parks.  For
example, Officer Fowlie sent written communication on WCL letterhead from a WCL email address to a
teammate of Ms. Parks.  This teammate also serves an official role with the WCL Athlete
Council.  Officer Fowlie's communication specifically referenced the salacious allegations of
HPD Ó'Ceallacháin (allegations pertaining to the rumours the HPD had heard about Ms. Parks' sexual
activities).  Ms. Parks describes feeling shame and humiliation when Officer Fowlie began publicly spreading
these re-circulated false rumours, especially since she has repeatedly stated to both wrestling leadership and
Western University that these rumours are false.

 In previous years board members from the Ontario Amateur Wrestling Association (OAWA) had made the
same allegations of Ms. Parks and Dave Spinney being in a sexual relationship.  Ed Zinger is a board member for
the OAWA.  Those allegations were sent to Western University and a formal investigation took
place.  Western University determined those allegations to be unsubstantiated rumours.

Analysis of Officer Fowlie's Reprisals Against Madison Parks: 

 If Mr. Ó'Ceallacháin's allegation/complaint about Ms. Parks was true, it would have meant that Ms. Parks was in
a sexual relationship with someone in a position of power, and therefore quite possibly a victim in need of
support.  Instead of handing the allegations of HPD Ó'Ceallacháin delicately, the facts demonstrate that
Officer Fowlie behaved like a bull in a china shop and treated Ms. Parks exactly as you would expect a man with
an established public tribunal history of abusive and misogynistic behaviour.

 Officer Fowlie's written communication about Ms. Parks to members of the wrestling community violated the
professional standards/expectations set out by the SDRCC and the UCCMS (see above).

 Officer Fowlie knew, or ought to have known, that the disclosure of highly sensitive allegations of WCL
HPD Ó'Ceallacháin to members of the wrestling community provided minimal appropriate investigatory value in
an investigation of allegations of which, if true, were meant to address the possible victimization of Ms.
Parks. (UCCMS 2.2.1.2.1 and 2.2.6.1.1)

 Officer Fowlie knew, or ought to have known, that he was engaging in Psychological Maltreatment by disclosing
highly sensitive allegations of WCL HPD Ó'Ceallacháin to members of the wrestling community because
these disclosures could reasonably be expected to cause shame and humiliation to Ms. Parks.  (UCCMS 2.2.1.2.1
and 2.2.6.1.1).

 Officer Fowlie knew, or ought to have known, that the disclosure of the highly sensitive allegations of WCL
HPD Ó'Ceallacháin to members of the wrestling community would diminish Ms. Park's reputation.  (UCCMS
2.2.1.2.1 and 2.2.6.1.1)

 As stated in the above facts, Officer Fowlie was made aware that the rumours being advanced
by Mr. Ó'Ceallacháin's had previously been investigated by Western University.  Therefore, Officer Fowlie should
have received Mr. Ó'Ceallacháin's allegations with a healthy and reasonable amount of caution and
skepticism.   This is especially so because Officer Fowlie knew that the rumours about Ms. Parks were being
advanced by Mr. Ó'Ceallacháin on the heels of his harassment allegation against Coach Spinney.  There is simply
no justifiable excuse for Officer Fowlie to send humiliating written communication to the peer group of Ms.
Parks specifically referencing the salacious allegations/rumours of HPD Ó'Ceallacháin.



Ms. Parks will prove in a court of law that Officer Fowlie behaved as a man who likens himself to a victim of domestic 
violence - a victim who seized the opportunity to retaliate against his abusers. 

Fourth Incident Demonstrating Officer Fowlie's Misconduct:  Communicating Sensitive Information with Unknown 
Parties 

On August 4, 2021, Frank Fowlie sent an email in which he acknowledged at the outset that he was unsure of who he 
was communicating with, and yet in that same email he provided personal information about Ms. Parks.  Again, 
Frank Fowlie proves that he is willing to set aside professional expectations set out by the SDRCC and the UCCMS when 
it suits him.  This should be no surprise because Frank Fowlie has a well-established public history of engaging in 
deceitful and manipulative conduct when advancing arguments in tribunal.  

Fifth Incident Demonstrating Officer Fowlie's Misconduct: Officer Fowlie's Accusations of Extortion 

After being challenged about his bad behaviour, Officer Fowlie made it a point to inform the wrestling community that 
he is a former police officer.   

One of the most important and primary functions of a police officer is the enforcement of the Criminal Code of Canada, 
and so I am sure you can imagine how shocking it was to discover that the former police officer, and now WCL Officer, 
told Ed Zinger that I had committed a crime against him.  

Specifically, the WCL Officer told Ed Zinger , "You are being extorted to resign from your volunteer role in WCL, or if you 
do not do so that Mr. Spinney will take steps to embarrass, humiliate, or harass you" (bolded added). 

I state in the strongest terms that Officer Fowley's accusation of criminal activity is a defamatory false allegation.   

Frank Fowlie's false allegation explains why members of the wrestling community have told me that they have heard 
that I was involved in extortion against Ed Zinger.  I have highly sensitive evidence in my possession that these 
extortion allegations have been leaked in the wrestling community.  I am willing to share this information with Erin 
Durant if the evidence is kept in confidence.  

Since the Frank Fowlie referenced the Bennett Report in support of his previous actions, I remind you that the Bennett 
Report also recommended that WCL "Investigate all future leaks of sensitive information and sanction those responsible"

Extortion is a Serious Crime 

Extortion is a very serious criminal offence, however, the Criminal Code lists one single specific instance in which a 
threat is not extortion, and this is the "threat to institute civil proceedings".    

The WCL Complaints Officer has access to experienced legal counsel and so it surely realizes that sending Ed Zinger 
a settlement offer prior to initiating civil proceedings is not extortion.  We should all be very concerned that its 
Complaints Officer specifically accused me of this crime because of the impact it has on legitimate victims in the sport of 
wrestling. 

Sixth Incident Demonstrating Officer Fowlie's Misconduct: Officer Fowlie's Accusations of Criminal Harassment 

According to Officer  of the RCMP, just a few weeks ago, Frank Fowlie made a criminal complaint to the police 
against both Ahmed Shamiya and myself.  According to Officer , Frank Fowlie described himself as the WCL 
Complaints Officer and he provided significant amounts of email correspondence he received in his role as WCL 
Complaints Officer.   



Please ask yourself if Frank Fowlie has a duty to keep the information he receives in his role as WCL Complaints Officer 
confidential.  Obviously, if he has a legal duty to report this information then he is required to do so, but we can agree 
that there is general presumption of confidentiality with respect to information he receives in his role as WCL 
Complaints Officer.   

To be clear, Frank Fowlie was not sharing this confidential information with the police because he had concerns that 
someone else was being victimized rather he took information he received as the WCL Complaint's Officer to attempt to 
convince the police that he was a victim of criminal activity at the hands of Ahmed Shamiya and myself.  Officer 
noted 2 very concerning aspects to the criminal complaint of Frank Fowlie. 

1. There was clearly nothing in the correspondence submitted by Frank Fowlie that would cause him "reasonably,
in all the circumstances, to fear for their safety or the safety of anyone known to them".  https://laws-
lois.justice.gc.ca/eng/acts/c-46/section-264.html

2. The moment that Frank Fowlie was removed in his role WCL Complaint's Officer, all communication ended
involving myself, Ahmed Shamiya, and Frank Fowlie ended.  This fact further demonstrated that Frank Fowlie
was attempting to advance a criminal complaint that was frivolous and vexatious.

Seriously Ilan, ask Erin Durant or any other lawyer you choose to hire if Frank Fowlie had any kind of legitimate reason to 
advance a criminal harassment complaint against Ahmed and myself.  And after you get confirmation that there was no 
legitimate reason then ask yourself what is really going on here. 

What is Really Going On? 

Facts:  

 In the weeks before Frank Fowlie contacted the RCMP, he had just received his second report from a lawyer
exonerating me from allegations that he was attempting to advance.  Keep in mind that Frank Fowlie had
already decided that the harassment allegations against me were legitimate as indicated in Fowlie's February 3,
2021 email.  It was an obvious disappointment for Fowlie when he read the report of Erin Durant who did not
share his views with respect to the harassment allegations.

 Despite Erin Durant's report Fowlie took the unusual step of ignoring her and he sent the allegations to a Panel
anyways.

 WCL lawyer Jordan Goldblatt is an accomplished and renowned civil litigator, and he is aware that WCL is
already facing litigation addressing WCL's past nefarious weaponization of the Discipline Policy against those
who speak out against abuse.  Jordan Goldblatt immediately intervened and wrote scathing commentary
regarding Frank Fowlie's decision to send allegations to a Panel (hence the "judge, jury, and executioner"
comments).  In short, Goldblatt eviscerated Fowlie.

 Frank Fowlie was effectively fired, and you were hired.
 Frank Fowlie finds himself today named in the lawsuit of  and he knows he is facing multiple

other lawsuits, which are matters of public record.  This means that when these matters progress to a trial he
will likely find himself on the receiving end of damning judgements that will undoubtedly impact upon his ability
to be hired into roles in which his character, credibility, and impartiality are at issue.

And so Ilan, these are the facts leading up to Fowlie's desperate attempt to exact revenge with a frivolous and vexatious 
complaint to the police, who obviously saw right through his antics.   

Today Frank Fowlie finds himself without WCL income, he is a Defendant in civil litigation that has the potential to end 
his current income generating activity, and after having failed at getting the police to support his allegations, Fowlie is 
desperately hoping that you will support his allegations.  I am reminded of the proverb that says, " As a dog returns to 
his vomit, so a fool repeats his folly...." 
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On Thu, Nov 18, 2021 at 3:45 PM David Spinney  wrote: 

Dear Ilan, 

Thank you for your email. 

This nonsensical complaint of Frank Fowlie makes reference to "Criminal Harassment", once again - this is actually 
getting comical … I am aware that Frank Fowlie has attempted to make criminal complaints against me and others with 
the RCMP.  The comments of the RCMP officer I spoke with recently confirm the same sentiments of WCL lawyer 
Jordan Goldblatt who has described Frank Fowlie as the "judge, jury, and executioner".  I am sure you are aware that 
there are good reasons why you were hired and why Fowlie is no longer involved.   

I recognize how angry Frank Fowlie must be to have his abhorrent, dangerous, and tortious conduct exposed, resulting 
in his removal as WCL's "independent" safety officer, but I have nothing further to comment as I will let the multiple 
lawsuits (some of which have already been filed in the courts) sort this man out.  I look forward to Frank Fowlie 
defending himself in Ontario Superior Court where he can once again attempt to convince a judge that his experiences 
in wrestling are like that of a victim of domestic violence.  If you do some research into Frank Fowlie, you will find that 
he has a rather inglorious and unsuccessful public history of attempting to convince tribunals of his perceived 
victimhood, only to have the adjudicators describe Fowlie's abusive behaviour and then further comment on how 
Fowlie engaged in deceitful conduct with respect to his handling of the evidence.     

I have already submitted to 2 separate investigations ordered by Frank Fowlie and much to his chagrin, both of those 
lawyers conducting the investigations provided reports that were very favourable to me.  I will not participate in any 
further investigations unless those investigations are being conducted by Erin Durant.   

If you decide to send the complaints of Frank Fowlie to a Panel I will respond accordingly.   

Regards, 

Dave  
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David W. Spinney, President 

M.A.(Econ.) CIM® FCSI®

Executive Assistant:  

AUTUS WEALTH | CAPITAL 

200 Villagewalk Blvd. Suite 300B 

London, Ontario N6G 0W8 

T: 519.645.1113 

F: 519.645.7899 



From: Ilan Yampolsky 
Date: Wednesday, November 17, 2021 at 7:56 PM 
To: "Dave@
Subject: Confidential - Complaint 

Hello Mr. Spinney, 

This notice is to inform you that a formal complaint has been filed against you. I would like to hear your side of this 
complaint before making a decision if further investigation is required. Please review the attached complaint as well as 
WCL's code of conduct and ethics and Discipline policy that can be found here: 

https://wrestling.ca/wp-content/uploads/2021/07/Safe Sport Policy Manual-June-2021.pdf 

The discipline and complaints process is confidential and involves only WCL, the Parties, the 
Complaints & Appeal Officer, the Discipline Panel, and any independent advisors to the Discipline Panel. Once initiated 
and until a decision is released, none of the Parties will disclose confidential information relating to the discipline or 
complaint to any person not involved in the proceedings. 

Please confirm the receipt of this complaint and provide your response by Dec 1, 2021. 

If you have any questions about the process please don't hesitate to contact me.  

Kind regards, 

--  

Error! Filename not specified.  

Ilan Yampolsky 

CEO 



--  
 m    m   m m   V

Ilan Yampolsky 
CEO 
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criticized by coaches and parents in the presence of governmental and sports leadership.  In the months after these 
whistleblowers began exposing the conduct of Frank Fowlie, he was replaced in his role as WCL Complaints Officer.   
It is noteworthy that Frank Fowlie chose not to pursue civil remedies for the public commentary being made against 
him.  Frank Fowlie understands it would cost him money to have a lawyer advance a lawsuit that has no bona fide grounds 
to succeed in a civil action.  Making allegations to the RCMP, however, is free.   

Frank Fowlie publicly boasts that he is a former RCMP officer, and he knows that after he contacted the RCMP to allege 
criminal harassment, you, as the investigating officer, would contact the people he complained about to gain a better 
understanding of what was really going on.  Frank Fowlie also knows that almost every lawyer tells their clients that when 
a police officer contacts you and tells you that they are investigating criminal allegations that have been made against 
you, you should remain silent.  This is why the head wrestling coach of McMaster University, who is a fearless advocate 
for sexually abused and harassed women, declined to speak to you when you contacted him.   

In summary, former RCMP officer Frank Fowlie weaponized a criminal complaint to the RCMP in order to try and silence 
those who were acting as whistleblowers and exposing his role in abuse/maltreatment in the sport of wrestling.   

Once you have reviewed the evidence, I ask the RCMP and British Columbia Attorney General to advance criminal charges 
of Public Mischief as defined by Section 143 (1) (b) and/or 143 (1) (c) of the Criminal Code of Canada, (or any charge 
deemed appropriate upon completion of your investigation). 

As a former RCMP officer, Frank Fowlie knew he was reporting that an "offence had been committed when it had not 
been committed" - he certainly knew that his complaint would not result in a criminal charge.  The facts and evidence 
demonstrate that Frank Fowlie "caused a peace officer to enter into an investigation" in an attempt to silence those who 
were actively accusing him of abuse/maltreatment and therefore "divert suspicion from himself".  

My upcoming submissions will demonstrate how men in positions of WCL leadership, like Frank Fowlie, have been able to 
engage in all manner of abuse and maltreatment in order to silence victims, including Indigenous victims of sexual 
abuse.  I am sure you recall from our telephone conversation that a very young athlete living close to your detachment in 
Richmond almost certainly suffered sexual exploitation at the hands of a Provincial Coach.  This is a young woman who 
was subsequently publicly shamed by a WCL National Team youth coach.  Sadly, the evidence indicates that this incredibly 
talented young woman left the sport of wrestling because of the ongoing shame and humiliation she felt.  

Officer , this kind of abuse in the sport of wrestling continues to take place close to your home in the Lower 
Mainland, my home in London, and all across Canada.  For the reasons described above, I respectfully submit that if there 
is single paragraph that I ask that you take away from this correspondence it is this: 

With less than 5% of female victims of sexual violence disclosing abuse, the shaming and silencing of victims and 
whistleblowers in Canadian sport needs to stop.  I believe that because of the specific behaviour of WCL Complaints 
Officer Frank Fowlie, the RCMP now has a role to play in helping make the sport of wrestling become safer for sexually 
abused athletes who are too fearful to come forward.  

The submissions referred to above are forthcoming. 

Regards, 

Dave  

David W. Spinney, President 
M.A.(Econ.) CIM® FCSI®
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ffowlie@hotmail.com

From: Lúcás Ó'Ceallacháin 
Sent: Thursday, December 16, 2021 2:47 PM
To: ffowlie@
Subject: Fwd: Follow-Up
Attachments: Follow-Up.eml; Ratushny - WCL Submission .pdf

---------- Forwarded message --------- 
From: David Spinney 
Date: Thu, 16 Dec 2021 at 00:45 
Subject: Follow-Up 
To: Lee MacKay Tamara Medwidsky  Jordan Goldblatt 

 Daniel Ratushny 
Cc: Ilan Yampolsky  Zinger Ed  Lúcás Ó'Ceallacháin 

Dear WCL and Panel Ratushny, 

Please see attached correspondence - I suggest you begin with the PDF Document entitled, “Ratushny – WCL 
Submission” 

Regards, 

Dave 

David W. Spinney, President 

M.A.(Econ.) CIM® FCSI®



Executive Assistant:  

AUTUS WEALTH | CAPITAL 

200 Villagewalk Blvd. Suite 300B 

London, Ontario N6G 0W8 

T: 519.645.1113 

F: 519.645.7899 

--  
Le spraoi, grá agus cúnamh, 
Lúcás Ó'Ceallacháin  



Dear WCL, 

I am including WCL in this email because WCL is very much impacted by all of the abhorrent behaviour of 
WCL Officer Frank Fowlie. As you can see WCL Officer Frank Fowlie's appointee (Mr. Ratushny) is 
reluctant to grant a pause in this hearing while the criminal allegations of Frank Fowlie are being 
investigated by the police, which of course, is not surprising. As we move towards hard advocacy for a 
Public Inquiry (or a truly independent investigation) I want the record to be clear that I consistently 
provided WCL opportunities to alter their historical patterns of behaviour and opt to do the right thing. 
WCL may want to take a position on this.   

I am providing you a copy of my recent correspondence with the investigating RCMP officer (see 
attached).  As you can see, I have included the Government of Canada on that email with the RCMP 
because these events perfectly demonstrate the reprisals that I have been speaking about for many 
years. Fortunately, long ago in my communication with the Government of Canada I foreshadowed the 
reprisals that I would suffer for speaking out against abuse … after all this has been WCL's modus 
operandi for years.   

However, even I would not have predicted the extreme lengths that this latest WCL Complaints Officer 
would go to try and silence me and my witnesses. He has made former WCL Complaint's Officer Adam 
Klevinas's behaviour seem professional by comparison. I can't imagine a more perfect example of 
retaliation from a man who is presently claiming to the RCMP and others that he is still a WCL Complaints 
Officer (let me know if you would like me to get you evidence of this).    

WCL Panel Ratushny: 

A More Accurate Statement 

The Panel states: 

"The present disciplinary proceeding is the result of complaints filed by the Complainants pursuant to the 
WCL Discipline Policy (July 2018)." 

Allow me to provide a more accurate statement: 

"The present disciplinary proceeding is the result of Frank Fowlie, aka the "Judge, Jury, and Executioner", 
hiring Mr Ratushny after he was dissatisfied that 2 separate investigations conducted by lawyers did not 
support the allegations of the Complainant Ó'Ceallacháin. " 

Mr. Rathushny, your role in this hearing is the desperate "Plan B" of a man who has engaged in 
abuse, maltreatment, and grotesque professional misconduct against female athletes, myself and the 
witnesses in this hearing.  As demonstrated in the following paragraphs, you, as Frank Fowlie's hired 
Panel, continue to engage in language and behaviour that creates an apprehension of bias and is now 
bordering on bad faith.   
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Erroneous Legal Comments from the Panel 

In response to my December 6, 2021, email in which I raised concerns about how my witnesses will not 
be speaking at the hearing while Frank Fowlie's criminal complaints are being investigated by police, you 
state: 

"First, the Panel understands that a criminal investigation is normally conducted confidentially, without 
notification to the suspect(s) at the outset." 

I have made no secret that I feared that Frank Fowlie's chosen Panel has been biased from the outset, but 
even I am surprised how your language blatantly continues to create concerns of bias and bad faith.  Your 
above sentence is inappropriate for 2 reasons. 

1. When Complainant Ó'Ceallacháin erroneously used the words "witness tampering" you used
language that was accusatory against me and immediately called a "pre-hearing inquiry" so
that you could protect the "integrity and transparency" of the proceedings. However, despite my
repeated requests, you refused to ask Complainant Ó'Ceallacháin to provide you even the most
basic of evidence that could establish if he was telling the truth with respect to his claims about

. 

When I raised legitimate concerns about the impact Fowlie's criminal allegations had on my 
witnesses ability to testify, your first reaction was to question the veracity/credibility of my 
statements. Once again you demonstrate another double standard, and you propagate further 
concerns of bias and bad faith.   

Since you have questioned the veracity/credibility of my email, I will provide you evidence 
demonstrating that Frank Fowlie has made criminal allegations and that the RCMP are 
investigating - let the record be clear, however, I should never have had to provide you this 
evidence simply to overcome your implicit indictments on my credibility. I am attaching a copy of 
my recent correspondence with police which establishes that the RCMP have contacted me and 
my witnesses.   

2. The second reason that I am concerned about your transparent attempts to question
the veracity/credibility of my December 6, 2021, email is that you did so by making a statement
that has been described by multiple lawyers as "foolish" and " ignorant of criminal procedure".

I was advised that some criminal complaints, especially investigations into very serious crimes,
may involve the police investigating matters before the accused is contacted by police, however,
in many cases, especially cases of criminal harassment and other summary and hybrid offences,
the police routinely contact the accused right away. After the police receive facts and supporting
evidence from a complainant alleging less serious crimes, the investigating officer(s) will soon
after contact the accused to:

i) lay charges against the accused or
ii) gather evidence to better understand "the other side of the story".

Several lawyers have made it clear that your decision to make that comment on criminal 
procedure simply does not meet the professional standards of a lawyer. As a lawyer you are 



not required to provide legal commentary on areas of the law in which you are not comfortable, 
however, if you do decide to provide commentary, you are required to do so competently. You 
work in a big Firm, and I am sure that you can walk down the hallway and find colleagues who will 
help you with criminal procedure or any other area of law that you may not be comfortable 
with.   

Mr. Ratushny, kindly maintain a professional legal standard in your communication with me moving 
forward.   

Legal Requirements for the Panel to Not Be Grossly Negligent or Engage in Bad Faith in his Duty to 
Provide the Respondent Procedural Fairness 

The Panel states: 

"Even if, as indicated by the Respondent below, an investigation was underway against the Respondent or 
any of his witnesses, there is nothing before the Panel that identifies any legal requirement upon which to 
postpone this proceeding. This is another statement in which the Panel is making erroneous legal 
commentary. 

While it is true there may be no codified law that specifically prohibits a WCL Panel from adjudicating a 
hearing while a criminal investigation is taking place, there is there is a legal requirement upon the Panel 
to not to be grossly negligent or act in bad faith when taking steps to ensure that I receive procedural 
fairness.   

While the law in Canada is generous in providing immunity to arbitrators from civil claims, this can be 
overcome if bad faith is established.  Determining what constitutes procedural fairness is based on an 
analysis on many factors/circumstances of each unique case.  Below are some of the factors and factual 
narrative that impact upon the determination of procedural fairness in this specific instance - this is not 
an exhaustive list. 

• Frank Fowlie has an established historical tribunal record of nefariously advancing complaints
against those who he believes have wronged him. Within tribunal settings, Fowlie has been found
to be abusive against those who he complains about. Even more concerning, Fowlie has been
found to be deceitful with respect to his manipulation of evidence as he advances frivolous
complaints.

• Immediately after I warned Mr. Ó'Ceallacháin, the WCL High-Performance Director, to cease any
further harassment of  or else a criminal complaint would be made to police, the 
WCL HPD contacted the WCL Complaints Officer and made 2 separate allegations/complaints 
against me.   

• Frank Fowlie immediately hired 2 lawyers and a police officer to investigate the
2 separate allegations Mr. Ó'Ceallacháin made against me. I cooperated fully with both
investigations, providing everything that the investigators asked of me. These investigations
resulted in both lawyers providing reports that did not support the allegations of the
Complainant Ó'Ceallacháin.



• The historical record conclusively establishes that I have been actively involved in publicly
raising safety concerns about WCL's 3 previous Complaints Officer's (prior to Fowlie) with respect
to bias. I also raised legitimate concerns about Frank Fowlie. As a result of our efforts the
previous 4 WCL Complaint's Officers were removed from their roles.  You will also notice that
Frank Fowlie, aka the judge, jury, and executioner, is no longer listed as an investigator for the
SDRCC. In short, I have established a perfect record of correctly identifying WCL Complaint's
Officers that don't belong.

• During the same period that Mr. Ó'Ceallacháin's complaints were being investigated, I was
actively involved in raising safety concerns involving 6 Incidents of Abuse and Professional
Misconduct of WCL Complaints Officer Fowlie. These 6 Incidents included abuse/maltreatment
(defined, in part, by the Universal Code of Conduct to Prevent and Address Maltreatment in
Sport) of female athletes, myself, and those who are witnesses in this hearing. Please see
attached November 19, 2021, email detailing the 6 Incidents of Professional Misconduct involving
Frank Fowlie.

• Frank Fowlie responded to my efforts to expose safety concerns by likening himself to a victim of
domestic violence. He then summarily ignored the recommendations of the 2 investigatory
lawyers and had another lawyer named Daniel Ratushny to adjudicate the allegations
of Mr. Ó'Ceallacháin. It should be noted that when the Air Canada employees felt that Frank
Fowlie put the aircraft at risk and took actions because of "safety concerns", Frank Fowlie feigned
the role of victim and advanced his complaints to a tribunal (who subsequently made damning
findings about Fowlie). A simple Google search reveals a historical pattern of individuals who
claim that Frank Fowlie takes the role of victim when others raise concerns about his behaviour.

• The behaviour of Frank Fowlie in his dealings with me was so egregious that even WCL's lawyer
referred to him as, "judge, jury, and executioner". WCL's lawyer made a motion to have Mr.
Ratushny removed as Panel and the allegations of Mr. Ó'Ceallacháin sent to a new Complaint's
Officer. Mr. Ratushny declined to give up the contract that Frank Fowlie had given him and
moved forward to adjudicate the complaint of Mr. Ó'Ceallacháin.

• Shortly after WCL failed in having Fowlie/Rathusny removed from any involvement in these
allegations. WCL hired a new Complaints Officer.

• In the wake of the effective removal of Frank Fowlie as WCL Complaints Officer, he has now
contacted the RCMP to make criminal allegations against myself and the witnesses in the WCL
hearing. Frank Fowlie was a police officer, and he knows that criminal lawyers almost always
advise clients to remain silent during an active criminal investigation in which they are being
accused of crimes, even when the criminal allegations are plainly ludicrous, as is clearly the case
here. Frank Fowlie is fully aware who my primary witnesses would likely be, and so for him to
advance criminal complaints against my witnesses, even though he knows, or ought to know, that
his criminal complaint will almost certainly not result in criminal charges once these matters are
investigated, appears to be an attempt to silence my witnesses in this hearing.



Arguments that Support a Pause in WCL Proceedings While the RCMP are Investigating the Allegations of 
WCL Officer Fowlie 

WCL has had many instances in which the adjudication of complaints takes place years after the 
allegation is said to have occurred (I can provide you evidence of this if you ask).  In some cases, 
the proceedings themselves take years. Given all of the circumstances, it is not inappropriate to have a 
pause in WCL proceedings, especially during a police investigation initiated by the same 
Complaints Officer who decided that this matter should be adjudicated in a WCL hearing. 

Furthermore, you can confirm with WCL that there are no imminent safety concerns for athletes or 
vulnerable people with respect to these harassment allegations that have been made against me.   

WCL Complaint's Officer Frank Fowlie has advanced complaints of harassment to the WCL Panel while 
simultaneously advancing harassment complaints against me and my witnesses to the RCMP. I submit 
that so long as WCL Officer Frank Fowlie's criminal allegations are being investigated by the police, the 
hearing should be paused so that my witnesses can follow standard and sound legal advice to remain 
silent while under police investigation.   

Given all of the circumstances in this case, forcing this hearing to move forward knowing that my 
witnesses cannot attend without disobeying sound legal advice, would amount to the most extreme 
example to date of the WCL Panel engaging in bias and bad faith.   

Fresh Legal Advice 

I have received fresh legal advice. Instead of allowing the hearing to proceed in-absentia, I have been 
advised to attend the hearing "under duress". I reserve all my evidentiary legal rights with respect to 
defending/protecting myself in future legal proceedings. If I am forced to attend the hearing while the 
police investigation is taking place, I will cross examine the complainants and their witnesses, but I will 
not present my own witnesses for the reasons mentioned above. I will then proceed to my appeal.   

Regards, 

David Spinney 
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Frank Fowlie

From: Ahmed Shamiya 
Sent: Monday, July 18, 2022 9:58 AM
To: Timothy Cullen
Cc: Madison Parks; David Spinney; Andre Marin; Mark Bourrie; Frank Fowlie; Ilan Yampolsky; Tamara 

Medwidsky
Subject: Re: Fowlie v. Spinney et al. - Response of the Panel

Dear WCL Executive Director Tamara Medwidsky, 

I am writing to you to express my concern about the racism taking place in 2 WCL hearings of which I am 
involved in; one of which I am a Respondent and one in which I am a witness (or possible representative). At 
the end of this email I ask WCL a very important question.   

Facts 
On July 13, 2022 I wrote to Panel Cullen and carefully and thoughtfully expressed my concerns about the 
racism I had just suffered in the hearing.    

On July 15, 2022 Panel Cullen reprimanded all sides for "lack of civility" in the content of our "written 
exchanges" in this proceeding.  I have only had one "written exchange" in this hearing and that was my July 
13, 2022 email.   

On July 16, 2022 I read an email dated June 9th, 2022 from Frank Fowlie's legal representative. In this email 
Dr. Fowlie's representation said to the WCL Complaint's Officer Yampolsky,  

"You have no credibility left at all. You continue to show animus against Dr. Frank Fowlie. I see no need 
to respond to either of your “determinations.” You’re not a judge. You are like a traffic cop directing 
traffic. You have no legal credentials whatsoever. And you don’t even offer what little contribution you 
can make to your “determination”. 

Dr. Fowlie through his representative also said, 

"One day, your “determinations” may set off a complainant who might successfully hunt for your head”. 

Dr. Fowlie through his representative also said, 

"You are laying the ground work for your demise. Remember that. Remember where you heard it first. 
You might consider resigning before it gets to that.  By the way, you might want to invest in a spell 
check. Your email, with all its grammar and syntax mistakes make you look amateurish". 

As you can see Dr. Fowlie engages in racist and disrespectful behaviour on matters that I am involved with. 
Reading this email was terrifying. Dr. Fowlie's side aggressively foreshadows the imminent harm of the 
WCL Complaint's Officer - using speech laced with horribly violent descriptions while 
simultanously engaging in blatantly racist and xenophobic commentary about the Complaint Officer's 
imperfect English.  

I ask Panel Cullen, how can Dr. Fowlie complain about me when he speaks like this to the new Complaint's 
Officer?   
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When I was criticizing Dr. Fowlie, I was advocating for athlete safety - Dr. Fowlie on the other hand was 
engaged in nothing more than a reprehensible racist tantrum related to the decision of Mr. Yampolsky to send 
his violation of confidentiality to a Discipline Panel.   

Aftermath 
I have gone back and read my July 13, 2022 email multiple times and I am at a loss to understand how my 
email amounted to a "lack of civility". All I did was speak out against a man who has a historical record of 
engaging in aggressive bullying type behaviour, who was actively engaging in casual white racism against me 
in the hearing.  Panel Cullen's letter indicates that he believes that speaking out against racist behaviour 
amounts to a "lack of civility". Clearly I stand no chance of being absolved by Panel Cullen.   

I have barely slept since having experienced Dr. Fowlie's racist bullying taking place in events of which I am 
involved with. I am gutted that even speaking out will cause someone in a position of power like Panel Cullen 
to reprimand me. The emotional impact upon me is significant.   

Analysis 
Dr. Fowlie's negative comments about a non-native English speaker's grammar is reprehensible and the courts 
have condemned this kind of behaviour.   

In  R v Stephan, 2021 ABCA 82, the Alberta Court of Appeal case addressed this exact issue of xenophobic 
and racist conduct in which a trial judge negatively commented on the speech and grammar of a witness.   

In this case the Crown argued that the way a person speaks should have no bearing on the weight of their 
evidence, saying the comments made by the judge about the witness were “downright degrading”.  The 
Crown argued that the judge in that case "sent a message to people who speak English as a second 
language that they shouldn't even bother participating in our courts". The Alberta Court of Appeal condemned 
the judges comments as a factor in demonstrating an apprehension of bias, leading to the overturning of the 
trial judge's decision.   

(FYI - Dozens of medical and legal experts filed a complaint against Justice Terry Clackson alleging that he 
acted in a "discriminatorily" fashion and "harshly mocked" a medical examiner's accented speech. 
This complaint has been accepted and is being adjudicated by the Canadian Judicial Council's conduct 
committee. www.cbc.ca/news/canada/calgary/alberta-judge-terry-clackson-complaint-medical-expert-
1.5944109) 

Frank Fowlie's behaviour as an "expert" sends a message to participants in wrestling, that if you speak English 
as a second language, you shouldn't even bother participating in our Discipline Proceedings unless you are 
prepared to be demeaned and belittled.   

Dr. Fowlie should not be allowed to demean a non-native English speaker in this way and he shouldn't be 
allowed to make racist comments to BIPOC members of the wrestling community, or anyone else for that 
matter. This abusive/harassing behaviour simply has no place in Canadian sport.   

Is WCL Willing to Take a Stance on Dr. Fowlie's Everyday White Racism? 
Ms. Medwidsky, I am sure you can appreciate that since McMaster University is a stakeholder in WCL (as part 
of USport), they may have serious concerns about the shockingly brazen racism taking place in the two 
hearings I am involved in. They may also have objections to the reprimand I received on July 15, 2022 after I 
expressed my concerns about racism. It is not in the interest of WCL to have its stakeholders believing 
that BIPOC coaches or athletes are being subjected to racism in their involvement with WCL.   

Since Panel Cullen found my words problematic, then perhaps a news article that speaks to the racism of the 
"three amigos" comment would be less objectionable.   www.sandiegouniontribune.com/opinion/letters-to-the-
editor/sd-three-amigos-response-utak-20170616-story.html    
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This is truly the everyday language of white racism.  

I have an extremely serious question for WCL about its interpretation of its own Code of Conduct. Sec. 48 of 
the WCL Discipline Policy says that the discipline and complaints process "involves" WCL and so please do 
not avoid answering this very serious question because there are no Policy prohibitions on WCL commenting 
on Dr. Fowlie's racist and xenophobic conduct at this time. 

If a white man engages in casual racism against a BIPOC coach, and that coach speaks out in the way 
that I spoke on July 13, 2022, has that coach committed an offence worthy of a reprimand?  

I do not speak on behalf of McMaster University, but I can tell you that they take racism very seriously.  Once 
this hearing is over I will be showing McMaster everything, including WCL's answer, or non-answer, to this 
question. 

Regards, 
Ahmed Shamiya 

On Fri, Jul 15, 2022 at 4:39 PM Timothy Cullen <Timothy.Cullen@mcmillan.ca> wrote: 

Dear Parties and Counsel, 

In response to all of the correspondence that has been exchanged this week, the Panel notes: 

1. Mr. Spinney’s extension was understood to have been sought in respect of his own submissions and was
accordingly granted in respect of his own submissions. Before rendering a decision in respect of any of the
Respondents, the Panel will be reviewing all submissions from the Claimant and Mr. Spinney.

2. This is a Process #1 proceeding, which does not contemplate motions being made to the Panel. The role of the
Arbitrator is limited to a determination with respect to sanction in relation to the Complaint on the basis of the written
submissions of the parties. No motions will be heard by the Panel in this process.

3. While the subject matter of the Complaint is deeply personal for the parties and tensions are high, the Panel is
disappointed by the lack of civility in the content of the written exchanges from all sides in this proceeding. The Panel
reminds all parties and counsel that the use of inflammatory language, quick quips and other uncivil exchanges do
nothing to advance the positions of the parties in this proceeding and will be disregarded by the Panel in any event.

4. Counsel for the Claimant know better than to copy a non-participant on an exchange in this proceeding, regardless
of the fact that the particular non-participant in this instance may be fully aware of this proceeding and the allegations
in the Complaint. The Panel expects all parties and counsel to respect the confidentiality of this Complaint process as
contemplated by the WCL policy.
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- The Panel

Timothy Cullen 
Partner, Litigation and Dispute Resolution

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This email, including any attachments, may contain information that is confidential and privileged  Any unauthorized 
disclosure, copying or use of this email is prohibited  If you are not the intended recipient, please notify us by reply email or telephone call and 
permanently delete this email and any copies immediately   

Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail. 

From: Madison Parks <madisonparkspoa@
Sent: Wednesday, July 13, 2022 8:28 PM 
To: Ahmed Shamiya 
Cc: David Spinney ; Andre Marin ; Timothy Cullen 

; Mark Bourrie ; Ilan Yampolsky 
Subject: Re: Schiavulli and Shamiya's default in meeting the July 11, 2022 deadline 

[EXTERNAL/EXTERNE] 

Dear All, 

After Frank Fowlie was fired and was no longer in a position of power over my daughter I put him out of my mind...all 
communication ended.  I was relieved that this misogynist would never again engage in maltreatment of my 
daughter...good riddance to the so-called "independent" Complaints Officer who "styled himself as the judge, jury, and 
executioner".  (WCL lawyer Mr. Goldblatt wrote those highlighted words immediately before Frank Fowlie was 
terminated)  
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But after these most recent disrespectful emails that make racist commentary and false allegations it's apparent that 
I'm still being forced to deal with this man's ugly behaviour.  I may share the same skin colour and appearance as many 
Mexicans but I am Canadian. It's wrong to refer to me and these 2 BIPOC coaches as "three amigos".   

I find it deeply offensive that the Complainant makes demeaning racist comments in a manner that suggests that he 
believes that he's immune from being held to the standard of behaviour that is acceptable in the current era of 
Canadian sport.  It seems obvious that Frank Fowlie's inglorious termination from WCL has taught him no humility 
whatsoever.   

Frank Fowlie continues to behave like a bully whose legal team uses insults, false allegations, and racist commentary 
simply because they feel like it.  

For the above stated reasons, I would like to join Coach Shamiya and Coach Spinney in my criticism of a man who, 
among other things, violated the Universal Code of Conduct to Prevent and Address Maltreatment in Sport while 
harming my daughter - a man who is still behaving badly today. 

I readily admit that my email today is the same kind of criticism that I've made against this "expert" in the past - 
criticism that has resulted in me being a Respondent in this hearing. By this rationale, it only makes sense to add 
today's email to the "evidence" that Frank Fowlie believes is deserving of my lifetime ban.  Perhaps Frank Fowlie can 
amend his Statement of Claim to include my criticism from today and then re-submit his amended Statement of Claim 
to Panel Cullen as evidence against me.   

Please read the sentence in which Frank Fowlie asks Panel Cullen for my permanent removal from wrestling. This single 
sentence demonstrates the inappropriateness of Frank Fowlie being in the role of WCL's Complaints Officer far better 
than 10,000 words written by me ever could.  In the words of Mr. Goldblatt, "What is clear is that this Complaint 
became personal to the Officer. He abandoned neutrality and entered into the fray. This was inappropriate" 

This "expert" actually believes that for the rest of my life I should be prohibited from attending a tournament to watch 
my daughter compete because as a parent I spoke out against his maltreatment of my daughter.   

But of course Frank Fowlie thinks I'm deserving of the most extreme sanction in all of sport, because after all, Fowlie 
has a history of failed claims in which he purports to have been victimized by some form of injustice 
(Spinney's submissions will prove it). Even Mr. Goldblatt has criticized Fowlie for "comparing himself to a victim of 
domestic violence."   It's no wonder that WCL realized that this "expert" needed to be fired.   
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I stood up and spoke out against a man in a position of power who was engaging in Maltreatment of my daughter and if 
that means that Panel Cullen is going to punish me for it then, like Coach Shamiya, I will accept those sanctions as a 
badge of honour.   

I ask that my name be added in support of both Coach Shamiya's and Coach Spinney's motions.   

Mara Schiavulli 

On Wed, Jul 13, 2022 at 11:41 AM Ahmed Shamiya wrote: 

Dear All, 

I forgot to attach the screenshot in my last email. Please find attached a screenshot of what comes up when you 
Google "three amigos". As you can see, the pictures that appear prominently speak loud and clear.   

Ahmed Shamiya  

On Wed, Jul 13, 2022 at 11:23 AM Ahmed Shamiya wrote: 

Dear Panel Cullen and Mr. Yampolsky, 

Upon the conclusion of this hearing I will be meeting with my employer McMaster University to give them an update 
on these matters.   

McMaster University has taken a very strong stance in the last two years on issues relating to racism. I am confident 
that when McMaster reads all of the documentation related to Frank Fowlie they will be disturbed regarding how he 
has treated BIPOC coaches and athletes from December 2020 until present.   

Coach Spinney's submissions will deal with the double standards that the Complainant applied to white people and 
BIPOC members of the wrestling community, but I am compelled to speak up here and now in the face of the 
Complainant's ongoing racism.   

Page 538 of 581

mcasselin
Rectangle



The Everyday Language of White Racism 

I am attaching a screenshot of what comes up when you google "three amigos". The pictures in this screenshot speak 
volumes. It is shameful that the Complainant thinks it's OK to reduce BIPOC coaches (who happen to share 
phenotypical characteristics of Latin American people) to a "comical" racist stereotype.   

The social psychologist Dr. Christian Tileaga of Loughborough University states,  

"Irrespective of the chosen analytical perspective, analysis of the language of racism considers “speaking about 
others“ a matter of paramount significance.  This is a far-reaching issue that can help one understand not only 
the interplay and role of language, culture and race in the continuous reproduction of 
racism.....Commonsensical meanings we attach to race and racism, to language and the way we use language, 
are said to be an integral part of how racism operates and perpetuates itself in society." 

The Complainant will likely attempt to downplay the racism in this July 12, 2022 communication because he is clearly 
obtuse to the standards expected in Canadian sport in 2022, however I would ask the Panel to consider what would 
happen if Frank Fowlie and his two white lawyers dressed up like the "three amigos" and walked around our campus 
at McMaster University (or any of the many campuses that host WCL Training Centres). Please consider if Dr. Fowlie 
would impress anyone with his resume when dressed like that. I suggest that Frank Fowlie would quickly learn that 
standards related to racism in 2022 are very different than they were 36 years ago in 1986 (the year that the Three 
Amigos movie was released). 

While I believe that Frank Fowlie has egregiously misrepresented the facts in many of his allegations, let me admit 
here and now that I have assertively criticized Frank Fowlie's behaviour on many occasions.  I have consistently 
taken the position that Frank Fowlie behaves like a bully who does not belong in the position of Complaints Officer 
in which victims of abuse, particularly Indigenous victims of sexual abuse, should be expected to trust Frank Fowlie 
to receive their sensitive disclosures.   

The sport of wrestling has a serious problem with gender-based sexual violence as evidenced by the fact that at least 
three more victims of sexual abuse in wrestling have spoken out in recent months (including an Indigenous victims of 
sexual abuse).  Separate and apart from these three victims, in this year alone a wrestling referee and a Provincial 
Coach from the last Canada Games have been criminally convicted for sexaul assault (the latter being sentenced to 
four years in jail).   

Sadly, the Government of Canada statistics are undeniable - only 5% of victims of sexual violence come forward to 
disclose abuse and so it is incumbent upon the Canadian sport dispute resolution system to ensure that the 
Complaints Officers hired to receive these disclosures/allegations do not behave in a way that will cause victims to be 
hesitant to speak to the Officers.   



As has been stated previously, no amount of resume building can erase the fact that Frank Fowlie has a historical 
public record of being a bully.  The CTA Tribunal proved that Frank Fowlie is a bully (as well as someone who will 
nefariously change evidence in order to advance his false and failed narrative).  Frank Fowlie's 2021 treatment of 
Madison Parks proved that he is a bully.  And yesterday's July 12, 2022 correspondence proves that Frank Fowlie is 
still a bully who behaves like we are back in 1986.  

Let me be perfectly clear what I am alleging: White male Complaints Officers who behave like Frank Fowlie 
decrease the likelihood that female and BIPOC victims will make disclosures of sexual abuse and harassment - for 
this reason Frank Fowlie made the sport of wrestling less safe. The submissions of Coach Spinney will demonstrate 
this. 

If Panel Cullen convicts me of a WCL Code of Conduct violation for speaking out about Frank Fowlie during his time as 
WCL Complaints Officer, then it will be a badge of honour that I will wear proudly.   

Mr. Yampolsky, upon our return to Canada in August, Coach Spinney and I will be making a formal WCL complaint for 
the "Disrespectful Conduct" of the Complainant's July 12, 2022 communication - I simply will no longer tolerate racist 
and bullying behaviour from Frank Fowlie and/or his representation. 

But in the meantime, I would like to make my own separate motion. I am asking the Panel to do more than Coach 
Spinney is asking in his motion.   

Motion: I make a motion that Panel Cullen immediately denounce the July 12, 2022 correspondence from the 
Complainant as "disrespectful conduct".   

I respectfully submit that it is important that the Panel restores order by making it clear that the Panel believes that 
we as BIPOC coaches should be safe to participate in this hearing without experiencing racist disrespectful conduct.    

Regards, 

Ahmed Shamiya  

On Wed, Jul 13, 2022 at 6:54 AM David Spinney wrote: 

Dear WCL Discipline Panel Ilan Yampolsky and Panel Cullen, 



I write to you today for 2 reasons: 

Issue #1: The Volume of Reading 

The first reason I write is to possibly be of assistance with respect to the 50 extra pages of reading that the 
Complainant has added to the Panel's mandate. 

Frank Fowlie believes that submitting a 50-page Statement of Claim at this late stage "provides all of the salient 
arguments and analysis of the various emails".    

I believe it is inappropriate to ask a WCL Discipline Panel to read a 50-page Statement of Claim meant for the Civil 
courts in a Process #1 WCL Discipline Hearing dealing with "Disrespect Conduct".   

However, since Dr. Fowlie/Marin wants his Statement of Claim used as evidence against me then I will consider 
providing you with the Statement of Defence for myself and Ms. Schiavulli, prior to the deadline. 

Since the parties are not allowed to question each other, I ask that the Panel weigh the strength of the competing 
documents on their face. You will be able to see that the Statement of Defences provides a clear and rational 
example of how Frank Fowlie makes erroneous allegations.   

I plan on making a larger submission before my deadline as well, but I wanted to make you aware of my intentions. 

Issue #2 Directing the Complainant to Cease Disrespectful Conduct 

As stated above, it is clear on the face of those of the legal pleadings that the Complainant makes many erroneous 
claims/allegations.  You will see from my upcoming submissions that it was Dr. Fowlie's own bad behaviour that 
caused him to be fired by WCL. 

In fact, in the last 2 weeks we have all just had a chance to experience in real-time how the Complainant makes false 
accusations.  In the Complainant's June 29th, 2022, letter to the WCL complaints officer, it was stated that: 



“Mr. Spinney is not an official member of the team Canada coaching staff at the Commonwealth game. He’s being 
deceitful and disingenuous and claiming that he is part of any team Canada coaching." 

He also stated, 

“Mr. Spinney is merely attending as a tourist or observer, not in any formal capacity.   “Volunteer Coach” as he calls 
himself do not have any standing.   

I submit to WCL Discipline Panel Ilan Yampolsky and Panel Cullen the June 29, 2022, letter from the Executive Director 
of Wrestling Canada Lutte establishes that the Complainant's June 29th, 2022, allegations are false and derogatory.   

To state that I would make such a flagrant and egregious lie about my role as a coach for Canada is a serious 
allegation that speaks directly to my role within Wrestling Canada Lutte - an accusation that is clearly false.   

I ask the Panel to take note that once the Complainant makes an allegation, he apparently expects it to be believed as 
truth regardless of what the facts state.  In the last 2 weeks you have seen this bizarre and incomprehensible 
behaviour - it speaks to the credibility of Dr. Fowlie's allegations as a whole.  For example, yesterday, July 12, 2022, 
the Complainant just said. "Spinney asked for a postponement of his submission based on HIS purported coaching at 
the Commonwealth Games, which we demonstrated was a complete fake."   

Panel Cullen, what is going on here?  Did we not all read the June 29, 2022, letter from the Executive Director of WCL 
that clearly stated that I am part of, "WCL’s coaching staff for the 2022 Commonwealth Games in Birmingham, 
England.  He is expected to be travelling from August 3 to 9, 2022."   

How is the Complainant simply ignoring the facts?  He has received the letter from WCL and yet he continues to make 
these disparaging allegations against me.  Clearly, I am being neither "fake" or "deceitful" regarding my coaching role 
at the Commonwealth Games.   

It is disturbing that while making these false allegations of being “deceitful” in my role as a coach the Complainant 
continues to use rude, inflammatory, and racist language.   

For example, there is no excuse for white people to refer to brown people as "three amigos".  I spoke with Coach 
Shamiya yesterday and he would like to point out that because of the colour of his skin he sometimes gets mistaken 
as Latin American, however he is brown because he is ethnically Palestinian.  I am also a person of colour, and even 
though my family originated from Cuba I was born and raised in Canada. I am in no way Latin American or Spanish - I 



am Canadian. Scholars refer to this behaviour as the “everyday language of white racism” - see Ms. Jane Hill’s 
publication on the matter (Online ISBN: 9781444304732).  Coach Shamiya and I don't appreciate white people 
engaging in name calling that perpetuates "comical" stereotypes of our skin colour - it is racist and has no part in a 
WCL Discipline Hearing.   

Furthermore, the Complainant specifically mentioned Madison Parks in his June 29, 2022, letter.  Referencing Ms. 
Parks in simple timeline protestation provided absolutely no evidentiary/argumentative value to the issue he was 
advancing.  When the WCL Complaint’s Officer considers the totality of historical circumstances between Madison 
Parks and Frank Fowlie it is evident that the inclusion of Madison Parks in his June 29, 2022, letter was beyond 
disrespectful to the young athlete/victim.   

I will have more to say about the Complainant's Disrespectful Conduct in my submissions, but in the meantime, I 
make the following motion. 

Motion:  I make a motion that the Panel order the Complainant to cease his Disrespectful Conduct which includes 
racist name-calling, inflammatory language, and making transparently false allegations.   

Thank you, 

Dave 

David W. Spinney, President 

M.A.(Econ.) CIM® FCSI®

Executive Assistant:  
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From: Andre Marin 
Date: Tuesday, July 12, 2022 at 5:55 PM 
To: Timothy Cullen 
Cc: Mark Bourrie , Ahmed Shamiya , Madison Parks 
<madisonparkspoa@ , "KCaron@  "Dave@

 Ilan Yampolsky 
Subject: Re: Schiavulli and Shamiya's default in meeting the July 11, 2022 deadline 





bénéficier du secret professionnel. Un tel privilège est réclamé de façon expresse. Si vous avez reçu ce courriel par erreur vous 
êtes prié de contacter l'auteur immédiatement et d'effacer la version originale. Veuillez ne pas diffuser, distribuer ou copier. Merci.

On Jul 12, 2022, at 5:44 PM, David Spinney wrote: 

Dear Panel Cullen, 

This is a single hearing that involves 3 Respondents.  My submissions speak to all of Dr. Fowlie's 
allegations involving all three parties who he alleges were acting in concert. 

For example, I will be using the erroneous allegations of Dr. Fowlie against Ahmed Shamiya to help 
demonstrate the absurdity of all these allegations.     

Thank you, 

Dave 

David W. Spinney, President 

M.A.(Econ.) CIM® FCSI®



Executive Assistant:  

AUTUS WEALTH | CAPITAL 

200 Villagewalk Blvd. Suite 300B 

London, Ontario N6G 0W8 

T: 519.645.1113 

F: 519.645.7899 
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The contents of this communication, including any attachment(s), are confidential and may be privileged. If you are not the 
intended recipient (or are not receiving this communication on behalf of the intended recipient), please notify the sender 
immediately and delete or destroy this communication without reading it, and without making, forwarding, or retaining any 
copy or record of it or its contents. Thank you. Note: We have taken precautions against viruses but take no responsibility 
for loss or damage caused by any virus present.

From: Andre Marin 
Date: Tuesday, July 12, 2022 at 5:25 PM 
To: Ilan Yampolsky 
Cc: "Dave@  Mark Bourrie  Ahmed Shamiya 

 Madison Parks <madisonparkspoa@ , Ilan Yampolsky 
, "KCaron@  Timothy 



Cullen 
Subject: Schiavulli and Shamiya's default in meeting the July 11, 2022 deadline 

Dear Mr. Yampolky: 

Please acknowledge receipt and copy whomever I might have missed, if anyone. 

ANDRÉ MARIN LAW 

PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION 

André Marin, B.A., LL.L.-JD 

Barrister and Solicitor/Avocat et notaire 
Of the Ontario Bar/Barreau de l’Ontario 
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Bio: https://www.linkedin.com/in/ontarioandremarin/ 
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The information in this email is intended solely for the addressee(s) named and is confidential. Any 
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Frank Fowlie

From: Frank Fowlie
Sent: Saturday, September 2, 2023 11:18 AM
To: Frank Fowlie
Subject: FW: Next Steps Concerning Fowlie

From: Ahmed Shamiya 
Date: August 29, 2022 at 11:09:21 AM EDT 
To: justins@  Mark Bourrie  Andre Marin 

Cc: David Spinney  dtaylor@  KCaron@
Subject: Next Steps Concerning Fowlie 

Dear Legal Representation for Frank Fowlie, David Spinney, Mara Schiavulli, 

I am writing to advise all of you that I will be making an official WCL Complaint against Frank 
Fowlie today for engaging in racist and threatening behaviour.  

Also, I would like all of you to know that once the WCL Discipline Process addressing Fowlie's 
racism is complete, myself, some fellow Palestinians, McMaster students and alumni who feel 
strongly about the integrity of Canada's immigration system, will be reaching out to my Member 
of Parliament, The Honourable Karina Gould. We will be providing her with detailed 
information concerning the past and recent disturbing behaviour of Frank Fowlie.   

We will be asking Minister Gould to speak with her colleague, The Honourable Sean Fraser, 
Minister of Immigration, Refugees, and Citizenship, to investigate the appropriateness of Frank 
Fowlie being involved in a decision making capacity regarding immigrants in Canada.   

I realize Coach Spinney believes that since Frank Fowlie is no longer involved in wrestling, 
there is no need to raise any concerns about Fowlie. However, after seeing Fowlie's most recent 
racist, xenophobic, and threatening behaviour, I cannot simply stand by and remain silent while 
this bully remains in a position of authority over the lives of immigrants. My family has received 
immeasurable benefit from Canada's immigration system and I feel I have a duty to share 
important information about Frank Fowlie with the Government of Canada - a serial bully who 
uses his position of privilege as a white man to engage in the maltreatment of women, 
minorities, and immigrants.   

It is also important for the sexually abused and harrassed female athletes and coaches that I am 
supporting to see that I continue to take a stance against men in positions of authority behaving 
badly. I have come to learn that the strength I demonstrate in the face of bad behaviour has a 
positive impact upon victims who are too fearful to speak out themselves.     

Out of respect for Coach Spinney, I am letting his legal counsel know my intentions in advance 
so that there are no surprises. I also want the record to be clear that I am giving Fowlie 
advanced opportunity to mitigate any of the damages that he might later seek to claim. For 
example, I will send Fowlie all of my communication with the Government of Canada in advance 
so that he has enough time to seek an injunction to suppress my communication.    
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When I communicate with the Government of Canada, I will share facts and evidence that 
demonstrates: 

 Fowlie's past abusive and dangerous behaviour (Tribunal proven)
 Fowlie's deceitful conduct in Tribunal settings
 The circumstances of Fowlie being described by WCL as the "judge, jury, and

executioner" as well as WCL's references to the scathing rebuke Fowlie received
during his role with Athletics Canada

 Fowlie's outrageous double standards being applied to the harassment of women and
minorities in wrestling in favour of white men in positions of power, including
harassment that would have been impossible if one of the victims were a heterosexual
women.  These facts concerning Fowlie's treatment of women in wrestling will be
especially compelling after the allegations of  and Madison Parks are
heard before The Office of the Sport Integrity Commissioner. I am fairly certain Fowlie
will NOT be involved in the hiring of any of those Panel members.

 The public shaming of Madison Parks as a direct violation of Sections 2.2.6.1.1 and
2.2.1.2.1 of the Universal Code of Conduct to Address and Prevent Maltreatment in
Sport

 Fowlie's most recent racist and threatening language as described below

Below is the text that will be in my WCL complaint.   

Ahmed Shamiya 

*********************************************************************************** 

My complaint is distinct from Coach Spinney's in that I am only reporting only one specific 
issue; racism.  

Frank Fowlie has engaged in a violation of section 2.2.1.2.1 of the Universal Code of 
Conduct to Prevent and Address Maltreatment in Sport (UCCMS) when Fowlie/his 
representation made: comments that are demeaning, humiliating, belittling, intimidating, 
insulting or threatening 

I am formally making a complaint that Frank Fowlie/Fowlie's representation has engaged in 
racist and threatening behaviour during my time participating in 2 separate WCL 
Discipline Proceedings (one as a respondent and one as a witness). Fowlie's most recent 
objectionable comments are highlighted below in yellow.   

On July 12, 2022 I was sent an email from Fowlie/Fowlie's representation in which he referred to 
me and other BIPOC "Participants" in the sport of wrestling using racist language.   

Fowlie's legal representative said, "This is like an internet scam. We never really know what the 
three amigos are up to, except no good." 

The Everyday Language of White Racism 
I am attaching a screenshot of what comes up when you google "three amigos". The pictures in 
this screenshot speak volumes. It is shameful that Frank Fowlie thinks it's OK to reduce BIPOC 
coaches (who happen to share phenotypical characteristics of Latin American people) to 
"comical" racist stereotypes.   

The social psychologist Dr. Christian Tileaga of Loughborough University states, 
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"Irrespective of the chosen analytical perspective, analysis of the language of racism 
considers “speaking about others“ a matter of paramount significance.  This is a far-
reaching issue that can help one understand not only the interplay and role of language, 
culture and race in the continuous reproduction of racism.....Commonsensical meanings 
we attach to race and racism, to language and the way we use language, are said to be 
an integral part of how racism operates and perpetuates itself in society." 

The Complainant will likely attempt to downplay the racism in this July 12, 2022 communication 
because he is clearly obtuse to the standards expected in Canadian sport in 2022, however I 
would ask WCL to consider what would happen if Frank Fowlie dressed up like the "three 
amigos" and walked around our campus at McMaster University (or any of the many campuses 
that host WCL Training Centres). I suggest that Frank Fowlie would quickly learn that standards 
related to racism in 2022 are very different than they were 36 years ago in 1986 (the year that 
the Three Amigos movie was released). 

There is no excuse for white people to refer to brown people as "three amigos". I acknowledge 
that because of the colour of my skin, I sometimes gets mistaken as Latin American, however I 
am brown because I am ethnically Palestinian.   

Scholars refer to this behaviour as the “everyday language of white racism” - see Ms. Jane Hill’s 
publication on the matter (Online ISBN: 9781444304732).  It is deeply offensive when white 
people engage in name calling that perpetuates "comical" stereotypes of my skin colour - it is 
racist and has no part in a WCL Discipline Hearing or in wider Canadian society.   

I am attaching a news article that speaks about the racism of the "three amigos" comment.  

https://www.sandiegouniontribune.com/opinion/letters-to-the-editor/sd-three-amigos-response-
utak-20170616-story.html 

Additional Racism and Xenophobia from Fowlie/Fowlie's Representation  
I was also a witness in another WCL Discipline Proceeding in which I was provided evidence 
demonstrating that Frank Fowlie/Fowlie's representation engaged in racially demeaning 
behaviour. 

As part of my duties in that hearing, I read an email dated June 9th, 2022, from Fowlie/Fowlie's 
representative to the WCL Complaint's Officer Yampolsky. Fowlie/Fowlie's representative says: 

"One day, your “determinations” may set off a complainant who might successfully hunt 
for your head" 

"You are laying the groundwork for your demise. Remember that. Remember where you 
heard it first. You might consider resigning before it gets to that.  By the way, you might 
want to invest in a spell check. Your email, with all its grammar and syntax mistakes make 
you look amateurish." 

In the "three amigos" news article referenced above, it states, "Community members who have 
been impacted by words that reflect casual racism and actual fear for their families need more 
than an apology". As you read the words of Frank Fowlie/Fowlie's representation you can 
clearly see the violent and threatening messaging, while he simultaneously engages in 
xenophobic ridicule of an immigrant.  The news article's description of "actual fear" rings true 
when you read these intimidating words from Fowlie.   
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The WCL Complaints Officer Ilan Yampolsky, it would seem, speaks English as a second 
language. I come from a family of immigrants and so I realize that because of the age at which 
some people arrive in Canada, newcomers may continue to speak English with an accent and 
make grammatical mistakes. It is beyond question that belittling an immigrant because of flaws 
in their English is cruel and offensive.  I am a BIPOC wrestling coach who has seen and 
experienced racism in the sport of wrestling.  I believe I have a duty to take a stand against 
racism in all its forms.    

Appropriate Resolution 
I ask that Frank Fowlie receive a reprimand from a WCL Panel for violating Section 2.2.1.2.1 of 
the UCCMS by using racially offensive and threatening language during the course of WCL 
Discipline Proceedings as well as an indefinite suspension that will only be lifted once Frank 
Fowlie has provided an apology letter for using racially offensive and threatening language. 





Claim, with the caveat that allegations such as the ones set out in paragraph 39
that relate to the dispute may remain (with the removal of the term "defamatory”).

Simply put, Fowlie cannot be trusted with confidential information involving
Participants in wrestling.  

All of the anonymous witnesses are, however, willing to have their identities made
known to Arbitrator Pound.  

1. I would like to call Eamonn Dorgan as a witness. Mr. Dorgan will describe a
conversation he had with Frank Fowlie in December 2020 in which Fowlie
demonstrates a bias against a female who suffered maltreatment at the hands of one
of the most powerful employees in WCL - maltreatment that never would have taken
place if she were a heterosexual woman.

2. I would like to call WCL Executive Director Tamara Medwidsky.  I would like Ms.
Medwidsky to simply confirm the existence of the document in which WCL describes
Fowlie as styling himself as "judge, jury, and executioner".

3. I would like to call "Jane Doe" as a witness.  Jane Doe is the mother of a child who
was abused within the sport of wrestling.  This mother will confirm that the reckless
behaviour of Frank Fowlie was a significant factor in causing her to remain silent
regarding the abuse of her child.

4. I would like to call "John Doe" as a witness.  John Doe is an athlete in the sport of
wrestling who will confirm that the reckless behaviour of Frank Fowlie was a
significant factor in causing him to remain silent regarding the sexual maltreatment he
suffered as a child in wrestling.

5. I would like to call "Jane Doe #2" who will confirm that she was sexually assaulted
at a wrestling event.  She will confirm that the reckless behaviour of Frank Fowlie was
a significant factor in causing her to remain silent regarding the sexual abuse she
suffered in wrestling.

6. I would like to call "John Doe #2" as a witness.  John Doe is an athlete in the sport
of wrestling who will confirm that the reckless behaviour of Frank Fowlie was a
significant factor in causing him to remain silent regarding the sexual maltreatment he
suffered in wrestling.

7. I would like to call Western University Coach Steven Takahashi as a witness.  Mr.
Takahashi will confirm that Frank Fowlie sent him a letter indicating that Madison
Parks was being investigated for improper conduct with her coach David Spinney.

8. I would like to call John Doe #3.  John Doe will confirm that he suffered racial
abuse in the sport of wrestling and that the reckless behaviour of Frank Fowlie was a
significant factor in causing him to remain silent regarding the racial abuse he
suffered in wrestling.



Regards,
Ahmed Shamiya 
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Dear SDRCC,

I am providing you with a response to Mr. Marin’s June 16th, 2023. Mr. Spinney would like his
thoughts, captured below to be communicated to Arbitrator Pound asap.

Best,

Michael

Dear Arbitrator Pound,

I am writing today to demonstrate another misrepresentation by Fowlie’s side.  I remind you that
Fowlie has previously been found guilty of engaging in deceitful behaviour before a tribunal. (CTA)

In the June 16, 2023 letter of Andre Marin, he provides timelines in which he attempts to
demonstrate that he is not in a conflict.  That is inaccurate. The information referenced below
demonstrate that Fowlie/Marin attempted to advance a deliberate misrepresentation in their June
16, 2023 submissions to you. 

Andre Marin’s Attempt to Use the   Matter case to bolster his position

In paragraph 4 and 5 of Marin’s June 16, 2023 letter he states:

"Between April to August 2021, I was appointed as an Investigator by Fowlie, while he was working
as Complaints and Appeal Officer, to make inquiries and prepare an opinion for a discipline panel of
three arbitrators sitting regarding a complaint of

 At no time did I have any access to WCL materials or personnel files
from either the Officer or from WCL. My task was that of a fact-finder on a very specific case and
provide of a legal opinion for the Panel.” 
"WCL and the Officer maintained strict confidentiality at all times, and I never made a request for
any personnel files. I was unaware of who Ahmed Shamiya, David Spinney or Mara Schiavull were. In
addition, they were irrelevant to my work."

Marin’s facts and arguments have nothing to do with the information and arguments set out in Ms.
Schiavulli conflict of interest complaint.  Thea approach taken here is an attempt create
misdirection. Marin is attempting to draw your attention to the timeline of April to August 2021
( ) when Ms. Schiavulli’s complaint is clearly addressing Marin acting as legal counsel for



the Office of the Complaints Officer in the O’Ceallachain/Zinger complaint beginning on or before
August 10, 2021.  

Please note that F that the O’Ceallachain/Zinger complaint is so connected to the Fowlie complaint
before Arbitrator Pound that they asked an SDRCC jurisdictional arbitrator to merge the case with
Fowlie’s complaint against me/Shamiya/Schiavulli.  As you will see below, Marin was involved as
legal counsel for the “Office of the Complaints Officer” in the O’Ceallacahain/Zinger complaint from
at least August 10, 2021 until WCL fired him.  

Evidence that Marin was in an Attorney Client Relationship with the Officer of the Complaints Officer
in the O’Caellachain/Zinger Matter

Marin, June 16, 2023 letter states:

"Timelines matter. My report was finalized in August 2021. Fowlie was terminated on September 15,
2021. He subsequently retained me to represent him in these and other proceedings or January 18,
2022.”

To be clear, Fowlie/Marin have lied with this statement.  Both Marin and Fowlie know that Marin
was in an attorney/client relationship with the Office of the Complaint’s Officer for the
O’Ceallachain/Zinger “harassment” complaint on or before August 10, 2021.

This is evidenced in the August 10, 2021 communication of Frank Fowlie to Jordan Goldblatt.  I am
attaching this August 10, 2021 email. As you read this August 10, 2021 communication it is obvious
that Fowlie was addressing what he believed was inappropriate involvement of WCL into the
O’Caellachain/Zinger harassment complaint.  

Fowlie’s August 10, 2021 communication states:

"I am responding to you as the Complaints and Appeals Officer, and not in my personal capacity.”

This statement clearly establishes that Fowlie is communicating NOT in his personal capacity.

Fowlie states:

"If WCL found it necessary to intervene, this Office opines that it should have been to enforce that
WCL’s staff, volunteers, officials, contractors, etc, have the right to a harassment free
workplace….You have also left the Office, and me personally, in the crosshairs of Mr. Spinney and his
acolytes for increased harassment.”

This statement establishes that while Fowlie was communicating on behalf of the Office of the
Complaint’s Officer, he was simultaneously attempting to rebuke WCL for his own claims of
harassment that he alleges he personally suffered.  There is no doubt that this communication had
nothing to do with  and everything to do with the O’Ceallachain/Zinger harassment
complaint - a complaint that Fowlie/Marin attempted to merge into Fowlie’s complaint of









Sincerely,

Mara Schiavulli

PS. Andre Marin, you know that you represented the Office of the WCL Complaints Officer
in the Zinger/ÓCeallacháin harassment complaint, and after you read my last submission you
knew you were in a horrible conflict. You saw that Arbitrator Pound was taking my
submission seriously and so you lied to him in order to try and convince him you were not
involved.  But I caught you because you didn’t think I knew about those emails.  I will be
reporting you to the Law Society for lying.  
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